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June 21, 2004
Dear Tvia shareholders:

Fiscal 2005 promises to be a successful year for our company. In mid-2003, following the completion of
comprehensive review of opportunities for our technologies and products, Tvia decided to focus its energy on the rapidly
growing market for digital television (DTV).

The market for DTV — which encompasses LCD TV and progressive scan TV (PTV) — is expected to grow from
20 million units in 2004 to more than 53 million units by 2007, Tvia’s new strategy is centered on TrueView, a new
generation of digital display processors that provide outstanding price/performance and flexibility to manufacturers of
advanced TV products. The TrueView 56XX chipset is aimed at the mobile interactive LCD TV and Infotainment Smart
LCD Displays. The TrueView 57XX family delivers optimized progressive-scan display for CRT-based TVs. The
TrueView TV5800 is being designed for use in next-generation LCD TVs.

Our engineering teams have done a remarkable job in creating Tvia’s new promising product families in a very short
time. We have delivered samples of our LCD TV product TV5600 and our PTV product, TV5700, to major TV
manufacturers in the Asia Pacific market and we are very pleased with the manufacturers’ positive feedback and interest
in our products.

Initially, we concentrated on high-volume television manufacturers in China, the home base for many manufacturers
of PTV. Our design and production facility in Hefei, China, gives us a strong advantage in the DTV market in China.
We believe that having a facility in China provides us with a cost-advantage over competitors, improved communication
with China based customers, and in addition enables us to better serve other potential customers in the region. We are
already observing the benefits from the implementation of this strategy,

To position Tvia as an aggressive player in this exciting DTV space, we also established a marketing and system
design center in Shenzhen, China. Our team has worked diligently, and prudently, to streamline our operations worldwide.
Tvia’s team efforts have proved successful. In addition to the introduction of our new products, we have reduced our
burn rate from more than $4 million per quarter to $1.1 million. These operational savings have helped to provide us
with the capital we need to fund our vision of becoming a DTV market leader by 2006.

We are excited about our new focus and eager to tackle the challenge before us. We thank our management team
and directors for their leadership, and we thank our employees for their commitment and hard work. We also tharik you,
our shareholders, for your continued support.

Sincerely,

Eaf

Eli Porat ]
Chief Executive Officer and President
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PART 1

Item 1. Business

” & FEINTS

When used in this Report, the words “expects,” “anticipates,” “estimates,” “believes,” “plans,” and similar
expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. These are statements that relate to future periods
and include statements as to the benefits of our China subsidiary, the market for digital televisions, use of silicon
in the digital television market, benefits of the Federal Communications Commission’s mandates, market share of
different technologies, price of raw materials, growth of the advanced television market, the Company’s anticipated
revenues, expenses, gross profit and loss; the features, performance, advantages and anticipated benefits of our
products, the importance of customer support, the expertise, industry knowledge and capabilities of our sales and
marketing staff, our design support, the importance of design support, continued expenditures on research and
development, our ability to migrate to smaller process geomettries, the key competitive factors in our target markets,
our ability to compete, increasing competition in our markets, sources of competition, our intellectual property,
strategy, our ability to protect our intellectual property, our backlog as an indicator of future revenues, the status
of our relations with our employees, the adequacy of our existing facilities, our dividend policy and our planned
retention of our future earnings. Forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause
actual results to differ materially from those projected. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited
to, those risks discussed below, as well as risks related to slower than anticipated emergence of the interactive
television market; general economic conditions and specific conditions in the markets we address; the timing,
rescheduling or cancellation of significant customer orders, the loss of a key customer; our ability to specify, develop
or acquire, complete, introduce, market and transition to volume production new products and technologies in a
timely manner; the volume of our product sales and pricing concessions on volume sales; the qualification,
availability and pricing of competing products and technologies and the resulting effects on sales and pricing of
our products; the availability and pricing of foundry and assembly capacity and raw materials; insufficient customer
support; fluctuations in the manufacturing yields of our third party semiconductor foundries and other problems
or delays in the fabrication, assembly, testing or delivery of our products; problems or delays that we may face
in shifting our products to smaller geometry process technologies and in achieving higher levels of design
integration; the effects of new and emerging technologies; the risks and uncertainties associated with our
international operations; changes in our products or customer mix; the risk that excess inventory may result in
write-offs, price erosion and decreased demand; the level of orders received that can be shipped in a fiscal quarter;
and the risks set forth below under Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations — Factors That May Affect Results.” These forward-looking statements speak only as of the
date hereof. The Company expressly disclaims any obligation or undertaking to release publicly any updates or
revisions to any forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect any change in the Company’s expectations
with regard thereto or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based.

This report contains statistical data that we obtained from industry publications and reports generated by
DisplaySearch in April 2004. These industry publications generally indicate that they have obtained their
information sources believed to be reliable, bur do not guarantee the accuracy and completeness of their
information. Although we believe that the publications are reliable, we have not independently verified their data.
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All references to “Tvia,” “we,” “us,” “our” or the “"Company” mean Tvig, Inc. and its subsidiary, except
where it is made clear that the term means only the parent company.

We own various trademarks and trade names used in our business. These include CyberPro, FlexiBus, Tvia
and the Tvia logo. Other trademarks referenced herein are the property of their respective owners.

History

We were originally incorporated in California as Integraphics Systems, Inc. in March 1993. We changed our
name to IGS Technologies in August 1997. In March 2000, we changed our name to Tvia, Inc. In August 2000,
we reincorporated in Delaware. Tvia operates in one principal industry segment.

Qur subsidiary in Hefei, People’s Republic of China, had 114 employees as of March 31, 2004, including 73
employees in research and development. This facility handles our operations and testing, and performs sales and
marketing, in addition to research and development activities. Our market focus is centered on the Asia Pacific




region, including China, Taiwan, Japan and Korea. We believe our Hefei subsidiary affords a cost effective means
for us to develop products and supports for our extensive hardware and software alliances. Qur subsidiary also gives
us a presence in the China market.

Overview

We have historically designed, developed and marketed multi-media display processors for the advanced
television and emerging display markets. Our multi-media display processors accept video, graphics and audio
signals from terrestrial broadcast, narrow band telephone lines, cable, satellite and the Ethernet and blend them
together on one or more displays for a high quality, customized and interactive viewing experience.

We recently changed our focus to designing, developing and marketing our display processors for the
interactive-television market as well as a family of flexible, high-quality display processors tailored to the Asia
Pacific television manufacturers creating next-generation digital liquid crystal display, or LCD, high definition or
HD, and progressive-scan televisions.

We currently offer five product families: the TrueView 5700 family, introduced in calendar year 2004; the
CyberPro 5600 family, introduced in calendar year 2003; the CyberPro 5202 family, introduced in calendar year
2002; the CyberPro 5300 family, introduced in calendar year 1999; and the CyberPro 5000 family, introduced in
calendar year 1998. These product families currently generate most of our revenues. We sell our products through
two channels. First, we sell our products directly to original equipment manufacturers, or OEMs, and recognize
revenues at the time of shipment to these OEMs. Finally, we sell our products to a number of distributors. We defer
recognition of revenues for sales to our distributors until they have sold our products to end-users. We also generate
revenues from licensing software which we believe will continue to constitute a small percentage of total revenues
in the future.

Industry Background

There are more than 2 billion standard analog televisions in the world today. Over the next decade, we anticipate
that digital television, or DTV, penetration will increase from less than 5 percent in 2003 to more than 50 percent
by 2010. We believe this rare, mass-scale global technology expansion will produce unique opportunities for
superior silicon revenue growth.

In January 2003, the Federal Communications Commission, or FCC, issued a mandate that 50 percent of
televisions 36 inches and larger must have integrated digital capability by July 2004 and 100 percent a year later.
The mandate also requires that all new televisions 13 inches and larger sold after July 1, 2007 comply with this
mandate. Several technologies are competing for a share of the DTV market including cathode ray tube, or CRT,
digital light processing, or DLP, liquid crystal on silicon, or LCoS, plasma displays, or PDP, and LCD. Presently
CRT and DLP are the early price and performance leaders but, in the long term, many expect LCD to emerge as
the dominant technology in the 20”- 40” market which accounts for approximately 80 percent of the television
market.

According to the market-research firm DisplaySearch, DTV is expected to follow a similar path to that of digital
video disks, or DVD. DVD players have enjoyed rapid acceptance over the last few years. There are several factors
that have contributed to the success of the DVD player, including ubiquitous content, smaller form factor, improved
audio and visual quality and falling prices, a by-product of silicon integration. By comparison, the DTV market
is small, but rapidly increasing. Based on current market conditions, we believe DTV unit shipments will increase
over the next four years from 20 million in 2004 to 53 million in 2007.

DTV growth drivers will largely mirror those of DVD players. Importantly, two of the largest components
of DTV are glass and silicon, which we expect to drop materially in price over the next few years due to new capacity
and better integration.

Industry analysts define advanced television, or ATV, or digital displays, as displays that do not contain a digital
tuner and integrated MPEG-2 decoder. In the case of LCD televisions, they tune and receive analog video signals
and, through enhanced the use of silicon-based processes such as 3D digital comb filtering and de-interlacing,
significantly enhance the content so that it approaches the quality of DTV. At the higher price points, the LCD
televisions may include add-in board slots for DTV tuners and MPEG-2 decoders.
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According to DisplaySearch, ATVs, which include thin-film-transistor LCD, PDP, and most projection
televisions (LCoS and DLP), are expected to grow from 6 million units in 2003 to 47 million units in 2007. This
favorably compares to the CRT television market that is expected to decrease from 133 million units in 2003 to
116 million units in 2007,

Within the emerging ATV market, LCD television is the largest and fastest growing sub-segment. Moreover,
LCD televisions best illustrate the near-term silicon opportunity resulting from the transition to digital video through
the use of silicon. LCD televisions principally receive analog television broadcasts and employ analog interfaces,
yet they are incapable of scanning video in an interlaced manner. Interlaced video means that only half the image
is scanned in or at any given frame or moment and as such, a viewer is only seeing half an image comprised of
either odd or evenly scanned lines, LCDs only scan video progressively, and are fed interlaced or nonprogressive
with poor quality analog video signals or are fed digital signals through analog interfaces. As a resuit, they require
silicon de-interldcers. A good de-interlacer either combines the odd and evenly scanned lines as one image or
intelligently doubles the alternating scan line, in an effort to clean up the progressively scanned image. Without
a good de-interlacing chip, the LCD monitor will robotically fill in missing lines by unintelligently doubling what
is scanned. Non-intelligent line doubling or dumb de-interlacing, often results in a poor video image.

~ Our Solution i
* We believe our display processors provide high quality, efficient silicon de-interlacing and scalinrg pofés
that allow our customers to produce high-quality progressive scan CRT television and LCD television at

an attractive price.

» We believe our display processors, software and reference design and design support enable our OEM
customers to accelerate their time to market by reducing their systems engineering development. Our
engineers work closely with our customers’ engineers to facilitate systems design. These benefits enable
our OEM customers to bring products with rich features and differentiated systems to market quickly.

Products

Our products are based on advanced architecture integrated circuits and system designs that provide real time,
cost effective and high quality display processing. We currently offer five product families: the TrueView 5700
family, introduced in calendar year 2004; the CyberPro 5600 family, introduced in calendar year 2003; the CyberPro
5202 family, introduced in calendar year 2002; the CyberPro 5300 family, introduced in calendar year 1999; and
the CyberPro 5000 family, introduced in calendar year 1998. Our semiconductor solutions include different features,
which OEMs can select for inclusion in their products.

The TrueView 5700 is a low pin count, low-cost, highly integrated digital video image display processor
providing the key features necessary to design progressive scan CRT television.

- . The. CyberPro5600 supports the evolution of the LCD monitor from a simple screen to an advanced display
with multiple and varied applications. Web-pads, in-flight entertainment system, and info-tainment system displays
that can process enhanced picture-in-picture and multiple source capabilities with the CyberPro 5600. Features that
are optimized specifically for LCD’s include superior de-interlacing, advanced scaler performance and exceptional
alpha blending of up to three independent media streams.

The CyberPro 5202 incorporates all the features of our CyberPro 5000, 5005, 5050 and 5055 products. In
addition, a 24-bit digital interface directly supports liquid crystal displays, or LCD, and other digital interfaces.
Enhanced, flexible alpha-blending capabilities allow overlay of different windows with programmable levels of
opacity. Two advanced television encoders allow the user to configure the recording picture in personal video
recorder, or PVR, applications. The processor maintains crisp text presentation, even as the opacity of the window
1s varied. The CyberPro 5202 is designed for displays to multiple devices such as traditional cathode ray tube
televisions, advanced televisions, panel displays, emerging interactive displays and LCD products.

The CyberPro 5300 is the first product in the CyberPro 5300 family designed for broadband set-top boxes
that require 3D animation, 3D effects or 3D graphics processing capability.

The CyberPro 5305, 5350 and 5355 are similar to our CyberPro 5005, 5050 and 5055 products, but also provide
3D animation, 3D effects or 3D graphics processing capability.
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The CyberPro 5000 is the first product of the CyberPro 5000 family designed for broadband digital set-top
boxes and advanced televisions. The CyberPro 5000 has enhanced text, graphics and video processing engines.
It also includes two video ports for two simultaneous video streams, high picture quality of broadband video on
television, hardware magnified view of web pages on television and a flexible transparency algorithm for blending
multiple video, text, graphics, pictures and animation on screen,

The CyberPro 5005 is designed for broadband set-top boxes and advanced televisions with Internet and DVD
capability. In addition to CyberPro 5000 features, the 5005 provides MacroVision encryption for copy protection.

The CyberPro 5050 is designed for broadband set-top boxes and advanced televisions that have integrated
audio capability. Additional features include an audio digital signal processor engine with audio synthesis, MIDI,
128, PCM and stereo audio.

The CyberPro 5055 combines all of the features of our CyberPro 5000, 5005 and 5050 products. The CyberPro
5055 provides a solution for broadband set-top boxes and advanced televisions that process multiple media streams
including DVD and full duplex audio.

Customers

We target customers in the advanced television and emerging interactive display markets. We began to focus
on the emerging interactive display market in 1997, and later expanded our focus to include the advanced television
markets. The majority of our sales in fiscal 2004 were to the broadband set-top box market portion of the emerging
interactive display market, primarily for video-on-demand applications. In prior years, the majority of our sales
were to the emerging interactive display market. Many of our customers manufacture or distribute products in more
than one of our target markets. '

In fiscal 2004, sales to Kanematsu Devices Corporation, SMS Electronics, Ltd., Weikeng Industrial Co., and
Fujitsu-Siemens Computers Gmbh represented 15%, 12%, 12% and 10% of revenues, respectively. In fiscal 2003,
sales to Siemens Communications Ltd., Kanematsu Devices Corporation and Micro Network Korea Co., Ltd.
represented 24%, 17% and 10% of revenues, respectively. In fiscal 2002, sales to Prediwave Corporation and
Motorola Broadband accounted for 62% and 14% of revenues, respectively.

In fiscal 2004, sales to customers in the United States, Europe, Taiwan and Japan comprised of 24%, 24%,
18%, and 15% of revenues, respectively. In fiscal 2003, sales to customers in Europe, Taiwan, Japan, the United
States and Korea comprised of 35%, 25%, 16%, 14% and 10% of revenues, respectively. In fiscal 2002, sales to
customers in the United States and Taiwan comprised 68% and 22% of revenues, respectively.

Sales and Marketing

We sell and market our display processors through our direct sales force, sales representatives and distributors.
For our software products, we also use value added resellers and system integrators that package and use our
software products for resale as standard products or custom software development services.

Our products are marketed primarily through reference platforms and evaluation kits designed internally and
with industry leading microprocessors, real-time operating systems and other strategic partners directly or indirectly
through our partners’ channels to OEMs for evaluation and development. These reference platforms and evaluation
kits (hardware and software) have proven to be vital to our success in obtaining new design wins. We also promote
our products through our website, trade shows, articles, press releases and joint promotions with our strategic
partners.

Our personnel work closely with customers, sales representatives and authorized distributors to define product
features, performance, price and market timing of new products. We provide technical support and design assistance
directly to OEM customers, regardless of the sales channels used. We believe that a high level of customer support
is necessary to successfully develop and maintain long-term relationships with our customers. These relationships
begin at the design phase and develop, as customer needs change and evolve. We provide support through both
on site customer service and remote support from our facilities.

As of March 31, 2004, we employed a sales and marketing force of 11 people. We believe these personnel
have the technical expertise and industry knowledge necessary to support a lengthy and complex sales process.
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We also employed four field applications engineers to assist customers in designing, testing and qualifying system

designs that incorporate our integrated circuits and software products. We believe that the depth and quality of this

design support team are key to improving our customers’ time to market and maintaining a high level of customer

satisfaction. Our direct sales offices are located in Santa Clara, California, Shenzhen and Hefei, People’s Republic
_ of China. All of our sales offices provide hardware and software applications support.

Research and Development

Our research and development efforts are focused on four areas: device architecture and logic design, physical
layer design, software development and device testing. As of March 31, 2004, our research and development staff
consisted of 88 employees, (15 of whom were located in the United States and 73 of whom were located in the
People’s Republic of China). Our research and development efforts have centered on architecture design, streaming
media processing modes, high-speed digital and mixed signal design and software.

We conduct research and development at our design centers in Santa Clara, California and Hefei, People’s
Republic of China. Our People’s Republic of China facility is located in a science park near Hefei University of
Technology, where employee costs are lower than in the San Francisco Bay Area.

Our research and development expenses for fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $6.8 million, $9.0 million
and $12.7 million, respectively. Research and development expenses consist mainly of personnel and other costs
associated with the development of product designs, process technology, software and programming hardware. We
anticipate that we will continue to commit substantial resources to research and development in the future.

Manufacturing

We have adopted a fabless semiconductor manufacturing model and therefore we outsource all of our
semiconductor manufacturing and assembly. This approach allows us to focus our resources on the design,
development, testing and marketing of our products and significantly reduces our capital requirements. We develop
our designs to be compatible with three foundries, United Manufacturing Corporation, or UMC, and Taiwan
Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation, or TSMC, both of which are located in Hsin Chu, Taiwan, and
HuaHong NEC located in the People’s Republic of China. This allows us to shift production from one facility to
the other in the event of a capacity constraint at one foundry. We currently use 0.35 micron technology for production
of our CyberPro 5000, Cyberpro 5600 and Trueview 5700 families. We use 0.3 micron technology for production
of our CyberPro 5300 family and 0.18 micron technology for production of our CyperPro 5202 family.

We internally design and optimize digital and analog cells through our physical layer design group. We believe
this allows us to reduce the size of the semiconductor and therefore the cost. This also gives us greater control over
the quality and reliability of our multi-media display processors.

Assembly of our devices is performed by Advance Semiconductor Engineering, Inc. in Kaohsiung, Taiwan,
and Belling Corp., Ltd. in ShangHai, People’s Republic of China. We may also use Siliconware Precision {ndustries
Ltd., located in Hsin Chu, Taiwan. Final testing is primarily performed by us at our subsidiary in Hefei, People’s
Republic of China.

Competition

The semiconductor industry in general, and the market for integrated circuits for advanced televisions and
emerging interactive displays, in particular, is highly competitive. We believe we can compete favorably in each
of the key competitive factors in our target markets. These factors are:

o functionality;
¢ performance;

e time to market;
® price;

* conformity to industry standards;
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¢ product road maps; and
¢ technical support.

Our current and primary competitors are AT1 Technologies, Inc., Broadcom Corporation, Genesis Microchip,
Inc., Pixelworks, Inc., Trident Microsystems, Inc. and Silicon Image, Inc. In addition to these competitors, we expect
other major semiconductor manufacturers will enter the market as the advanced television and emerging interactive
display markets develop. A number of companies, including International Business Machines Corporation,
STMicroelectronics N.V., National Semiconductor, Equator Technologies, Inc., LSI Logic and Philips Electronics
N.V., have announced that they are developing or plan to introduce competing products in the advanced television
and emerging interactive display markets which could result in significant competition. We expect competition to
intensify as current competitors expand their product offerings and new competitors enter the market.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of patent, copyright; trademark and trade secret laws and contractual restrictions
to establish and protect our intellectual property and proprietary rights that we develop and license from others.

We have been granted two United States patents, containing claims covering various aspects of combining
digital streams of video and graphics for presentation on an output display and for changing the size of graphic
data for presentation on a television output display. We expect to file patent applications as we deem appropriate
to protect our technology and products. We cannot be sure that our patent applications will result in the issuance
of patents, or that any issued patents will provide commercially significant protection to our technology.

We also license from others certain audio, graphics and semiconductor technology that is incorporated in our
semiconductors and certain intellectual property rights. These licenses are perpetual and survive the termination
of the agreements under which we obtained such licenses. The protections we receive from others against
infringement under the terms of these licensing agreements are limited and we cannot be sure that alternative
technology exists.

In July 2000, we entered into an agreement with Hitachi, Ltd., which has developed proprietary technology
on system-on-a-chip SH-4 microprocessors , or SH-4. As a result of our agreement, Hitachi licensed to us the right
to use this SH-4 technology for system-on-a-chip integration in our products and to manufacture, distribute and
sublicense products using the SH-4 technology. In March 2002, we postponed the product related to this technology
indefinitely; accordingly, we wrote off $0.5 million of license technology related to this SH-4 technology.

In December 2000, we entered into an agreement with Qak Technology, Inc. or Oak, which has proprietary
3D graphics technology that permits incorporation of the 3D graphics function onto our chips. As a result of our
agreement, we were granted the right to use this 3D graphics technology for 3D graphics integration in our products
and to manufacture, distribute and sublicense products using the 3D graphics technology.

In April 2001, we amended the agreement with Qak, in order to license Qak’s proprietary MPEG-2 technology
that permits the incorporation of MPEG-2 decoding functions onto our chips. As a result of our agreement, we were
granted the right to use this MPEG-2 technology for MPEG-2 integration in our products and to manufacture,
distribute and sublicense products using the MPEG-2 decoding technology. In December 2003, we postponed the
product related to this technology indefinitely; accordingly, we wrote off $1.5 million of license technology related
to this MPEG-2 technology.

1n July 2003, we sold our software business and software-related assets to MediaTek, Inc. The software assets
were developed internally to support our products, including Home 1T, advanced digital video broadcasting, MPEG
4 software, SDK software and software drivers. In connection with this transaction, MediaTek granted to us a
royalty-free license to continue to use those software assets to support our existing products and fulfill our
maintenance obligations to our existing customers.

We attempt to avoid infringing known proprietary rights of third parties in our product development efforts.
It is difficult to proceed with certainty in a rapidly evolving technological environment in which there may be
numerous patent applications pending, many of which are confidential when filed, with regard to similar
technologies. If our products violate third party proprietary rights, we might not be able to obtain licenses to continue
offering these products without substantial reengineering. Efforts to undertake this reengineering might not be
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successful, licenses might be unavailable on commercially reasonable terms, if at all, and litigation might not be
avoided or settled without substantial expense and damage awards.

CyberPro and Tvia are registered trademarks, and the Tvia logo is a trademark of Tvia in the United States
and other jurisdictions.

Backlog

Our sales are made primarily pursuant to standard purchase orders for delivery of products. Due to industry
practice which allows customers to cancel or change orders with limited advance notice prior to shipment, we
believe that backlog is not a reliable indicator of future revenue levels. -

Seasonality

The electronics industry has historically been subject to seasonal and cyclical fluctuations in demand for its
products, and this trend may continue in the future. These industry downturns have been, and may continue to be,
characterized by diminished product demand, excess manufacturing capacity and subsequent erosion of average
selling prices.

Employees

As of March 31, 2004, we had 141 full time employees including 88 engaged in research and development,
11 engaged in sales and marketing, 29 engaged in operations and 13 engaged in general management and
administration activities. Of these employees, 27 work in our Santa Clara facility and 114 work at our facility in
the People’s Republic of China. Our employees are not represented by any collective bargaining agreement and
we have never experienced a work stoppage. We believe our relations with our employees are good.

Available Information

Our internet address is www.tvia.com. We make available free of charge through a hyperlink on its website
our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Forms 8-K, and amendments
to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a} of the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable
after the material is furnished to the SEC. Our website and the information contained therein or connected thereto
is not intended to be incorporated into this Annual Report on From 10-K.

Item 2. Properties

Our headquarters, which also serves as our principal administrative, selling, marketing, custorner support,
applications engineering and product development facility, is located in Santa Clara, California, and consists of
one building of approximately 16,500 square feet under a lease that expires in July 2005. We also lease a building
located in Hefei, People’s Republic of China of approximately 15,000 square feet under a lease that expires in June
2005 for our research and development operations in China; and a building located in Shenzhen, People’s Republic
of China of approximately 2,500 square feet under a lease that expires in November 2004 for our marketing and
customer support in China.

We believe our existing facilities are adequate to meet our needs for the near future and that future growth
can be accomplished by leasing additional or alternative space on commercially reasonable terms.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time we may be involved in litigation relating to claims arising in the ordinary course of business.
As of the date of this filing, we do not believe that any of the legal proceedings pending against us or, to the best
of our knowledge, threatened against us, will have a significant adverse effect on our financial position or results
of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Not applicable.
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Executive Officers
The executive officers of the Company are as follows:

Kenny Liu, 50, has served as our Chairman of the Board since January 1995, and as Chief Executive Officer
from January 1995 to November 2001, From January 1989 to March 1994, Mr. Liu served as Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of OPTi Inc., 2 manufacturer of core logic chip sets for the personal computer market. Mr. Liu
received a B.S. in Electrical Engineering from National Cheng-Kung University in Taiwan, an M.S. in Computer
Science from Santa Clara University and an M.S. in Electrical Engineering from Ohio State University.

Eli Porat, 58, has served as our Chief Executive Officer since November 2001and as President since February
2002. Mr. Porat has served as a director of our Company since March 2001. From January 1997 to November 2001,
Mr. Porat was Chief Executive Officer of OpenGrid, Inc., a mobile business solutions company. From 1991 to 1996,
Mr. Porat was Chief Executive Officer of DSP Group, an audio digital signal processing company. From 1972 to
1983, Mr. Porat was with Intel Corporation. Mr. Porat earned a B.S. and M.S. degrees in Electrical Engineering
and Computer Science from the University of California, Berkeley.

Arthur Nguyen, 52, has served as our Chief Financial Officer since March 2003. He joined us as Corporate
Controller in October 2000, serving in that position until February 2003. Prior to joining us, he served as Director
of Accounting at marchFIRST, an internet consulting company from November 1999 to September 2000. From
July 1996 to October 1999, Mr. Nguven was Chief Financial Officer of Hayward Quartz Technology, Inc., a
semiconductor component manufacturer. Mr. Nguyen received a Master in Business Administration with a
concentration in Accounting from the California State University — San Bernardino and a B.S. in Business
Administration from California State University — Sacramento. Mr. Nguyen is a Certified Public Accountant.

Jhi-Chung Kuo, 51, a cofounder of the Company, has served as our Vice President of Engineering since April
2002. From July 2000 to March 2002, he served as our Chief Technology Officer. From March 1993 to June 2000,
Mr. Kuo served as our Vice President of Engineering. Mr. Kuo received a B.S. in Physics from National Central
University in Taiwan and an M.S. in Electrical Engineering from Mississippi State University.

James Tao, 53, has served as Vice President of Sales and Marketing since March 2002. He joined us in June
1997 as Senior Director of Business Development, and served from November 1999 to March 2002 as Vice President
of Business Development. From March 1989 to May 1997, Mr. Tao served as Vice President of Sales and Marketing
at Focus Information Systems, a personal computer peripheral product company. Mr. Tao received an M.B.A. in
Telecommunication Management from Golden Gate University and an M.S. in Computer Science from the
University of Hawaii.




PART 11

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

The Company’s common stock, par value $0.001 (“Common Stock™), is traded on the Nasdaq National Market
(“Nasdaq™) under the symbol “TVIA”, until December 4, 2002, when it began to trade on the Nasdag SmallCap
Market under the same ticker symbol. The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the range of high
and Iow sales prices for the Common Stock on the Nasdaq National Market and SmallCap Market, applicable.

2002 Quarter Ended:
June 30 .o 1.90 0.88
September 30 ... 0.99 0.45
December 31...... i 0.77 047
2003 Quarter Ended: i
March 31 . e 0.70 0.51
June 30 ........ S S 1.08 0.635
September 30 ... 2.20 1.03
December 31.... . iiiriir i 3.25 1.57
2004 Quarter Ended:
March 31, .o 3.30 1.97

As of May 28, 2004, the Common Stock was held by 181 stockholders of record (not including beneficial
holders of stock held in street name). The Company has never declared or paid dividends on its capital stock and
does not anticipate paying any dividends in the foreseeable future. The Company currently intends to retain future
earnings for the development of its business.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Compensation Plans
Informadtion regarding securities authorized for issuance under our equity compensation plans can be found
under Item 12 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Purchase of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

During the year ended March 31, 2004, we did not purchase any of the equity securities of Tvia, although
we do have two repurchase programs in place.

On November 10, 2001, the Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase program to acquire outstanding
common stock in the open market. Under this program, the Board of Directors authorized the acquisition of up
to 200,000 of our common stock. This program does not have a stock repurchase maximum amount or an expiration
date. As of March 31, 2004, we had acquired 143,700 shares on the open market that we hold as treasury stock.
At the March 31, 2004 stock price, the proceeds to be used to acquire up to 56,300 shares of our common stock
will have a minimal impact on our current cash, cash equivalent and short-term investment balances.

On August 20, 2002, the Board of Directors authorized an additional stock repurchase program to acquire up
to 5 million shares of outstanding common stock in the open market for a maximum of $0.50. This program does
not have an expiration date. As of March 31, 2004, we had not repurchased any shares of common stock under
this program.

Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data

The selected consolidated financial data set forth below with respect to our consolidated statements of
operations data for the years ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, and with respect to our consolidated balance
sheets at March 31, 2004 and 2003, are derived from our Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes which
are included -in this Form 10-K. The selected consolidated statements of operations data for the years ended
March 31, 2001 and 2000 and our consolidated balance sheet data at March 31; 2002, 2001 and 2000 are derived
from our audited consolidated financial statements not included in this Form 10-K. The data set forth below should
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be read in conjunction with Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations and the Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes included in this Form 10-K.

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:
Revenues:
Productsales.........oooiiiiiiiiii i

Gross profif.......ooviiiiii i

Operating expenses:
Research and development........................
Sales, general and administrative..................
Amortization of deferred stock compensation ... ..
Restructuring Costs........cooveieiieriiiinnnnnnn.

Total operating €Xpenses..........c.ccouevvvenn...

Operating 1oss.........ooiiiiiiiiiiiii i
Other income (expense), net

Interest income.............cooiiiiiiiiieinnnin.,

Interest expense .........cooviiiiiiiiiiiiiii.

Gain on sale of software business.................

Other income (expense), net....................

Net income (loss) before extraordinary item.........
Extraordinary item, net of income taxes.............
Income (loss) before taxes............covvvvivennn.n.
Income taxes ..ot

Net income (1088). . ..vvv ot
Dividend related to convertible preferred stock......

Net income (loss) attributable to common
stockholders.......co.cooiiii i

Basic and diluted net income (loss) attributable to
common stockholders before extraordinary item ..

Extraordinary item, net of income taxes.............

Basic and diluted net income (loss) attributable to
common stockholders .......................L

Shares used in computing basic net loss per share to
common stockholders ...................ooil

Shares used in computing diluted net loss per share
to common stockholders ...

Year Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(in thousands, except per share data)

$2042 § 1,771 $11,342  $12,743 36,528
267 461 498 701 529
2,309 2,232 11,840 13,444 7,057
1,235 1,460 8,522 7,650 3,622
88 83 109 68 185
1,323 1,543 8,631 7,718 3,807
986 689 3,209 5,726 3,250
6,823 8,983 12,664 6,774 3,390
2,667 3,545 5,056 5,695 3,370
— 595 1,572 2,701 1,499
— 950 — — —
9,490 14,073 19,292 15,170 8,259
(8,504)  (13,384)  (16,083) (9,444)  (5,009)
401 703 1,818 2,105 49
(1 14) — (459 (1,081
9,075 — — — —
9,465 689 1,818 1,646 (1,032)
961 (12,695)  (14.265) (7,798)  (6,041)
— — — 672 —
961 (12,695)  (14,265) (8,470)  (6,041)
25 — — — —
936 (12,695)  (14,265)  (8.470) 6,041

— — — 671 2,161
$ 936 $(12,695) $(14,265) $(9,141) $(8,202)
$ 004 $ (038) $ (0.66) $ (0.56) $ (2.63)
— — — 0.05 —
$ 004 $ (058 $ (0.66) $ (0.61) $ (2.63)
22,323 21,952 21,631 15,052 3,118
23,982 21,952 21,631 15,052 3,118
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Year Ended March 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

(in thonsands, except per share data)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents and short-term

INVESIMENTS L.\ttt e et et in e ieeeeeens $27,206 $24,417  $35,505 $46,682 $ 6,864
Working capital............o i 28,000 24,273 35,979 50,305 5,915
Total assets ..vvniir i e 31,403 31,193 43,387 57,435 11,368
Long term liabilities .....oovii i — 486 — — 2,959
Redeemable convertible preferred stock ............. — — — —_ 16,594
Stockholders’ equity (deficit) .............ooeveen. $30,059 328,766 340,925 $53.422  $(14,266)

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

“The following discussion and analysis of the Company’s financial condition and results of operations should
be read in-conjunction with “Selected Consolidated Financial Data” and the Consolidated Financial Statements and
related Notes included elsewhere in this Report. , ' -

When used in this discussion, the words “expects,” “anticipates,” “estimates,” and similar expressions are
intended to identify forward-looking statements. These statements relate to future periods and include statements
as to expected revenues and sources of revenues, future profitability, the reasonableness of our accounting
assumptions and estimaites, factors that may affect our gross margin, the effect of certain accounting principles
on our consolidated financial statements, future sales to key customers, the level of export sales, the level of our
research and development expense, development of new products, research and development in China, uses and
adequacy of our current cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments, the impact of the adoption of accounting
pronouncements, reliance on a small number of original equipment manufacturers, future orders of our products,
our ability to compete, increasing competition in our markets and our competitors, sales to customers outside of
the United States, effect of foreign currency exchange rates, and changes in interest rates, are subject to risks and
uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those projected. These risks and uncertainties
include, but are not limited to, those risks discussed below, as well as risks relating to as slower than anticipated
emergence of the interactive television market; the effect of the terrorist attacks in the United States and any resulting

~ conflicts or similar everits worldwide on-our customers’ demand of our products; the impact of worldwide events
on our operations in China; general economic conditions and specific conditions in the markets we address;
dependence on a key customer or OEM; the loss of a key customer; decreases in sales to a key OEM; our ability
to specify, develop or acquire, complete, introduce, market and transition to volume production new products and
technologies in a timely manner; the volume of our product sales and pricing concessions on volume sales; the
qualification, availability and pricing of competing products and technologies and the resulting effects on sales
and pricing of our products; fluctuations in the manufacturing vields of our third party semiconductor foundries
and other problems or delays in the fabrication, assembly, testing or delivery of our products; purchases of capital
assets; changes in our products or customer mix; the risk that excess inventory may result in write-offs, price erosion
and decreased demand, the level of orders received that can be shipped in a fiscal quarter; the impact of foreign
currency exchange rates; and the matters discussed in “Factors that May Affect Results.” These forward-looking
statements speak only as of the date hereof. The Company expressly disclaims any obligation or undertaking to
release publicly any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect any change
in the Company’s expectations with regard thereto or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which
any statement is based.

QOverview

We design, develop and market display processors for the interactive-television market as well as a family
of flexible, high-quality display processors tailored to the Asia Pacific television manufacturers creating next-
generation digital LCD, HD, and progressive-scan televisions.

We currently offer five product families: the TrueView 5700 family, introduced in calendar year 2004; the
CyberPro 5600 family, introduced in calendar year 2003; the CyberPro 5202 family, introduced in calendar year
2002; the CyberPro 5300 family, introduced in calendar year 1999; and the CyberPro 5000 family, introduced in
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calendar year 1998. These product families currently generate most of our revenues. We sell our products through
two channels. First, we sell our products directly to original equipment manufacturers, or OEMs, and recognize
revenues at the time of shipment to these OEMs. Second, we sell our products to a number of distributors. We defer
recognition of revenues for sales to our distributors until they have sold our products to end-users. We also generate
revenues from licensing software, which we believe will continue to constitute a small percentage of total revenues
in the future.

Historically, a relatively small number of customers and distributors have accounted for a significant portion
of our product sales. Our top four customers accounted for 15%, 12%, 12% and 10% of total revenues in the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2004. Our top three customers accounted for 24%, 17% and 10% of total revenues in the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2003. Our top two customers accounted for 62% and 14% of total revenues in the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2002.

Various factors have affected and may continue to affect our gross margin. These factors include, but are not
limited to, our product mix, the position of our products in their respective life cycles, yields and the mix of our
product sales and development contracts and other revenues. For example, newly introduced products generally
have higher average selling prices and generate higher gross margins. Both average selling prices and the related
gross margins typically decline over product life cycles due to competitive pressures and volume price agreements.
Our gross margin and operating results in the future may continue to fluctuate as a result of these and other factors.

The sales cycle for the test and evaluation of our products can range from three months to nine months or
more, with an additional three to nine months or more before an OEM customer commences volume production
of equipment incorporating our products, if ever. Due to these lengthy sales cycles, we may experience a delay
between incurring operating expenses and inventory costs and the generation of revenues from design wins.

We have sustained operating losses on a quarterly and annual basis since inception. As of March 31, 2004,
we had an accumnulated deficit of approximately $62.0 million. These losses resulted from significant costs incurred
in the planning and development of our technology and services and from significant marketing costs. We anticipate
lower revenues for at least the next several quarters as compared to the same period in the prior fiscal year. We
believe that this is due to a slowdown in the interactive television industry caused by a slower than anticipated
emergence of the interactive television market, a general industry inventory correction, delay in customer product
introductions in order to incorporate additional third-party features, and general economic uncertainty.

In connection with the grant of stock options to employees, we have recorded stock-based compensation charge
related to stock options granted below deemed fair market value cumulatively through March 31, 2003 of
approximately $6.4 million. This amount represents the difference between the exercise price of these stock option
grants and the deemed fair value of the common stock at the time of grant and it was fully amortized through
March 31, 2003. There was no stock-based compensation charge in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004.

We have a subsidiary in Hefei, People’s Republic of China, which performs final test, sales and research and
development, and an office in Shenzen, People’s Republic of China, to provide complete system support including
design and integration to our customers.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of net revenue and expenses during
the reporting period. We regularly evaluate our estimates and assumptions related to allowances for doubtful
accounts, sales returns and allowances, inventory reserves, purchased intangible asset valuations, warranty reserves,
and other contingencies. We base our estimates and assumptions on historic experience and on various other factors
that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. To the extent
there are material differences between our estimates and the actual results, our future results of operations will
be affected.
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We believe the following critical accounting policies, among others, affect the significant judgments and

estimates we use in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements:

o Revenues. We recognize revenues from product sales upon shipment to OEMs and end users provided that
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the price is fixed or determinable, title has transferred,
collection of resulting receivables is reasonably assured, there are no customer acceptance requirements,
and there are no remaining significant obligations. Reserves for sales returns and allowances are recorded
at the time of shipment. Our sales to distributors are made under agreements allowing for returns or credits
under certain circumnstances. We defer recognition of revenue on sales to distributors until products are resold
by the distributor to the end user. As part of our revenue recognition policy, we analyze various factors,
including a review of specific transactions, historical experience and current market and economic
conditions, Changes in judgments on these factors could impact the timing and amount of revenue
recognized.

o Receivabies. We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability
of customers to make required payments. If the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances could be required.

o Inventory. We write down our inventory for estimated obsolescence or unmarketable inventory equal to the
difference between the cost of inventory and the estimated realizable value based upon assumptions about
future demand and market conditions. If actual market conditions are less favorable than those projected
by management, additional inventory write-downs could be required.

o Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. We evaluate long-lived assets used in operations, including purchased

intangible assets, when indicators of impairment, such as reductions in demand or significant economic
slowdowns in the semiconductor industry, are present. Reviews are pertormed to determine whether the
carrying value of assets is impaired based on comparison to the undiscounted expected future cash flows.
If the comparison indicates that there is impairment, the impaired asset is written down to fair value.
Impairment is based on the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value of those assets. Significant
management judgment is required in the forecast of future operating results that is used in the preparation
of expected discounted cash flows. It is reasonably possible that the estimates of anticipated future net
revenue, the remaining estimated economic life of the products and technologies, or both, could differ from
those used to assess the recoverability of these assets. In that event, additional impairment charges or
shortened useful lives of certain long-live assets could be required.
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Results of Operations

The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, certain consolidated statement of operations data

reflected as a percentage of revenues. Our results of operations are reported as a single business segment.

Results of Operations for the Fiscal Years Endedearch 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Revenues were relatively flat in fiscal year 2004 compared to fiscal year 2003,
and decreased by $9.6 million from fiscal year 2002 to fiscal year 2003. These decreases in revenues in fiscal years
2004 and 2003 compared to fiscal 2002 were primarily due to a slower than anticipated emergence of the interactive
television market and general economic conditions in fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002. We generate most of our
revenues from design wins with new OEMs that rely on third-party manufacturers or distributors to provide
inventory management and purchasing functions.

representatives and distributors in Asia, represented 76%, 86% and 32% of total revenues in fiscal years 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively. All export revenues are denominated in United States dollars. We believe export sales will
represent a majority of our revenues in the foreseeable future.

due to lower overhead burden and sale of inventories previously reserved for in fiscal year 2002. The reduction
in overhead burden was due to lower headcount and facilities costs. Gross margin increased to 31% in fiscal year
2003 from 27% in fiscal year 2002 resulting from a write off of $2.1 million of slow moving inventory in fiscal
year 2002 and from higher margin non-product revenues such as consulting revenue and software.

Year Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
Revenues:
Product sales ... ..o 88% 79% 96%
Development contracts and other......................... _ _12 21 4
Total revenues ......... e e - 100 100 100
Cost of revenues:
Product sales...............c. i 53 65 72
Development contracts and other......................... ) 4 - 4 1
Total cost of revenues ..., i _ 57 _ 69 73
Gross profit... ..o 43 _3 27
Operating expenses:
Research and development........................ol 295 402 107
Sales, general and administrative.................. ... 116 159 43
Amortization of deferred stock compensation ............ — 27 13
Restructuring eXpenses......oovevviinviiiiin e, = _A43 _—
Total operating expenses............cooveeiiiiieian..., 411 631 163
OPETAtiNg 10SS ... 'vevet ettt e (368) (600) (136)
Other income (expense), net
Interest iNCOME. . ....oiiviuin i 17 31 15
Interest eXpense ........ocoviiiiiiii i — — —
Gain on sale of software business........................ 393 i _—
Other income (expense), net.............oeievennnaan.. 410 _31 _15
Net income (loss) before taxes...............cooiiiiint 42 (569) (121)
Income taxes ................... e 1 = _—
Net income (J08SS) .. ireet e 41% 569)% (121)%

ll
|
ll

Revenues. Revenues were $2.3 million, $2.2 million and $11.8 million for the fiscal years ended March 31,

Export revenues, consisting primarily of product sales and development contracts to OEMs, sales

Gross margin. Gross margin increased to 43% in fiscal year 2004 compared to 31% in fiscal year 2003 primarily
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Research and development. Research and development expenses include personnel and other costs associated with
the development of product designs, process technology, software and programming hardware. Historically, our research
and development expenses refiect our continuing efforts to develop and bring to market innovative and cost effective
multi-media display processors that process the rich media content available on the broadband network. We are now
focusing our research and development efforts on display processors for the interactive television market.

Research and development expenses were $6.8 million, $9.0 million and $12.7 million for the fiscal years ended
March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The decrease in research and development expense in absolute dollars
and as a percentage of revenues from fiscal 2003 to fiscal 2004 resulted from the sale of our software business unit
to MediaTek, Inc. in July 2003, partially offset by a write-off in license technology. The decrease in research and
development expenses in absolute dollars from fiscal year 2002 to fiscal year 2003 resulted primarily from a
reduction of our research and development operations in Santa Clara, California. We now employ 88 employees
in research and development, of which 15 are located in the United States and 73 are located in the People’s Republic

~ of China, compared to 276 employees in fiscal year 2002. Our research and development activities in the People’s
Republic of China provide software and application specific integrated circuit development support to our domestic

operations. The costs of our research and development activities in China are substantially lower than the costs
of our activities in Santa Clara. In the foreseeable future, we expect research and development expenses in absolute
dollars to slightly increase compared to the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004 expenses on an annualized basis.

Sales, general and administrative. Sales, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of personnel

- -and other costs associated with the management of our business and with the sale and marketing of our products.

Sales, general and administrative expenses were $2.7 million, $3.5 million and-$5.1 million-for the fiscal years ended
March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The decreases in sales, general and administrative expenses from
fiscal year 2002 to fiscal year 2003 and from fiscal year 2003 to fiscal year 2004 resulted from a reduction in
workforce and other cost cutting measures. In a foreseeable future, we expect sales, general and administrative
expenses in absolute doliars to be higher. This increase is expected to be primarily associated with the costs of
implementing the provisions as required by section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Amortization of deferred stock compensation. We grant stock options to hire, motivate and retain employees.
We incurred stock compensation expense of $0.0 million, $0.6 million and $1.6 million for the fiscal years ended
March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Gain on Sale of Software Unit. The Company recorded a gain on a sale of its software business and software-
related assets to MediaTek, Inc. in exchange for $10 million in cash in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004.
Expenses related to this transaction amounted to $.9 million.

Restructuring Charges. During fiscal 2003, the Company recorded a restructuring charge of $950,000 relating to
a headcount reduction and an operating lease for an abandoned building. The restructuring was recorded to align the
cost structure with changing market conditions. The plan resulted in headcount reduction of approximately 49 employees,
which was made up of 55% of research and development staft, 23% of operations staff, 16% of general and administrative
staff and 6% of sales and marketing staff. The charge in relation to the operating lease of the abandoned building represents
the estimated difference between the total non-discounted future sublease income and the non-discounted lease
commitments relating to this building. The restructuring plan has been completed as of March 31, 2004,

The following table summarizes the activity associated with the restructuring liabilities (in thousands):

License Leased Severances
Technology Facilities and Benefits Total
Balance at March 31,2002............... $ — $ — $ — $ —
Additions . ... 69 162 719 950
Non-cash charges...........ccovvvevinnen. (69) — — (69)
Cashcharges .......c.oovviiiiiinnn, — (139} (19 (858)
Balance at March 31, 2003 ............... — 23 — 23
Cash charges ............coooiviiiiiinn, — (23) —_ —
Balance at March 31,2004 ................ $ — $§ — $§ — $§ —

|
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Other income (expense), net. Other income (expense), net consists primarily of interest income, interest
expense and the gain on sale of software unit. Other income, net was $9.5 million, $0.7 million and $1.8 million
for fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Other income, net, generated in the fiscal years ended March 31,
2004 primarily resulted from a gain of $9.1 million on sale of our software business and software related assets
to MediaTek, Inc. Other income, net, generated in the fiscal years ended March 31, 2003 and 2002, was primarily
a result of interest income earned from our investments. Other income, net was further offset in fiscal years 2003
and 2002 by a lower return on our investments and declining levels of amount of cash and short-term investments.

Provision for income taxes. We are taxed in our jurisdictions of operations based on the extent of taxable income
generated in each jurisdiction. For income tax purposes, revenues are attributed to the taxable jurisdiction where
the sales transactions generating the revenues were initiated. A provision for income tax for fiscal 2004 was recorded
despite of prior years’ net operating losses. This was attributable to the US federal alternative minimum tax applied
on the gain of the software business unit. We incurred operating losses for each of the fiscal years ended March 31,
2003 and 2002, and therefore made no provision for income tax in these fiscal years. As of March 31, 2004, we
had federal and state net cumulative operating losses of approximately $44 million and $16 million, respectively,
which are available to offset future taxable income. If not used, these net operating losses will expire through 2024
and 2014, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004, net cash used in operating activities was $5.4 million, primarily due
to operating loss of $8.5 million, a decrease in accrued expenses and accounts payable of $0.7 million, partially offset
by a gain on sale of software unit of $9.1 million and non-cash expenses of $3.0 million and a decrease of $0.5 million
in inventories. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003, net cash used in operating activities was $10.5 million,
primarily due to net loss of $12.7 million, a decrease in accrued expenses and accounts payable of $0.9 million and an
increase in accounts receivable of $0.2 million, partially offset by non-cash expenses of $2.0 million and decreases of
$0.8 million and $0.5 million in prepaid expenses and other current assets, and inventories, respectively. During the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2002, net cash used in operating activities was $8.0 million, primarily due to net loss of $14.3
million, a decrease in accrued expenses of $1.1 million, partially offset by non-cash expenses of $3.2 million and
decreases of $1.8 million and $2.8 million in accounts receivable and inventories, respectively.

Cash flows used in investing activities were $2.4 million in the fiscal year 2004 compared to cash flows
provided by investing activities of $15.3 million in fiscal year 2003. This decrease was primarily due to the purchase
of investments offset by the proceeds from the sale of the software unit. Cash flows provided by investing activities
were $15.3 million in the fiscal year 2003 compared to cash flows used in investing activities of $7.2 million in
fiscal year 2002. This increase was primarily due to the sale of investments. As of March 31, 2004, we did not
have any significant capital purchase commitments.

Net cash flows used in financing activities were $0.1 million and $0.2 million, including repayment of capital
leases, for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. They were attributable to payments of
capital leases, partially offset by the proceeds from the sale of common stock under our Incentive Stock and
Employee Stock Purchase Plans. Net cash flows provided by financing activities in fiscal 2002 resulted primarily
from the proceeds from the sale of common stock under our Incentive Stock and Employee Stock Purchase Plans.

As of March 31, 2004, our principal source of liquidity consisted of cash and cash equivalents and short-term
investments, Working capital at March 31, 2004 was $28.0 million.

The following represent our more significant working capital commitments:

We lease its facilities under non-cancelable operating leases expiring at various dates through July 2005. Under
the terms of the leases, the Company is responsible for a portion of the facilities” operating expenses, insurance and
property taxes. We lease certain fixed assets under capital leases expiring at various dates through February 2005. We
place purchase orders with wafer foundries throughout our normal course of business. As of March 31, 2004, we had
approximately $78,000 of outstanding purchase commitments with a supplier for the purchase of wafers and a packaging
subcontractor. We expect to receive and pay for the wafers, within the next six months, from our existing cash balances.
Future working capital commitments as of March 31, 2004 were as follows (in thousands):
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Capital Operating Purchase
Fiscal Year Leases Leages Commitments Total
2005, .. 490 171 78 739
2006 oo — 47 — 47
Total minimum lease payments........ 490 21 78 786

Based on our current expectations, we believe that our cash and cash equivalents and short-term investment,
which totaled $27.2 million at March 31, 2004, will be sufficient to meet our working capital and capital
requirements through at least the next twelve months. In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004, excluding the cash
received from the sale of our software business to MediaTek, we used $5.6 million of cash and cash equivalents
and short-term investments.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities” (“FIN 46™), was issued in January 2003. FIN 46 requires that if an entity is the primary beneficiary of
a variable interest entity, the assets, liabilities, and results of operations of the variable interest entity should be
included in the consolidated financial statements of the entity. The provisions of FIN 46 are effective immediately
for all arrangements entered into after January 31, 2003. For those arrangements entered into prior to February 1,
2003, the provisions of FIN 46 were required to be adopted at the beginning of the first interim or annual period
beginning after June 15, 2003. However, in October 2003, the FASB deferred the effective date of FIN 46 to the
end of the first interim or annual period ending after December 31, 2003 for those arrangements entered into prior
to February 1, 2003. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In May 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 150, “Accounting
for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity”. SFAS No. 150 establishes
standards for how an issuer classifies and measures certain financial instruments with characteristics of both
liabilities and equity. SFAS No. 150 requires that an issuer classify a financial instrument that is within its scope
as a liability (or an asset in some circumstances). SFAS No. 150 is effective for financial instruments entered into
or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning
after June 15, 2003, The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Interim Financial Information (unaudited)

The following table presents selected unaundited quarterly results of operations data for each of the eight
quarters in the period ended March 31, 2004. We believe that the historical quarterly information has been prepared
substantially on the same basis as the audited financial statements, and the necessary adjustments, consisting only
of normal recurring adjustments, have been included in the amounts below to present fairly unaudited quarterly
results of operation data (in thousands, except per share data):

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2004:
Total revenues . ....ocovveirernrnneinnnns $ 580 $ 620 $ 628 $ 481
Gross margin..........o.oeveviieniion.ns 237 266 269 214
NEt 10SS. o vttt (2,064) 7,442 (2,946) (1,496)
Basic and diluted net loss per share ...... $ (0.09) $ 0.34 $ (0.13) $ (0.07)
Diluted net loss per share................. $ (0.09) $ 032 $ (0.13) $ (0.07)
Shares used in computing basic net loss .
pershare .........o.iiiiiiiiiiiin. 22,145 22,198 22,374 22,500
Shares used in computing fully diluted
net loss per share .................... .. 22,145 23,612 22,374 22,500
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First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

2003:
Total revenmues . ......ovvvvveeneiinninn. $ 706 $ 587 $ 438 $ 501
Gross Margif.. .....oovveerniereernnannnn. 250 110 134 195
Net 1SS, .o v (3,712) (4,109) (2,818) (2,056)
Basic and diluted net loss per share ...... $ (017 $ (0.19) $ (0.13) $ (0.09)
Shares used in computing basic and fully

diluted net loss per share............... 21,983 21,969 21,948 22,012

FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT RESULTS

We expect continuing losses and may not achieve profitability which could affect our ability to expand
our business.

We have incurred significant operating losses in each year since our inception , except in fiscal year 2004.
The net income reported in fiscal year 2004 was primarily due to the sale of our software business. We expect to
continue to incur net fosses for the foreseeable future, primarily as a result of expenses for research and development.
Our losses increased as we transitioned our focus away from the personal computer market toward the advanced
television and display markets in 1996. We have incurred net losses of approximately $62.0 million from our
inception in March 1993 through March 31, 2004. If we continue to incur net losses, we may not be able to expand
our business as quickly as we would like. We do not know when or if we will become profitable and if we do become
profitable, we may not be able to sustain or increase our profitability.

Because the emergence of the interactive television market has been slower than anticipated, we may not
be able to sell our products or sustain our business.

Our multi-media display processors are incorporated into products that allow interactive television. The
concept of interactive television and the market for products that facilitate it are new and developing. As a result,
our profit potential is unproven and may never materialize. Broad acceptance of advanced televisions and emerging
interactive displays will depend on the extent to which consumers use devices other than personal computers to
access the Internet. To date, the market for these products has not developed as quickly as our customers and we
had previously anticipated. Consequently, certain of our customers have significant inventory of our semiconductors
or praducts that incorporate our semiconductors, thereby limiting the opportunity to sell additional semiconductors
to these customers until their present inventories are depleted. Our success will also depend on the ability of OEMs
and service providers that work with our OEMs to create demand for and market the products incorporating our
semiconductors. Unless a sufficiently large market for advanced televisions and emerging interactive displays and
other products that are used for interactive television develops, demand for products incorporating our
semiconductor solutions may not be sufficient to sustain our business.

A significant amount of our revenues comes from a few customers and any decrease in revenues from these
customers could significantly impact our financial results.

Historically we have been, and we expect to continue to be, dependent on a relatively small number of
customers for a significant portion of our total revenues. Sales to Kanematsu Devices Corporation, SMS Electronics,
Ltd., Weikeng Industrial Co., and Fujitsu-Siemens Computers Gmbh represented 15%, 12%, 12% and 10% of total
revenues for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004, respectively. Sales to Siemens Communications Ltd., Kanematsu
Devices Corporation and Micro Network Korea Co, Ltd. represented 24%, 17% and 10% of our total revenues for
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003, respectively. Sales to Prediwave Corporation and Motorola Broadband
accounted for approximately 62% and 14% of our total revenues for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002,
respectively. We may not be able to retain our largest customers or to obtain additional key accounts. Any reduction
or delay in sales of our products to any key customer or our inability to successfully develop relationships with
additional key customers could negatively impact our financial results,

Our operating expenses may increase as we build our business and these increased expenses may impact our
ability to become profitable.

We have made substantial expenditures on research and development and organizational infrastructure
consisting of an executive team, finance, sales, marketing and management information systems departments and
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our design center located in the People’s Republic of China. For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002, research and development expenses represented 295%, 402% and 107% of our revenues, respectively. We
expect to continue to spend financial and other resources on developing and introducing new products and services,
and on our research and development activities in China. While we have implemented actions to reduce our
operating expenses, our operating expenses may increase as a percentage of revenues if our revenues decline. If
our revenues do not increase, our business and results of operations could suffer. We base our expense levels in
part on our expectations regarding future revenues. If our revenues for a particular quarter are lower than we expect,
we may be unable to proportionately reduce our operating expenses for that quarter.

Customers may cancel or defer significant purchase orders, or our distributors may return our products,
which would cause our inventory levels to increase and our revenues to decline.

We sell our products on a purchase order basis through our direct sales channel, sales representatives and
distributors, and our customers may cancel or defer purchase orders at any time with little or no penalty. We
recognize revenues from sales to our distributors when they have sold our products to their customers. We recognize
revenues on sales to our OEM customers when we ship our products to the OEM. We permit certain of our
distributors to return products to us. If our customers cancel or defer significant purchase orders or our distributors
return our products, our inventories would increase and our revenues would decrease, which would materially harm
our business as increases in inventory reserves could be required. Refusal of OEM customers to accept shipped
products or delays or difficulties in collecting accounts receivable could have an adverse effect on our business.

Because of our long product development process and sales cycle, we incur substantial expenses before we
generate revenues and may not recover our expenditures.

To develop market acceptance of our products, we must dedicate significant resources to research and
development, production and sales and marketing. We develop products based on forecasts of demand and we incur
substantial product development expenditures prior to generating associated revenues. Our customers typically
perform numerous tests and extensively evaluate our products before incorporating them into their systems. The
~ time required for testing, evaluating and designing our products info a customer’s equipment can take up to nine
months or more, with an additional three to nine months or more before an OEM customer commences volume
- production of equipment incorporating our products, if ever. Because of this lengthy development cycle, we may
experience a delay between the time we accrue expenses for research and development and sales and marketing
efforts and the time when we generate revenues, if any.

Furthermore, achieving a design win with a customer does not necessarily mean that this customer will order
large volumes of our products. A design win is not a binding commitment by a customer to purchase our products.
Rather, it is a decision by a customer to use our products in the design process. In addition, our customers can choose
at any time to discontinue using our products in that customer’s designs or product development efforts. If our
products are chosen to be incorporated into a customer’s products, we may still not realize significant revenues
from that customer if that customer’s products are not commercially successful. As a result, our profitability from
quarter to quarter and from year to year may be materially affected by the number and timing of our new product
introductions in any period and the level of acceptance gained by these products.

If we fail to successfully develop, introduce and sell new products, we may be unable to effectively compete
in the future.

We operate in a highly competitive, quickly changing environment marked by new and emerging products
and technologies. Our success depends on our ability to develop, introduce and successfully market new products
and enhance our existing products in the advanced television and emerging interactive display markets. The
development of these new products is highly complex and, from time to time, we have experienced delays in
completing their development and introduction. Any one of the following factors could affect our ability to develop,
introduce and sell new products and could materially harm our business:

e our failure to complete new product designs in a timely manner;

¢ our inability to manufacture our new products according to design specifications;
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e our inability to deliver our products to our customers in a timely manner for any reason, including a
lack of manufacturing capacity or the failure of our contracted foundries to meet targeted manufacturing
yields; and

¢ our sales force’s and independent distributors’ inability to create adequate demand for our products.
Our future operating results are likely to fluctnate and may fail to meet expectations which could cause our
stock price to decline.

Our operating results have varied in the past and are likely to do so in the future as we attempt to meet consumer
demand in the markets for advanced televisions and emerging interactive displays. Our future operating results will
depend on many factors and may fail to meet our expectations for a number of reasons. Any failure to meet these
expectations or those of securities analysts and investors could cause our stock price to fluctuate or decline
significantly. A number of factors, including those listed below, may cause fluctuations in our operating results and
stock price:

» the general condition of the semiconductor industry market;

¢ fluctuations in the volume of product sales, changes in product mix and pricing concessions on sales;
¢ the timing, rescheduling or cancellation of significant customer orders;

e the timing of investments in, and the results of, research and development;

¢ changes in industry standards;

e introduction of interactive television services by service providers;

e availability of manufacturing capacity and raw materials, and inventory write-offs;

e product introductions and price changes by our competitors;

e our ability to specify, develop, introduce and market new products with smaller geometries, more features
and higher levels of design integration in accordance with design reqguirements and design cycles;

» the level of orders received that can be shipped in a given period;
¢ changes in earning estimates or investment recommendations by analysts;
e changes in investors perceptions; and

e the effect of the terrorist attacks in the United States and any related conflicts or similar events worldwide.

Qur industry is highly competitive, and we cannot assure you that we will be able to effectively compete.

The market for advanced televisions and emerging interactive displays in particular, and the semiconductor
industry in general, are highly competitive. We compete with a number of domestic and international suppliers of
semiconductors in our targeted markets. We expect competition to intensify as current competitors expand their
product offerings and new competitors enter our targeted markets. We believe that we must compete on the basis
of a variety of factors, including:

¢ functionality;
e performance;
e time to market;

* price;

conformity to industry standards;
* product road maps; and

e technical support.
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We currently compete with AT Technologies, Inc., Broadcom Corporation, Genesis Microchip, Inc.,
Pixelworks, Inc., Trident Microsystems, Inc. and Silicon Image, Inc. In addition to these competitors, we expect
other major semiconductor manufacturers will enter our targeted markets as the broadband set-top box, advanced
television and information access device markets become more established. A number of companies, including
International Business Machines Corporation, STMicroelectronics N.V., National Semiconductor Corporation,
Equator Technologies, Inc., LSI Logic and Philips Electronics N.V., have announced that they are developing or
plan to introduce competing products in the advanced television and emerging interactive display markets which
could result in significant competition.

Some of our current and potential competitors operate their own fabrication facilities or have a longer operating
history and significantly greater financial, sales and marketing resources. They may also have preexisting
relationships with our customers or potential customers. As a result, these competitors may be able to adapt more
quickly to new or emerging products, develop new technologies, or address changes in customer requirements or
devote greater resources to the development and promotion of strategic relationships among themselves or with
existing or potential customers. It is possible that new competitors or alliances among competitors could emerge
and rapidly acquire significant market share. Increased competition could harm our business, results of operations
and financial condition by, for example, increasing pressure on our profit margin or causing us to lose sales
opportunities.

We depend on three independent foundries to manufacture our products based on our forecasts, which could
result in an oversupply or undersupply of products.

We do not own or operate our own fabrication facility. We currently depend upon three outside foundries,
United Manufacturing Corporation, or UMC, Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation, or TSMC, both
are located in Taiwan and HuaHong NEC in the People’s Republic of China. We do not have long term supply
agreements with these foundries to manufacture our semiconductor products and each has limited manufacturing
capacity.

The foundries require us to provide forecasts of our anticipated manufacturing orders in advance of receiving
purchase orders from our customers. This may result in product shortages or excess product inventory. Obtaining
additional supply in the face of product shortages may be costly or not possible, especially in the short term. Our
failure to adequately forecast demand for our products would materially harm our business. For example, in fiscal
--2002 we took an inventory charge related to slow moving inventory. The foundries may allocate capacity to the
production of other companies’ products while reducing delivery to us on short notice,

We may encounter periods of semiconductor oversupply, resulting in pricing pressure, as well as
undersupply, resulting in a risk that we could be unable to fulfill our customers’ requirements.

The semiconductor industry has historically been characterized by wide fluctuations in the demand for, and
supply of, its products. These fluctuations have resulted in circumstances when supply and demand for the industry’s
products have been widely out of balance. Our operating results may be materially harmed by industry wide
semiconductor oversupply, which could result in severe pricing pressure or inventory write-downs. For example,
in fiscal 2002 we took a charge for slow moving inventory, which negatively impacted our gross margin for fiscal
2002. On the other hand, in'a market with undersupply, we would have to compete with larger companies for limited
manufacturing capacity. If material shortages occur, we may incur additional costs to procure the scarce components
or be unable 10 have our products manufactured in a timely manner or in quantities necessary to meet our
requirements. Since we outsource all of our manufacturing, we are particularly vulnerable to supply shortages. As
aresult, we may be unable to fill orders and may lose customers. Any future industry wide oversupply or undersupply
of semiconductors would materially harm our business and have a negative impact on our earnings.

If we have to qualify new independent foundries for any of our products and do not have sufficient supply
of our products on hand, we may lose revenues and damage our customer relationships.

Processes used to manufacture our products are complex, customized to our specifications and can only be
performed by a limited number of manufacturing facilities. The foundries we use have from time to time experienced
lower than anticipated manufacturing yields, particularly in connection with the introduction of new products and
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the installation and start up of new process technologies. In addition, the foundries we use are located in a seismically
active area, and earthquakes have caused these foundries to close for repairs, resulting in a delay in manufacturing
our products.

Although we primarily utilize two independent foundries, most of our components are not manufactured at
both foundries at any given time. The inability of one of the foundries to provide components could result in
significant delays and harm our business. In the event either foundry experienced manufacturing or financial
difficulties or suffered any damage or destruction to its facilities, or in the event of any other disruption of foundry
capacity, we may not be able to qualify alternative manufacturing sources for existing or new products in a timely
manner. For example, in September 1999, Taiwan experienced a major earthquake. The earthquake and its resulting
aftershocks caused power outages and significant damage to Taiwan’s infrastructure. Similarly, in September 2001,
a typhoon hit Taiwan causing businesses in Taipei and the financial markets to close for two days. In addition, as
a result of the rapid growth of the semiconductor industry based in the industrial park where both foundries are
located, severe constraints have been placed on the water and electricity supply in that region. Any shortages of
water or electricity or a natural disaster could adversely affect these foundries’ ability to supply our products, which
could have a material adverse effect on our operating results.

Even our current outside foundries would need to have manufacturing processes qualified in the event of a
disruption at the other foundry, which we may not be able to accomplish in a timely manner sufficient to prevent
an interruption in the supply of the affected products. We cannot assure you that any existing or new foundries
would be able to produce integrated circuits with acceptable manufacturing yields in the future, or will continue
to have sufficient capacity to meet our needs. If our manufacturing requirements are not satisfied, our business would
be materially harmed.

Our semiconductors are complex to manufacture and may have errors or defects which could be costly to
correct,

The manufacture of semiconductors is a complex process. Foundries may not achieve acceptable product yields
from time to time due to the complexity of the integrated circuit design, inadequate manufacturing processes and
other reasons, We refer to the proportion of final acceptable integrated circuits that have been processed, assembled
and tested relative to the gross number of integrated circuits that could have been produced from the raw materials
as our product yields. Identifying defects and determining the reason for low yields may be discovered after
production has begun and at various stages of the production cycle. Our failure to discover defects early in the
production cycle will result in higher costs and may require a diversion of our technical personnel and resources
away from product development in order to correct the defect. In addition, defective products that have been released
into the market and distributed to our customers and end users may result in harm to our reputation, significant
warranty costs, diversion of our technical and managerial resources and potential product liability claims that would
be costly to defend.

Our software is complex and may have bugs or defects which could be costly to correct.

Our products depend on complex software that we develop internally and license from others. Complex
software often contains defects, particularly when first introduced or when new versions are released. Determining
whether our software has defects may occur after our products are released into the market and distributed to our
customers and end users, and may result in harm to our reputation, significant warranty costs, diversion of our
technical resources and potential product liability claims that would be costly to defend and divert managerial
resources.

We face foreign business, political and economic risks because a majority of our sales are to customers outside
of the United States.

Sales of our products to our OEM customers and to distributors located outside the United States accounted
for 76%, 86% and 32% of our total revenues in fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002. We anticipate that sales to
customers located outside the United States will continue to represent a significant portion of our total sales in future
periods. In addition, many of our domestic customers sell their products outside of North America, thereby indirectly
exposing us to risks associated with foreign commerce. Asian economic instability impacts the sales of products
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manufactured by our customers, as does the Chinese New Year, during which time many manufacturers and
businesses close their operations. We may be negatively impacted by the terrorist attacks on the United States and
the resulting conflicts worldwide. We could also experience greater difficulties collecting accounts receivable from
customers outside of the United States. Accordingly, our operations and revenues are subject to a number of risks
associated with foreign commerce.

To date, we have denominated sales of our products in foreign countries exclusively in United States dollars,
As aresult, any increase in the value of the United States dollar relative to the local currency of a foreign country
will increase the price of our products in that country so that our products become relatively more expensive to
customers in the local currency of that foreign country. As a result, sales of our products in that foreign country
may decline. To the extent any of these types of risks materialize, our business would be materially harmed.

If the industries into which we sell our products experience recession or other cyclical effects impacting our
customers’ budgets, our operating results could be negatively impacted.

The primary customers for our products are companies in the advanced television and emerging display device
markets. Any significant downturn in these particular markets or in general economic conditions which result in
the cutback of research and development budgets or capital expenditures would likely result in the reduction in
demand for our products and services and could harm our business. For example, the United States economy,
including the semiconductor industry, has experienced a recession, which has negatively impact our business and
operating results. A further decline in the United States economy could result from further terrorist attacks in the
United States. If the economy continues to decline as a result of the recent economic, political and social turmoil,
existing and perspective customers may continue to reduce their design budgets or delay implementation of our
products, which could further harm our business and operating resuits.

In addition, the markets of semiconductor products are cyclical. In recent years, some Asian countries have
experienced significant economic difficulties, including devaluation and instability business failures and a depressed
business environment. These difficulties triggered a significant downturn in the semiconductor market, resulting
in reduced budgets for chip design tools. In addition, the electronics industry has historically been subject to seasonal
and cyclical fluctuations in demand for its products, and this trend may continue in the future. These industry
downturns have been, and my continue to be, characterized by diminished product demand, excess manufacturing
capacity and subsequent erosion of average selling prices. As a result, our future operating results may reflect
substantial fluctuations from period to period as a consequence of these industry patterns, general economic
conditions affecting the timing of orders from customers and other factors. Any negative factors affecting the
semiconductor industry, including the downturns described here, could significantly harm our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

The rapid growth of our business and operations has strained and may continue to strain our administrative,
operational and financial resources, and our failure to manage our future growth could affect our operations
and our future ability to expand.

We have in the past and may in the future experience rapid growth and expansion in our business and operations,
Our growth has placed, and may continue to place, a significant strain on our administrative, operational and
financial resources and increased demands on our systems and controls. Our future growth may require the
implementation of a variety of new and upgraded operational and financial systems, procedures and controls,
including improvement of our accounting and other internal management systems, all of which may require
substantial managerial effort. We cannot assure you that these efforts would be accomplished successfully. Our
growth has resulted in a continuing increase in the level of responsibility for both existing and new management
personnel, and may require that we recruit, hire and train a substantial number of new personnel. Our failure to
manage our past and future growth could prevent us from successfully achieving market acceptance for our products,
disrupt our operations, delay our expansion and harm our business.

We depend on key personnel, the loss of whom would impair or inhibit the growth of our business.

Our success depends on the skills, experience and performance of our executive officers and other key
management and technical personnel, many of whom would be difficult to replace. We are particularly dependent
on Eli Porat, our Chief Executive Officer and President. The competition for employees with technical skills is
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intense, particularly in the San Francisco Bay Area, and we may not be able to attract and retain a sufficient number
of such qualified new personnel in the future. The loss of the service of one or more of our key employees, or our
failure to attract, retain and motivate qualified personnel would inhibit the growth of our business.

We rely on strategic relationships to commercialize our products, and these relationships may require that
we expend significant resources without guarantees that our endeavors will he profitable.

We rely on strategic relationships with some of our customers who we believe are the market leaders in our
target markets. These relationships often involve the proposed development by us of new products involving
significant technological challenges. Since the proposed products under development may offer potential
competitive advantages to our customers, considerable pressure is frequently placed on us to meet development
schedules. While an essential element of our strategy involves establishing such relationships, these projects require
substantial amounts of our limited resources, with no guarantee of revenues to us, and could materially detract from
or delay the completion of other important development projects. Delays in development could impair the
relationship between our customers and us and negatively impact sales of the products under development.
Moreaver, our customers may develop their own solutions for products currently supplied by us, which could have
an adverse effect on our business.

We depend on third party subcontractors for assembly of our semiconductors which reduces our control
over the delivery, quantity, quality, or cost of our products.

Substantially all of our products are assembled by one of three subcontractors, two of which are located in
Taiwan, and one in Shanghai, People’s Republic of China. Typically, we procure services from these subcontractors
on a purchase order basis. Their availability to assemble our products could be adversely affected if either
subcontractor experiences financial difficulties or suffers any damage or destruction to its facilities or any other
disruption of its assembly capacity. Because we rely on third party subcontractors for assembly of our products,
we cannot directly control product delivery schedules. We have experienced in the past, and may experience in
the future, product shortages or quality assurance problems that could increase the cost of manufacturing or testing
of our products. It is time consuming and difficult to find and qualify alternative assemblers. If we are forced to
find substitute subcontractors, shipments of our products could be delayed. Any problems associated with the
delivery, quantity or cost of our products could harm our business.

Political instability in the People’s Republié of China or Taiwan could harm our manufacturing and research
and development capabilities and negatively impact our product sales.

We operate our research and development facility in the People’s Republic of China. In addition, most all of
our products are manufactured and assembled outside of the United States at facilities operated by third parties
in Taiwan. The political and economic conditions in the region, including the People’s Republic of China’s dispute
with Taiwan, may adversely impact our operations including manufacture and assembly of our products and research
and development efforts. We cannot assure you that restrictive laws or policies on the part of either the People’s
Republic of China or the United States will not constrain our ability to operate in both countries. If we are required
to relocate our facilities, our business will be disrupted and our costs associated with research and development
will increase.

If our competitors use our intellectual property and proprietary rights, our ability to compete would be
impaired.

Our success depends in part upon our rights in proprietary technology and processes that we develop and license
from, and to, others. We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, trademark and trade secret laws, as well as
confidentiality agreements with our employees, consultants and strategic partners in order to protect proprietary
technologies that use our products. We cannot assure you that these measures will provide meaningful protection
for our proprietary technologies and processes, and they do not prevent independent third party development of
competitive products. In addition, it is difficult to monitor unauthorized use of technology, particularly in foreign
countries where laws may not protect our proprietary rights as fully as in the United States,

We currently have patent applications pending in the United States, and we may seek additional patents in
the future. Because the content of patent applications in the United States is not publicly disclosed until the patent
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is issued, applications may have been filed which relate to our products or processes. We cannot assure you that
our current patent applications or any future patent applications will result in a patent being issued with the scope
of the claims we seek, if at all, or whether any patents we have or may receive will be challenged or invalidated.
The failure of any patents to provide protection to our technology would make it easier for our competitors to offer
similar products.

We may face intellectual property infringement claims that could be costly and could result in the loss of
proprietary rights which are necessary to our business.

Other parties may assert patent infringement claims. against us, including claims against technology that we
license from others, and our products or processes may infringe issued patents of others. Litigation is common in
the semiconductor industry and any litigation could result in significant expense to us. Litigation would also divert
the efforts of our technical and management personnel, whether or not the litigation is determined in our favor.
Litigation could also require us to develop non-infringing technology or enter into royalty or license agreements.
These royalty or license agreements may not be available on acceptable terms, including limitations on
representations and warranties regarding infringement and indemnification in the event of infringement claims. Our
failure or inability to develop non-infringing technology, license the proprietary rights on a timely basis or receive
appropriate protection on licensed technology would harm our business.

Regulation of our customers’ products may slow the process of introducing new products and could impair
our ability to compete. B

The Federal Communications Commission, or the FCC, has broad jurisdiction over our target markets. Various
international entities or organizations may also regulate aspects of our business or the business of our customers.
Although our products are not directly subject to regulation by any agency, the transmission pipes, as well as much
of the equipment into which our products are incorporated, are subject to direct government regulation. For example,
before they can be sold in the United States, advanced televisions and emerging interactive displays must be tested
and certified by Underwriters Laboratories and meet FCC regulations. Accordingly, the effects of regulation on our
customers or the industries in which our customers operate may, in turn, harm our business. FCC regulatory policies
affecting the ability of cable operators or telephone companies to offer certain services and other terms on which
these companies conduct their business may impede sales of our products. In addition, our business may also be
adversely affected by the imposition of tariffs, duties and other import restrictions on systems of suppliers or by
the imposition of export restrictions on products that we sell internationally. Changes in current laws or regulations
or the imposition of new laws or regulations in the United States or elsewhere could harm our business.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Quantitative and Qualitative Discussion of Market Interest Rate Risk

Our cash equivalents and short-term investments are exposed to financial market risk due to fluctuation in
interest rates, which may affect our interest income and, in the future, the fair market value of our investments.
We manage the exposure to financial market risk by performing ongoing evaluations of our investment portfolio
and we presently invest entirely in short-term investment grade government and corporate securities. These
securities are highly liquid and generally mature within 12 months from the purchase date. Due to the short
maturities of our investments, the carrying value should approximate the fair value. In addition, we do not use our
investments for trading or other speculative purposes. We have performed an analysis to assess the potential effect
of reasonably possible near term changes in interest and foreign currency exchange rates. The effect of any change
in foreign currency exchange rates is not expected to be material to our results of operations, cash flows or financial
condition. Due to the short duration of our investment portfolio, an immediate 10% change in interest rates would
not have a material effect on the fair market value of our portfolio. Therefore, we would not expect our operating
results or cash flows to be affected to any significant degree by the effect of a sudden change in market interest
rates on our securities portfolio.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

We are an international company, selling our products globally and, in particular, in Japan, Korea, the People’s
Republic of China and Taiwan. Although we transact our business in United States dollars, we cannot assure you
that future fluctuations in the value of the United States dollar will not affect the competitiveness of our products,
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gross profits realized, and results of operations. Further, we incur expenses in the People’s Republic of China, Taiwan
and other countries that are denominated in currencies other than United States dollars. We cannot estimate the
effect that an immediate 10% change in foreign currency exchange rates would have on our future operating results
or cash flows as a direct result of changes in exchange rates. However, we do not believe that we currently have
any significant direct foreign currency exchange rate risk and have not hedged exposures denominated in foreign
currencies or any derivative financial instruments.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Tvia, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of
operations, of stockholders’ equity and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Tvia, Inc. and its subsidiary at March 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2004 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
June 14, 2004
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TVIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands)

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ...:..<..... S R
ShOrt term INVESIMENLS . ... ottt et ittt e et e e e tanaanananns
Accounts TeCeivable, Nt ... .. i et e a e
BT T Tt S PN
Prepaid expenses and other current assets..........ccovveiiiieriiiineienniion.

TOtal CUITENE ASSEES .ttt ettt e et ettt ettt ae e eaeneaaenanennas
Property and equipment, M. . .......viuitit ittt
(@1 115 i 10T -

0 P R Ty £

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable ...
ACCTUE BXPEIISES ..ttt ittt ettt e a e
Short-term portion of capital leases ...

Total current Habilities. . .......oeu it e
Long-term portion of capital leases ................ e

Total Habilities. .ot e

Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)

Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 5,000 shares authorized;
NONE OULSTANAING. « o ettt e ettt et et e et
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 125,000 shares authorized; 22,576 and
22,139 shares outstanding, respectively......... ... i
Additional paid-in-capital ...... ... oottt e
Accumulated comprehensive INCOME . ....ovvvviieiii it
Accumulated deficit. ... et e
Treasury SLOCK . ..ot e e i s

Total stockholders’ eqUItY......ovvvuvei e e
~ Total liabilities and stockholders’ eqUALY .. ......o.iiii it

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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March 31,

2004 2003
$ 3,259 $ 11,080
23,947 - 13,337
295 331
602 1,055
_ 1,241 4
29,344 26,214
1,947 3,209
112 _ 1770
$ 31,403 $ 31,193
$ 201 $ 351
657 1,175
__ 486 ___ 415
1,344 1,941
- = 486
1,344 2427
23 22
92,798 92,444
8 6
(62,020} (62,956)
(7503 (750)
30,059 28,766
$ 31,403 $ 31,193
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TVIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002
Revenues:
Product $ales .. ... e $ 2,042 $ 1,771 $ 11,342
Development contracts and other.................cooiii, 267 461 498
Total TeVenUeS . ...ooveei 2,309 2,232 11,840
Cost of revenues:
Product sales (excluding amortization of deferred
compensation of $0, $9 and $19, respectively) ............. 1,235 1,460 8,522
Development contracts and other.....................cooooaet. 88 83 109
Total cost Of reVenUES ... vr vttt e 1,323 1,543 8,631
GTOSS PrOfit. ..ttt 986 689 3,209

Operating expenses:
Research and development (excluding amortization of
deferred stock compensation of $0, $155 and $590,
FESPECHIVEIY) oottt e 6,823 8,983 12,664
Sales, general and administrative (excluding amortization of
deferred stock compensation of $0, $431and $963,

respectively) . ... i 2,667 3,545 5,056
Amortization of deferred stock compensation ................. — 595 1,572
Restructuring charges ... — 950 —
Total Operating €Xpenses .. .. .oouiiiieeiieiirinieeaniarennes 9,490 14,073 19,292

Operating 10ss ...t (8,504) (13,384) (16,083)

Other income (expense), net:
Interest IMCOMIE. .. ve vttt 401 703 1,818
Interest eXpense .. ..ot (1D (14) —
Sale of software business .............cooiiiiiiiii i, 9,075 — —
Other income (EXPense), NEt.....couveiirieeirnrrienneeinnns 9,465 689 1,818
Income (loss) before income taxes..........covciiiviiiiiinn.... 961 (12,695) (14,265)
Provision for inCOME taXes .......ovivveeiiierinieneiennnnn.s, 25 — —
Net income (10S8). .o vvnn et ettt $ 936 $(12,695) $(14,265)
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share:................... $ 0.04 $ (0.58) $ (0.66)
Shares used in computing basic net income (10ss)............... 22,323 21,952 21,631
Shares used in computing diluted net income (loss) ............. 23,982 21,952 21,631

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TVIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
. .CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(In thousands, except share data) -

Accumulated
_Common Stock _ Aqdditional ~ Deferred Other
Par Paid-in Stock Comprehensive Accumulated Treasury Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital Compensation Income Deficit Stock Equity

Balance at March 31, 2001........ 21,853,833  $22 $92,075 $(2,167) $ 148 $(35,996) $(660) $ 53,422
Amortization of deferred stock

compensation. . ............... —_ — —_ 1,572 — — — 1,572
Issuance of common stock under

ESPP and through exercises of

stock options .. ............... 307,915 — 313 — — —_ — 313
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale

investments .................. — — — — (117 —_ — 117
Netloss .......coooviviiaiol. - = — — — (14,265) — (14,265}
Balance at March 31, 2002........ 22,161,748 22 92,388 (595) 31 (50,261) (660) 40,925
Amortization of deferred stock

compensation................. — — — 595 — — — 595
Purchase of treasury stock ........ (143,7000 — — — — — (90) (90)
Repurchase of common stock. . . ... (93,691) — (14) — —_ — — 14)
Issuance of common stock under

ESPP and through exercises of

stock options . ................ 238,865 — 70 — — — — 70
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale

investments .................. — _— — — (25) — — (25)
Netloss ..oovvviiiienaen, - - — — — (12,695) — (12,695)
Balance at March 31,-2003........ 22,163,222 22 92,444 — 6 (62,956) (750) 28,766
Issuance of common stock under -

ESPP and through exercises of

stock options . ................ 412,767 1 354 — — — — 355
Unrealized gain on available-for-

sale investments. .............. — — —_ — 2 — —_ 2
Netincome...........cooeveven.. - = — — — 936 — 936
Balance at March 31, 2004........ 22,575,989 323 $92,798 3 — $ 8 $(62,020)  $(750)  $ 30,059

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TVIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net Income (108S) v viveirerii et
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization............................
Amortization of deferred stock compensation ............
Write-down of license technology...............o.ooot
Gain on sale of software unit ............................
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable ... o
INVeNtories. . ... e it
Prepaid expenses and other current assets .............
Accounts payable............ooo
Accrued EXPENSES. . .vv vttt

Net cash used in operating activities ................

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Sale (purchase) of available-for-sale investments..............
Proceeds from sale of software unit...........................
Purchase of property and equipment ...................oooe,
Purchase of intangible assets.............coooiiiine,

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities. .

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Repayments of obligations under capital leases ...............
Proceeds from issuance of common stock.....................
Treasury stock repurchase...........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinain.

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities. .

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ............
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ...............

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period......................

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Interest paid...... ..o

Acquisition of property and equipment under capital leases. ..

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Year Ended March 31,

(10,608)
8,373
(92)
(44)
(2,371)

(415)
355

(60)
(7.821)
11,080

$ 3.259

$ 11
$ _—

2003 2002

$(12,695) $(14,265)
1,312 1,091
595 1,572

69 500

(167) 1,777

455 2,833

851 90
(340) (441)
(596) (1,110)
(10,516) (7,953)
15,698 (3,762)
(366) (2,062)
Q7 (1,358)
15,305 (7,182)
(120) —

56 313

90 —
(154) 313
4,635 (14,822)
6,445 21,267

$ 11,080 $ 6,445
$ 14 $ —
$ 1,021 $  —




TVIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Business

Tvia, Inc. (“the Company” or “Tvia”) was incorporated in California in March 1993 and reincorporated as
a Delaware corporation in August 2000. Tvia designs, develops and markets multi-media display processors for
- the advanced television and emerging interactive display markets. The Company’s products, which consist of
integrated circuits and proprietary software, process video, graphics and andio signals from terrestrial broadcast,
narrow band telephone lines, cable, satellite and Ethernet and blend them together on one or more displays for a
high quality, customized and interactive viewing experience. The Company sells its multi-media display processors
to manufacturers of advanced television and emerging interactive displays. The Company has a subsidiary in the
People’s Republic of China that supports the Company’s research and development activities and performs product
testing and sales and marketing functions.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates, and such differences could be material and affect the results of operations reported in
future periods.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements herein presented include the results and financial position of Tvia and
its wholly-owned subsidiary in China. The functional currency of the Chinese subsidiary is the U.S. dollar;
accordingly, all gains and losses arising from foreign currency transactions in currencies other than the U.S. dollar
are included in the consolidated statements of operations. All intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Short-Term [nvestments

The Company considers all highly liquid investment securities with original maturities of three months or less
from the date of purchase to be cash and cash equivalents. Management determines the appropriate classification
of short-term investments at the time of purchase and evaluates such designations as of each balance sheet date.
To date, all short-term investments have been classified as available-for-sale and are carried at fair value with
unrealized gains and losses, if any, included as a component of accumulated comprehensive loss in stockholders’
equity, net of any related tax effects. Interest, dividends and realized gains and losses are included in other expense
(income) 1n the consolidated statements of operations.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market and include materials, labor and
overhead. Allowances when required are made to reduce excess inventories to their estimated net realizable values.
Due to competitive pressures and technological innovation, it is possible that estimates of net realizable value would
change in the near term.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method over the assets’
estimated useful life of two to five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the asset life
or the remaining lease term. Management has determined asset lives based on their historical experience of technical
obsolescence of equipment and the short life of tooling that is specific to certain product families.
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TVIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2, Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles for impairment. The Company
reviews assets to be held and used whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of a long-lived asset may not be recoverable. The Company measures recoverability of assets by comparing their
carrying amount to the future undiscounted cash flows that they are expected to generate. If an asset is considered
to be impaired, the impairment reflects the amount by which the carrying value of the asset exceeds its fair market
value. The Company wrote off $1.5 million of licensed technology in the third quarter of fiscal year 2004.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from product sales upon shiprent to the original equipment manufacturers,
or OEMs, and end users provided that persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the price is fixed or
determinable, title has transferred, collection of resulting receivables is reasonably assured, there are no customer
acceptance requirements, and there are no remaining significant obligations. Reserves for sales returns and
allowances are recorded at the time of shipment. Our sales to distributors are made under agreements allowing for
returns or credits under certain circumstances. The Company defers recognition of revenue on sales to distributors
until products are resold by the distributor to the end user. The Company warrants its products; warranty claims
historically have been insignificant.

The Company also sells software development kits and application modules to OEMs. The Company
recognizes sales of software development kits and application modules when an agreement has been executed or
a definitive purchase order has been received and the product has been delivered, no significant obligations with
regard to implementation remain, the fee is fixed and determinable and collectibility is probable. The maintenance
portion of the arrangements is recognized over the maintenance period on a straight-line basis.

Software Development Costs

The Company accounts for software development costs in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 86, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software to be Sold, Leased or Otherwise
Marketed.” The Company has expensed all software development costs to date as substantially all of such
development costs have been incurred prior to the Company’s products attaining technological feasibility.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses consist primarily of salaries and related costs of employees engaged in
research, design and development activities. The Company expenses all research and development related expenses
in the period in which such expenses are incurred.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for on-the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred income taxes
are recognized based on the estimated future tax effects of differences between the financial and tax basis of assets
and liabilities under the provision of enacted tax laws. The effects of deferred taxes of a change in tax rate is
recognized in the period that includes the enactment date. Valuation allowances are established when necessary
to reduce deferred taxes to the amounts expected to be realized.
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TVIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the change in equity during a period from transactions and events
from non-owner sources. The primary component of comprehensive income (loss) for the Company includes
unrealized gains and losses are disclosed in the Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ equity. A summary of
comprehensive gain (loss) is as follows (in thousands):

For the Year Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002
Net 1n60mE (10SS) ... v v vt ettt et e e $936 $(12,695) $(14,265)
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale investments . ... 2 (25) (17
Comprehensive income (1088). .. ..voiiiviiiiiiiniinnnenenns $938 $(12,720) $(14,382)

Stock-Based Comperisation

The Company accounts for stock-based employee compensation arrangements using the intrinsic value method
as prescribed in Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB
No. 25”) and Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 44 “Accounting for Certain Transactions
Involving Stock Compensation” (FIN 44). Accordingly, compensation cost for stock options is measured as the
excess, if any, of the fair value of the Company’s stock at the date of grant over the stock option exercise price.
Expense associated with stock-based compensation is amortized on an accelerated basis over the vesting period
of the individual award consistent with the method described in Financial Accounting Standards Board
Interpretation No. 28 (“FIN 28”). The Company accounts for stock issued to non-employees in accordance with
the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation” (“SFAS No. 123”) and Emerging Issues Task Force Consensus No. 96-18, “Accounting for Equity
Instruments that are offered to other than employees for acquiring or in conjunction with selling goods or services”
(“EITF 96-18™). Under SFAS No. 123 and EITF 96-18, stock option awards issued to non-employees are accounted
for at their fair value, determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing method. The fair value of each non-
employee stock option or award is remeasured at each period end until a commitment date is reached, which is
generally the vesting date. The following table illustrates the effect on net income (loss) and earnings per share
if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, to the stock-based employee
compensation. ‘

For the Year Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands, except per share data)
Net income (loss) as reported. .........covoeiniiinniienn.. $ 936 $(12,695) $(14,265)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense
included in reported net income (1oss) ...........c....o.. — 595 1,572
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under fair value based method for all
awards, net of related tax effects......................... (1,315) (2,195) (3,765)
Pro forma net income (10SS) .......coovviiiin i $ (379 $(14,295) $(16,458)
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share: .............
AS TEPOTTEA . ...\ttt ettt e e e $ 0.04 $ (0.58) $ (0.66)
Proforma..........ooii $ (0.02) $ (0.65) $ (0.76)

Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Historical net income (loss) per share has been calculated in accordance with the Financial Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 128, “Earnings Per Share.” Basic net income (loss) per share is computed using
the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding. Diluted income (loss) per share information
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TVIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

is the same as basic net income (loss) per share since common shares issuable upon conversion of stock options
and warrants are antidilutive.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities” (“FIN 46”), was issued in January 2003. FIN 46 requires that if an entity is the primary beneficiary of
a variable interest entity, the assets, liabilities, and results of operations of the variable interest entity should be
included in the consolidated financial statements of the entity. The provisions of FIN 46 are effective immediately
for all arrangements entered into after January 31, 2003. For those arrangements entered into prior to February 1,
2003, the provisions of FIN 46 were required to be adopted at the beginning of the first interim or annual period
beginning after June 15, 2003. However, in October 2003, the FASB deferred the effective date of FIN 46 to the
end of the first interim or annual period ending after December 31, 2003 for those arrangements entered into prior
to February 1, 2003. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In May 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 150, “Accounting
for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity”. SFAS No. 150 establishes
standards for how an issuer classifies and measures certain financial instruments with characteristics of both
liabilities and equity. SFAS No. 150 requires that an issuer classify a financial instrument that is within its scope
as a liability (or an asset in some circumstances). SFAS No. 150 is effective for financial instruments entered into
or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning
after June 15, 2003. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

3. Balance Sheet Components (in thousands)

March 31, March 31,

2004 2003
Accounts receivable, net:
ACCOUNES TECEIVADIE . ... i ettt e $ 298 $ 381
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts. ..... et 3 (50)

$ 295 % 331

Allowance for doubful accounts:

Balance at beginning of the year........................oo L $ S50 § 112
AddItion L. i e e 15 8
Utihized .o e e (62) (70)
Balance at end of the year ........... ...t e $ 3 % 50
Short-term investments:
U.S. government and agency SeCUTtIes. .........vvivinnierinineenereennn., $ 6000 $ 2810
U.S. corporate and bank debt ...............coo 17,947 10,527
$23,947  $13,337
Inventories:
Raw Materials. . ... oui ettt et it $ 165 $ 446
034G ¢ {1 42 3
Finished goods. ... ... 395 606
$§ 602 § 1,055
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TVIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3, Balance Sheet Components (in thousands) (Continued)
March 31, March 31,

2004 2003
Property and equipment, net:
Furniture and fixtures (Useful life of two years) ...........oovvieiiiiin.t. $ 39 $ 85
Machinery and equipment (Useful life of two to five years) ............... 2,775 3,158
Software (Useful life of two to five years)...........oooieiiiiiiiiiinnn, 2,851 3,713
5,665 6,956
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization.......................... (3,718) (3,747)

$ 1,947 $ 3,209

Other assets:

License technology (Amortized over five years).............c.oiieen. $ B8l $ 1,969
Less: AMOITIZAtion .. ...oeo e ettt e e e [€))] (231)
License technology, Net .......ooi i - 80 1,738
D POSIES. . et e 32 32

§ 112 $ 1,770

As aresult of a recent change in the Company’s product focus, the Company wrote oft a licensed technology
which had a cost of $1.9 million and accumulated amortization of $0.4 million.

Accrued expenses:

Accrued COMPENSALION COSES ... .uuuun ettt e et et e et neinnns $ 42t $ 593
Accrued software maintenanCe .......vrvive ittt i, 13 99
16 1171 223 483

$ 657 $1.175

4. Short-term Investments

The value of the Company’s investments by major security type is as follows:

As of March 31, 2004

Amortized Aggregate Unrealized
Cost Fair Value Gain
(In thousands)
U.S. government and agency securities............ $ 6,000 $ 6,000 $—
U.S. corporate and bank debt...................... 17,939 17,947 )
Total. .o $23,939 $23,947 $_____8
As of March 31, 2003
Amortized Aggregate Unrealized
Cost Fair Value _ Gain__
({In thousands)
U.S. government and agency securities ............ § 2,806 $ 2,810 $4
U.S. corporate and bank debt...................... 10,525 10,527 2
Total. .o e $13,331 $13,337 &
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TVIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. Sale of Software Business and Software-Related Assets

On July 3, 2003, the Company sold its software business and software-related assets to MediaTek, Inc for $10.0
million. The software assets were developed internally to support the Company’s products, including Home IT,
advanced digital video broadcasting, MPEG 4 software, SDK software and software drivers. The development costs
related to the software assets were expensed as incurred. Under the agreement, MediaTek granted to the Company
a royalty-free license to continue to use those software assets to support its existing products and fulfill its
maintenance obligations to its existing customers. The Company reportéd a gain of $9.1 million from this transaction
in the results of operations in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004, At March 31, 2004, $750,000 was in an escrow
account and was received in April 2004.

6. Restructuring Charges

During fiscal 2003, the Company recorded a restructuring charge of $950,000 relating to a headcount reduction
and an operating lease for an abandoned building. The restructuring was recorded to align the cost structure with
changing market conditions. The plan resulted in headcount reduction of approximately 49 employees, which was
made up of 55% of research and development staff, 23% of operations staff, 16% of general and administrative
staff and 6% of sales and marketing staff. The charge in relation to the operating lease of the abandoned building
represents the estimated difference between the total non-discounted future sublease income and the non-discounted
lease commitments relating to this building.

The following table summarizes the activity associated with the restructuring liabilities (in thousands):

License Leased Severances

Technology Facilities and Benefits _Total

Balance at March 31, 2002......... $ — $ — $ — $§ —
AdditionS . ........ooiiiiiii, 69 162 719 950
Non-cash charges................... (69) — — 69)
Cash charges ....................... — (139) 719 (858)
Balance at March 31, 2003 ......... — 23 — 23
Cash charges ....................... — (23) — —
$ — — $ — $§ —

Balance at March 31,2004..........

|

|

7. Income Taxes

The Company recorded a provision of $25,000 for Federal alternative minimum tax and none for state and
foreign income taxes in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004. There were no provisions for income taxes in the
fiscal years ended March 31, 2003 and 2002.

The components of the net deferred income tax asset were as follows:

March 31,
2004 2003
(in thousands)

Net OPETating 1OSSES ... e ettt ettt e e a e e $ 16,073 § 16,052
Reserves and accruals not deductible for tax purposes................. e 977 1,208
Available tax credit carryforwards ..ol 2,784 2,512
Other timing differences..... ..ot e 1,870 1,775

21,704 21,547
Valuation allowance ...........c i s (21,704)  (21,547)
Net deferred tAX @SSEL. ... .uuuuett ettt e e e e $ — § —
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TVIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7. Income Taxes (Continued)

At March 31, 2004, the Company had net cumulative operating loss carryforwards for federal and state income
tax reporting purposes of approximately $44 million and $16 million, respectively. The federal net operating loss
carryforwards expire on various dates through 2024. The state net operating loss carryforwards expire on various
dates through 2014, As of March 31, 2004, the Company had federal and state research and development tax credit
carryforwards of approximately $1.5 million and $1.6 million, respectively, available to offset future taxes.
Utilization of net operating losses may be subject to annual limitations due to ownership change limitations imposed
by the Internal Revenue Service and similar state provisions. A valuation allowance has been recorded for the entire
deferred tax asset as a result of uncertainty regarding the realization of the asset balance due to the net losses incurred
and lack of taxable income.

The China subsidiary of the Company has been granted a full exemption from Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”)
in accordance with the China Law of Enterprise Income Tax, for the first two years and a 50% reduction in EIT
for the next three years, commencing from the first profitable year after offsetting all tax losses carried forward
(available for carry forward for a maximum of five years). As of March 31, 2004, no EIT was payable.

The difference between the actual tax provision (benefit) and the amount obtained by applying the U.S. Federal
statutory rate to income (loss) before provision for income taxes (benefit) is as follows:

March 31,

2004 2003
Tax provision (benefit) at statutory rate............c.oooenvieaen.. e 34.0% (34.0%)
Net operating losses not currently benefited ......................oooL 0.0% 33.8%
Valuation alloWance .. ...ttt i i 25.4% (1.5%)
BT L 3.6% 1.7%
Utilization of net operating l0SSes ... ... ..ot (60.2%) 0.0%

2.8% 0.0%

8. Earnings per Share

The following table presents the calculation of basic and diluted net loss per share (in thousands, except per
share data):

Year Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002

Net in€ome (J0SS) .« . vvnerir ettt e $ 936 $(12,695)  $(14,265)
Basic and diluted:

Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding .... 22,340 22,053 21,925

Less: Weighted average shares of common stock subject to

repurchase .........oooiiiiiii i an (101) (294

Weighted average shares used in computing basic net income

(oss) pershare . ... 22,323 21,952 21,631
Diluted effect of common share equivalents .................. 1,659 — —
Weighted average shares used in computing diluted net ‘

income (loss) per share .......c.cooiiiviriiiiiiiineianennn. 23,982 21,952 21,631
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share.................. $ 004 $ (0.58) $ (0.66)
Options and warrants excluded from the computation Of o

diluted net income (loss) per share ......................... 1,364 4,710 4,162
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9. Stockholders’ Equity and Employee Compensation Plans
Stock Option Plans
2000 Stock Incentive Plan and 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2000 Plan”) provides for the issuance of shares of the Company’s common
stack to directors, employees and consultants. The 2000 Plan provides for the issuance of incentive stock options
or non-qualified stock options. The 2000 Plan provides for the issuance of up to 2,333,333 shares of common stock,
plus, commencing on January 1, 2001, annual increases equal to the lesser of 73,000 shares (amended on August 21,
2001 to 730,000 shares), 3% of the fully diluted outstanding common stock on January 1 of each year, or a lesser
amount determined by the Board of Directors. Pursuant to the 2000 Plan, the exercise price for incentive stock
options is at least 100% of the fair market value on the date of grant or for employees owning in excess of 10%
of the voting power of all classes of stock, 110% of the fair market value on the date of grant. For non-qualified
stock options, the exercise price is no less than 85% of the fair market value on the date of grant. Options generally
expire in 10 years. Options generally vest ratably over four years beginning the date of grant. As of March 31, 2004,
2,194,844 options were available for grant under the 2000 Plan.

In March 2000, the Board of Directors adopted an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”). A total of
333,333 shares (amended in May 2004 to 833,333 shares) of the Company’s common stock were reserved for
issuance under the ESPP, plus, commencing on April 1, 2001, annual increases equal to the lesser of 83,333 shares,
3% of the outstanding common stock on such date, or a lesser amount determined by the Board of Directors. Each
participant may purchase up to 4,000 shares on any purchase date. The ESPP permits eligible employees to
contribute up to 13% of cash compensation toward the semi-annual purchase of the Company’s common stock.
The purchase price is 85% of the fair market value on the day prior to the beginning of the six-month period at
which an eligible employee is enrolled, or the end of each six-month offering period, whichever is lower. Employees
purchased 117,745, 39,851 and 251,289 in fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. As of March 31, 2004, 589,047
shares were available for purchase under the ESPP.

1999 Stock Incentive Plan

The Stock Incentive Plan (the “1999 Plan”) provides for the issuance of up to 5,166,667 shares of the
Company’s common stock to directors, employees and consultants. The 1999 Plan provides for the issuance of
restricted stock bonuses, restricted stock purchase rights, incentive stock options or non-qualified stock options.
Pursuant to the 1999 Plan, the exercise price for incentive stock options is at least 100% of the fair market value
on the date of grant or for employees owning in excess of 10% of the voting power of all classes of stock, 110%
of the fair market value on the date of grant. For non-qualified stock options, the exercise price is no less than 85%
of the fair market value on the date of grant.

Options generally expire in 10 years. Vesting periods are determined by the Board of Directors; however,
options generally vest ratably over four years beginning one year after the date of grant. Options may be exercised
prior to full vesting. Any unvested shares so exercised are subject to a repurchase right in favor of the Company
with the repurchase price to be equal to the original purchase price of the stock. The right to repurchase at the original
price lapses at a minimum rate of 20% per year over five years from the date the options granted. The 2000 Plan
is the successor to the 1999 Plan. Since the 2000 Plan became effective, no further grants were made under the
1999 Plan.

1994 Stock Option Plan

The Stock Option Plan (the “1994 Plan”) provides for the issuance of options to acquire the Company’s
common stock to directors, employees and consultants. The 1994 Plan provides for the issuance of incentive stock
options or non-qualified stock options. Pursuant to the 1994 Plan, the exercise price for incentive stock options
is at least 100% of the fair market value on the date of grant or for employees owning in excess of 10% of the
voting power of all classes of stock, 110% of the fair market value on the date of grant. For non-qualified stock
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9. Stockholders’ Equity and Employee Compensation Plans (Continued)

options, the exercise price is no less than 85% of the fair market value on the date of grant. Options generally expire
in 10 years. Options generally vest ratably over five years beginning the date of grant. In June 1999, all options
outstanding under the 1994 Plan were cancelled and reissued under the 1999 Plan with the same terms and conditions
as the previous options.

Out of Plan Options

In November 2001, the Company issued two out of plan non-qualified options to acquire the Company’s
common stock. One grant was for 800,000 shares, vesting over a 4 year period. The second grant was for 200,000
shares, vesting over a 6 year period but with a provision for earlier vesting one year after the grant date provided
that certain criteria are achieved. Both grants had an exercise price of $1.27 per share, the fair market value on
the date of grant, and expire in 10 years.

The following table summarizes activity under all of the Company’s stock option plans and out-of-plan options:

Outstanding Weighted Average

__Options _Exercise Price
Balance at March 31,2001 ...... ..ot 2,761,057 $4.97
Granted . ... e 2,530,324 1.66
Exercised. ... ..o e (56,623) 0.26
Cancellations . ...ttt s (1,073,105)(1) 6.51
Balance at March 31, 2002 .. ... vt 4,161,653 2.62
Granted ... e 2,233,401 0.86
EXerCiSed. oottt s .. (199,014) 0.26
Cancellations. ...............cc.iue... e (1,746,232) 2.81
Balance at March 31, 2003 ... o 4,449 808 1.79
Granted .. ... e 1,347,333 143
ExXercised. ...ooov i e e (295,022) 0.64
Cancellations. . ....oorvi i e (607,736) 1.88
Balance at March 31,2004 ... ....0oiiiiiiiiiie e 4,894,383 $1.74

(1) Includes 624,028 options cancelled pursuant to the Company’s agreements with certain officers and employees.

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Number Weighted Average Number
Qutstanding at Remaining Weighted Average Exercisable at Weighted Average
March 31, 2004 Contractual Life Exercise Price March 31, 2004 Exercise Price
242,378 5.56 $ 0.27 242,378 $ 027
844,824 8.56 0.50 430,117 0.50
. 500,333 8.91 0.66 115,603 0.58
B - -1,000,000 ; 7.67 - 1.27 1,000,000 1.27
54,081 7.09 1.50 ' 52,101 ’ 1.50-
1,015,000 9.50 1.57 — —
592,681 7.73 1.88 448,545 1.87
498,754 6.46 4.60 472,476 : 4.70
111,665 6.01 8.86 111,039 8.86
34,667 6.33 11.00 31,775 11.00
4,894,383 8.06 $ 1.74 2,904,034 $ 2.10
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9. Stockholders’ Equity and Employee Compensation Plans (Continued)

The weighted average fair values of options granted in fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $1.43, $0.86
and $1.66, respectively. The fair value of each option grant and stock purchase right is estimated on the date of
the grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions:

Stock Incentive Plans

March 31,
2004 2003 2002
Risk-free Interest Rate...........cooovviiiiiniiiiieiiiinnninns, 2.65% 1.25% 4.12%
Expected Life of Options from Grant Date .................... 4 years 4 years 4 years
Expected Dividend Yield ..............oo i 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected Stock Volatility ... 92.0% 90.0% 115.0%
Employee Stock Purchase Plans
March 31,
2004 2003 2002
Risk-free Interest Rate...........cooiiviiiiii i 0.94% 1.25% 2.71%
Expected Life of Options from Grant Date .................... 0.5 years 05 years 0.5 years
Expected Dividend Yield ........ ...l 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected Stock Volatility ............ooiiiiiiiiiiieniii . 85.0% 90.0% 54.0%

The weighted average fair values of the purchase rights granted in fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $0.48,
$0.18 and $1.39, respectively.

Deferred Stock Compensation

Deferred stock compensation represents the aggregate difference, at the grant date, between the respective
exercise price of stock options and the fair value of the underlying stock. The deferred stock compensation expense
is amortized on an accelerated basis over the vesting period of the individual award, generally four years. This
method is in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 28. The Company had not
recorded any unearned stock-based compensation in the fiscal years ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, and
has amortized deferred stock compensation of $0.0 million, $0.6 million and $1.6 million, in these periods,
respectively. :

Stock Repurchase Agreements

In connection with the exercise of options pursuant to the 1999 Plan, employees entered into restricted stock
purchase agreements with the Company. Under the terms of these agreements, the Company has a right to repurchase
any shares at the original exercise price of the shares upon termination of employment. The repurchase right lapses
ratably over the vesting term of the original grant. As of March 31, 2004, no shares were subject to repurchase
by the Company.

401(k) Plan

The Company maintains a retirement and deferred savings plan for its employees in the United States of
America (the “401(k) Plan”), who meet certain age and service requirements. The 401(k) Plan provided that each
participant may defer up to 15% of their annual compensation on a pre-tax basis, not to exceed the dollar limit
that is set by law, with the Company contributing a matching 25 percent of their contribution, up to 3 percent of
their annual compensation. Substantially all of the Company’s employees are eligible to participate in the Tvia
401(k) Plan. The Company contributed $59,000, $98,000 and $37,000 to the 401(k) Plan for the fiscal years ended
March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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10. Concentration of Certain Risks

The Company is subject to the risks associated with similar technology companies. These risks include, but
are not limited to: history of operating losses, dependence on a small number of key individuals, customers and
suppliers, competition from larger, more established companies, the impact of rapid technological changes and
changes in customer demand/requirements.

Revenues to significant customers, those representing approximately 10% or more of total revenues for the
respective periods, are summarized as follows:

For the Year
Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002
Customer A................... PR 15% 17% *
Customer B.. ... o 12% 24% *
Customer C.....ooiii e P 12% * *
Customier D ..o e e 10% * *
Customer E. .. ... e * 10% *
Customer F.... o * * 62%
Customer G. ...l e e * * 14%

(* = less than 10%)
Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally
of bank deposits and accounts receivable. The Company places its cash and cash equivalents in checking and money
market accounts in financial institutions. The Company’s accounts receivable are derived primarily from sales to
OEMs and distributors. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and maintains an
allowance for potential doubtful accounts.

As of March 31, 2004 and 2003, accounts receivable were concentrated with customers as follows:

March 31,

2004 2003
Accounts Receivable:
U O AL i ettt e e e 20% *
CUSTOMIET B i i e 15% *
CUS OMIET Lttt e e e e e e e e e s * 48%
CUStOMIET D e 17% 22%
CUStOmIer B oo * 21%

(* = less than 10%)
The Company recorded bad debt expense of $15,000 and $8,000 for fiscal years 2004 and 2003, respectively.-
Vendor Concenrration

The Company does not own or operate a fabrication facility, and accordingly relies substantially on three
outside foundries, United Manufacturing Corporation (“UMC”) and Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing
Corporation (“TSMC”), both are located in Taiwan and HuaHong NEC in the People’s Republic of Ch‘ina‘, to supply
all of the Company’s semiconductor manufacturing requirements. There are significant risks associated with the
Company’s reliance on outside foundries, including the lack of ensured wafer supply, limited control over delivery
schedules, quality assurance and control, manufacturing yields and production costs and the unavailability of or
delays in obtaining access to key process technologies. Any inability of one of the foundries to provide the necessary
components could result in significant delays and could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business,
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10. Concentration of Certain Risks (Continued)

financial condition and results of operations. In the event either foundry suffers financial difficulties or suffers
any damage or destruction to its respective facilities, or in the event of any other disruption of foundry capacity,
the Company may not be able to qualify alternative manufacturing sources for existing or new products in a
timely manner.

Substantially all of the Company’s products are assembled and tested by one of three third-party subcontractors,
Siliconware Precision Industries Ltd., and Advance Semiconductor Engineering, Inc., both located in Taiwan, and
Belling Corp., Ltd. in the People’s Republic of China. The availability of assembly and testing services from these
subcontractors could be adversely affected in the event any subcontractor experiences financial difficulties or suffers
any damage or destruction to its respective facilities, or in the event of any other disruption of assembly and testing
capacity. As a result of this reliance on third-party subcontractors for assembly and testing of its products, the
Company cannot directly control product delivery schedules, which has in the past, and could in the future, result
in product shortages or quality assurance problems that could increase the cost of manufacture, assembly or testing
of the Company’s products.

11. Segment and Geographic Information

The Company is organized and operates in one reportable segment, which is the development, manufacture
and sale of streaming media integrated circuits for the advanced television and emerging interactive display markets.

The Company has operations in the United States and China. The operating expenses of the China subsidiary
for the years ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, and the total assets as of the respective dates in China were
not material to the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

The following table summarizes revenues by geographic area as a percentage of total revenues:

For the Year
Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002
United StAtes .....ooiii i 24% - 14% 68%
BUIOPE. . e 24% 35% *
TAIWANL ..o 18% 25% 22%
Japan ... e 15% 16% *
KOTea. ..o * 10% *

(* Less than 10%)

12. Commitments and Contingencies
Stock Repurchase

On November 10, 2001, the Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase program to acquire outstanding
common stock in the open market. Under this program, the Board of Directors authorized the acquisition of up
to 200,000 of the Company’s common stock. As of March 31, 2004, the Company acquired 143,700 shares on the
open market that it holds as treasury stock.

On August 20, 2002, the Board of Directors authorized an additional stock repurchase program to acquire
outstanding comimon stock in the open market. Under this program, the Board of Directors authorized the acquisition
up to 5 million shares of common stock. As of March 31, 2004, we had not repurchased any shares of common
stock under this program. '
Litigation .

The Company is subject to various claims which arise in the normal course of business. In the opinion of
management, the Company is unaware of any claims which would have a material adverse effect on the financial
position, liquidity or results of operations of the Company.
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12. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)
Leases Commitments

The Company leases its facilities under non-cancelable operating leases expiring at various dates through July
2005. Under the terms of the leases, the Company is responsible for a portion of the facilities’ operating expenses,
insurance and property taxes. Rent expense under operating leases for the years ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002, were approximately $0.2 million, $0.6 million and $0.6 million, respectively.

The Company leases certain fixed assets under capital leases expiring at various dates through February 2005.

Future payments due under leases as of March 31, 2004 are as follows (in thousands):

. Capital Operating
Fiscal Year Leases Leases
2005..... C ettt et e e e $ 490 $171
2000 e e e = _ 47
Total minimum Jease PAYMENIS ... .o..iiiiiii it _ 490 $218

Less: Amount representing interest .. ..... .ot er et ereenvrniereciienenaes

_“
Present value of minimum payments ........ooveuiiunerieiunnennineeanann. 486
Less: Current portion .. ......c.uviuiieiine it (486)

LOng-term POrtion .. ..v.eirit ettt e
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Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures. We maintain “disclosure controls and procedures,” as
such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”), that are
designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in Securities and
Exchange Commission rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating our disclosure controls and procedures,
management recognized that disclosure controls and procedures, no matter how well conceived and operated, can
provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the disclosure controls and procedures are
met. Our disclosure controls and procedures have been designed to meet, and management believes that they meet,
reasonable assurance standards. Additionally, in designing disclosure controls and procedures, our management
necessarily was required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible disclosure
controls and procedures. The design of any disclosure controls and procedures also is based in part upon certain
assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in
achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions.

Based on their evaluation as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, subject to the limitations noted above, our
disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that material information relating to us, including our
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to them by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this Annual Report on Form 10-K was being prepared.

(b) Changes in internal controls. There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined
in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act) identified in connection with the evaluation described in Item 8A(a)
above that occurred during our last fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART 111

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by this item (with respect to Directors) is incorporated by reference from the
information under the caption “Election of Directors” contained in the Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission in connection with the solicitation of proxies for the Company’s 2004
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on August 4, 2004 (the “Proxy Statement”). Certain information required
by this item concerning executive officers is set forth in Part I of this Report under the caption “Executive Officers
of the Registrant.”

Item 405 of Regulation S-B calls for disclosure of any known late filing or failure by an insider to file a report
required by Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act. This disclosure is contained in the section entitled “Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

The Company has a separately designated standing Audit Committee established in accordance with Section
3(a)(58)(A) of the Exchange Act. The members of the Audit Committee are James Bunker (Chairperson), R. David
Dicciocio and Mark Mangiola, all of whom meet the independence standards established by The Nasdaq Stock
Market for serving on an audit committee. The Board of Directors has determined that R. David Dicciocio and
Mark Mangiola are each an “audit committee financial expert” as defined SEC regulations.

The Company’s Board of Directors adopted a Code of Ethics for all of its directors and officers on March 22,
2004. The Company’s Code of Ethics is available on the Company’s website at http://www.tvia.com. To date, there
" have been no waivers under the Company’s Code of Ethics. The Company will post any waivers, if and when
granted, under its Code of Ethics on the Company’s website at http://www.tvia.com,
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Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the information under the captions
“Election of Directors — Director Compensation,” “Executive Compensation,” and “Election of Directors —
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” contained in the Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Sécurity ‘Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholders
Matters

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the information under the caption
“Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Equity Compensation Plan Information”
contained in the Proxy Statement.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Set forth in the table below is certain information regarding the number of shares of Common Stock that were
subject to outstanding stock options or other compensation plan grants and awards as of March 31, 2004.

* Number of Securities

Number of Remaining Available
Securities to be for Future Issuance
Issued Upon Under Equity
Exercise of Weighted-Average Compensation
Outstanding Exercise Price of Plans (Excluding
. Options, Warrants Outstanding Options, Securities Reflected
Plan Category and Rights Warrants and Rights In Column (a))
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders ....................... 3,894,383(1) $1.94 2,850,891
Equity compensation plans not approved -
by security holders.................... 1,214,997(2)(3)(4) $1.68 —
Totals..o.oveii i e 5,109,380 $1.96 2,850,891(5)

(1) Includes shares to be issued upon exercise of outstanding options and warrants granted under the 1999 Plan
and the 2000 Plan. Options or warrants to purchase shares of the Company’s Common Stock are no longer
granted under the 1999 Plan.

(2) . In November 2001, the Company issued two out-of-plan non-qualified options. The first grant is for 800,000
shares of Common Stock, with an exercise price of $1.27, the fair market value on the date of grant. The option
vests over a four year period. The second grant is for 200,000 shares of Common Stock, with an exercise price
of $1.27, the fair market value on the date of grant. If certain performance objectives are met, the second option
will vest ratably over 48 months beginning on the last day of the first month following the first anniversary
of the vesting commencement date. If the performance objectives are not met, the option will vest in full on
the sixth anniversary of the vesting commencement date.

(3) Includes warrants to purchase 26,666 and 166,665 shares of Common Stock at exercise prices of $3.00 and
$3.75 per share, respectively. The warrants were issued between December 1997 and January 2000 to related
party guarantors of loans previously incurred by the Company. The loans were repaid. Each of the warrants
has a term of five years and terminates between April 2004 and January 2005.

(4) Includes warrants to purchase 13,333 and 8,333 shares of Common Stock at exercise prices of $3.00 and $3.75
per share, respectively. The warrants were issued to a bank in June 1999 and in December 1999 in connection
with loans previously incurred by the Company. The loans were repaid. The warrants have a term of five years
and terminate in June 2004 and December 2004.

(5) Includes 589,047 shares reserved for issuance under the Company’s 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the
“ESPP”). The number of shares reserved for issuance under the ESPP increases on April 1, of every year, by
the lesser of: 83,333 shares; 3% of the outstanding Commen Stock on such date; or a lesser amount determined
by the Board of Directors. Each participant may purchase up to 4,000 shares on any purchase date. The ESPP
permits eligible employees to contribute up to 15% of cash compensation toward the semi-annual purchase
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of the Company’s Common Stock. The purchase price is 85% of the fair market value on the day prior to the
beginning of the six-month period at which an eligible employee is enrolled, or the end of each six-month
offering period, whichever is lower.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the information contained under the
captions “Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions” contained in the Proxy Statement.
Item 14, Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the information under the caption
“Ratification of Independent Auditors — Principal Accountant Fees and Services” and “Pre-Approval Policies and
Procedures” contained in the Proxy Statement.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K
(a) Documents filed as part of this report:
(1) Financial Statements

Reference is made to the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements of Tvia, Inc., under Item 8 of
Part 1I hereof.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules
The following financial statement schedule of Tvia, Inc. is filed as part of this Form 10-K.
Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other financial statement schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable or not required or
because the information is included elsewhere in the Consolidated Financial Statements or the Notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits

See Item 15(c) below. Each management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed
has been identified.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K.

On February 3, 2004, the Company furnished a current report on Form 8-K furnishing under Item 12 the
Company’s press release relating to its financial results for the quarter ended December 31, 2003.

(c) Exhibits

Exhibit

Number Description of Document

3(i).1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to
Amendment No. 8 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

3(ii). 1 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to
Amendment No. 3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Amendment No.
2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

4.2 Form of Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement dated as of April 3, 2000

{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File
No. 333-34024)).
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Exhibit
Number
4.3

4.4
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4.6

4.7

4.8

10.1#

10.2#

10.3#
10.4

10.5

- .106 _

10.7#

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12#

Description of Document

Warrant to Purchase Stock issued April 30, 1999 to James Mah (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.4 to Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Warrant to Purchase Stock issued June 21, 1999 to Far East National Bank (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.5 to the Company’s Registration Staternent on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Warrant to Purchase Stock issued July 8, 1998 to C. Y. Lee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.6 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Warrant to Purchase Stock issued December 30, 1999 to Far East National Bank (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.7 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024))

Warrant to Purchase Stock issued January 25,2000 to C.Y. Lee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.8 to Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-
34024)).

Warrant to Purchase Stock issued January 25, 2000 to James Mah (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.9 to Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No.
333-34024)).

Amended and Restated 1999 Stock Incentive Plan of Tvia, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to Amendment No. 1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-
34024)).

Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Incentive Plan of Tvia, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002).

Amended and Restated 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan of Tvia, Inc.

Form of Directors and Officers’ Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.4 to Amendment No. 3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-
34024)).

TSMC Terms and Conditions dated November 15, 1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5
to Amendment No. 1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

UMC Wafer Foundry Standard Terms and Conditions (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to

- -Amendment No. 1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File Neo. 333-34024)).

Form of Executive Severance Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Amendment
No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Multi-Tenant Single-Building Modified-Net Lease dated October 27, 1995 between Koll/Intereal
Bay Area and Integraphics System, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

First Amendment to Lease Agreement dated January 15, 1999 between Koll/Intereal Bay Area and
IGS Technologies, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Second Amendment to Lease Agreement dated May 6, 1999 between Koll/Intereal Bay Area and
IGS Technologies, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Promissory Note entered by and between the Company and Jack Guedj dated April 11, 2001
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended June 30, 2001).
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Exhibit
Number

10.13#

10.14#

10.15%

10.167

10.17#

211

23.1
24.1
31.1
31.2
32.1%*

32.2%*

Description of Document

Option Agreement between the Company and Eli Porat dated November 30, 2001(incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
December 31, 2001).

Option agreement between the Company and Eli Porat dated November 30, 2001(incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
December 31, 2001).

Technology License Agreement by and between the Company and Oak Technology, Inc. dated
December 29, 2000 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002).

Addendum to Technology License Agreement by and between the Company and Oak Technology,
Inc. dated April 25, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002).

Agreement and Release of Claims by and between the Company and Jack Guedj dated January 31,
2002(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002).

Subsidiaries of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003).

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
Power of Attorney (see page 53 of this Form 10-K).

Rule 13a-14(a) certification of Chief Executive Officer

Rule 13a-14(a) certification of Chief Financial Officer

Statement of Chief Executive Officer under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18
U.S.C.s5.1350).

Statement of Chief Financial Officer under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18
U.8.C.ss.1350).

** In accordance with Item 601(b)(32)(ii) of Regulation S-K and SEC Release Nos. 33-8238 and 34-47986, Final
Rule: Management’s Reports on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and Certification of Disclosure in
Exchange Act Periodic Reports, the certifications furnished in Exhibits 32.1 and 32.2 hereto are deemed to
accompany this Form 10-K and will not be deemed “filed” for purpose of Section 18 of the Exchange Act.
Such certifications will not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act
or the Exchange Act, except to the extent that the registrant specifically incorporates it by reference.

# Indicates management contact or compensatory plan or arrangement.

1 Confidential treatment has been requested or granted with respect to certain portions of these agreements.

(d) Financial Statement Schedules.

See Item 15(a)(1) and (a)(2) above.
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Report of Independent Registered Public-Accounting Firm on Financial Statement Schedule

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Tvia, Inc.:

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements referred to in our report dated June 14, 2004 appearing
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Tvia, Inc. also included an audit of the financial statement schedule listed
in [tem 15(a)(2) of this Form 10-K. In our opinion, this financial statement schedule presents fairly, in all material
respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial
statements.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
June 14, 2004
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TVIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE II — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(in thousands)

Balance at Charged to Balance at
Beginning Costs and End of
Description : of Period Expenses Deductions Period
Year Ended March 31, 2004
Allowance for doubtful accounts............ $ 50 $ 15 $ 62 $ 3
Year Ended March 31, 2003
Allowance for doubtful accounts............ $112 $ 8 $ 70 $ 50
Year Ended March 31, 2002
Allowance for doubtful accounts............ $439 $100 $427 $112
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Company
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

_ Date: June 21, 2004

TVIA, INC.

By

£a7

Eli Porat
Chief Executive Officer and President

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and
appoints Eli Porat and Arthur Nguyen, and each of them, his true and lawful attorneys-in-fact, each with full power
of substitution, for him or her in any and all capacities, to sign any amendments to this report on Form 10-K and
to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming ali that each of said attorneys-in-fact or their substitute or substitutes
may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof,

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated,

Name

/s/ ELI PORAT

Eli Porat

/s/ ARTHUR NGUYEN

Arthur Nguyen

/sf KENNY LIU

Kenny Liu

/s/ STEVEN CHENG

Steven Cheng

/s/ JAMES BUNKER

James Bunker

/si MARK MANGIOLA

Mark Mangiola

/s/ R. DAVID DICIOCCIO

R. David Dicioccio

Chief Executive Officer and President June 21, 2004
(Principal Executive Officer)
Chief Financial Officer June 21, 2004
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Chairman of the Board June 21, 2004
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Director -

June 21, 2004
June 21, 2004
June 21, 2004
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Exhibit
Number
3(i).1
3(1i).1

4.1

4.2

4.3
4.4
4.5
4.6

4.7

48

10.1#

10.2#
10.3#
104
10.5
10.6
10.7#

10.9

Exhibit Index

Description of Document

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to
Amendment No. 8 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to
Amendment No. 3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Amendment No.

- 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Form of Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement dated as of April 3, 2000
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File
No. 333-34024)).

Warrant to Purchase Stock issued April 30, 1999 to James Mah (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.4 to Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Warrant to Purchase Stock issued June 21, 1999 to Far East National Bank (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.5 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Warrant to Purchase Stock issued July 8, 1998 to C. Y. Lee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.6 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Warrant to Purchase Stock issued December 30, 1999 to Far East National Bank (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.7 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024))

Warrant to Purchase Stock issued January 25,2000 to C.Y. Lee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.8 to Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-
34024)).

Warrant to Purchase Stock issued January 25, 2000 to James Mah (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.9 to Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No.
333-34024)).

Amended and Restated 1999 Stock Incentive Plan of Tvia, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to Amendment No. 1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-
34024)).

Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Incentive Plan of Tvia, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002).

Amended and Restated 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan of Tvia, Inc.

Form of Directors and Officers’ Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.4 to Amendment No. 3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-
34024)).

TSMC Terms and Conditions dated November 15, 1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5
to Amendment No. 1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

UMC Wafer Foundry Standard Terms and Conditions (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to
Amendment No. 1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Form of Executive Severance Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Amendment
No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Multi-Tenant Single-Building Modified-Net Lease dated October 27, 1995 between Koll/Intereal
Bay Area and Integraphics System, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).
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Exhibit

Number

10.10

10.11

10.12#
1‘0.13#
10.14#
10.15%
10.16%
10.17#

21.1

23.1
24.1
311
31.2
30,145

32.2%%

Description of Document

First Amendment to Lease Agreement dated January 15, 1999 between Koll/Intereal Bay Area and
IGS Technologies, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Second Amendment to Lease Agreement dated May 6,: 1999 between Koll/Intereal Bay Area and
IGS Technologies, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit:10.15 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

- Promissory Note entered by and between the Company and Jack Guedj dated April 11, 2001

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended June 30, 2001).

Option Agreement between the Company and Eli Porat dated November 30, 2001(incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
December 31, 2001).

Option agreement between the Company and Eli Porat dated November 30, 2001 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
December 31, 2001).

Technology License Agreement by and between the Company and Oak Technology, Inc. dated
December 29, 2000 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002).

Addendum to Technology License Agreement by and between the Company and Oak Technology,
Inc. dated April 25, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002).

Agreement and Release of Claims by and between the Company and Jack Guedj dated January 31,
2002(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002).

* Subsidiaries of the Company (incorporated by reference to Extiibit 21.1 to the Company’s Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003).

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
Power of Attorney (see page 53 of this Form 10-K).

Rule 13a-14(a) certification of Chief Executive Officer -

Rule 13a-14(a) certification of Chief Financial Officer

Statement of Chief Executive Ofﬁcer under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18
U.S.C.s5.1350).

Statement of Chief Financial Officer under Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 (18
U.S.C.55.1350).

*# In accordance with Item 601(b)(32)(ii) of Regulation S-K and SEC Release Nos. 33- 8238 and 34-47986, Final
Rule: Management’s Reports on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and Certification of Disclosure in
Exchange Act Periodic Reports, the certifications furnished in Exhibits 32.1 and 32.2 hereto are deemed to
accompany this Form 10-K and will not be deemed “filed” for purpose of Section 18 of the Exchange Act.
Such certifications will not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act
or the Exchange Act, except to the extent that the registrant specifically incorporates it by reference.

# Indicates management contact or compensatory plan or arrangement.

T Confidential treatment has been requested or granted with respect to certain portions of these agreements.
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Exhibit 31.1
TVIA, INC.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
for the Period Ended March 31, 2004

I, Eli Porat, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Tvia, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant
as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including
its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation: and

¢) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of
an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on ocur most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors
(or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: June 21, 2004

By: 5 QV%

Eli Porat
Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)
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Exhibit 31.2
TVIA, INC.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
for the Period Ended March 31, 2004

I, Arthur Nguyen, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Tvia, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact-or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
~ fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant
as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a)Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including
its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of
an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors
{or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: June 21, 2004

By: /s/ Arthur Nguyen
Arthur Nguyen
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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Exhibit 32.1

STATEMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER UNDER 18 U.S.C. § 1350

I, Eli Porat, the chief executive officer and president of Tvia, Inc. (the “Company”), certify for the purposes
of section 1350 of chapter 63 of title 18 of the United States Code that, to the best of my knowledge,

(1) the Annual Report of the Company on Form 10-K for the period ended March 31, 2004 (the “Report™),
fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and

(ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and

results of operations of the Company.
-y %
By (_

Eli Porat
June 21, 2004
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Exhibit 32.2

STATEMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER UNDER 18 U.S.C. § 1350

I, Arthur Nguyen, the chief financial officer of Tvia, Inc. (the “Company”), certify for the purposes of section
1350 of chapter 63 of title 18 of the United States Code that, to the ‘best of my knowledge,

(i) the Annual Report of thé Company on Form 10-K for the period ended March 31, 2004 (the “Report”),
fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and

(ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

By /s/ Arthur Nguyen
Arthur Nguyen

June 21, 2004
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Tvia Corporate Information

Board of Directors
Kenny Liu
Chairman of the Board, Tvia, Inc.

Eli Porat
Chief Executive Officer and President,
Tvia, Inc.

James Bunker
Director, Tvia, Inc.

Steven Cheng
Director, Tvia, Inc.

R. David Dicioccio
Founder and Chief Operating Officer,
Fabric 7 Systems, Inc.

Mark Mangiola
Venture Partner, Canaan Ventures
Officers

Eli Porat
Chief Executive Officer and President

Arthur Nguyen
Chief Financial Officer

Jhi-Chung Kuo
Vice President, Engineering

James Tao
Vice President, Sales and Marketing

Corporate Headquarters
Tvia, Inc.

4001 Burton Drive

Santa Clara, CA 95054
Tel: 408.982.8588

Fax: 408.982.8591
www.tvia.com

Adaditional Locations

Hefei New & High Technology
Industry Development Zone

669 Chang Jiang Rd., W, Hefei, Anhui
P.R. China 230088

Tel: (86)551-5318799

Fax: (86)551-5311620

Shenzhen Sales and Support Office
Suite 703, Han Tang Building
Oversea Chinese Town,

Nan-San District
Shenzhen City, China 518000
Tel: (86)755-26935800
Fax: (86)755-26935700

Note on Forward-looking Information

Stock Data
Nasdaq SmallCap Market Symbol:
TVIA

Annual Meeting
The Annual Meeting will be held

at 1:00 pm on August 3, 2004
Corporate Headquarters

4001 Burton Drive

Santa Clara, California 95054

Stock Transfer Agent

and Registrar

Mellon Investor Services LL.C
85 Challenger Road
Ridgefield, New Jersey 07660
800.647.7423 phone
+1.201.296.8660 international

Legal Counsel
Pilisbury Winthrop LLP

2550 Hanover Street
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Independent Accountants
PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP
Ten Almaden Blvd., Suite 1600
San Jose, California 95113

Information that involves Tvia’s expectations, beliefs, hopes, plans, intentions or strategies regarding the future are

forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Forward-looking statements include statements as to the
growth of the DTV market, benefits of our China operation, cost reduction efforts, Tvia’s development of new products,
the features and benefits of Tvia’s products, and product acceptance and introduction by customers. All forward-looking
statements are based upon information available to Tvia as of the date hereof, and Tvia assumes no obligation to update
any such forward-looking statements. These statements are not guarantees of future performance, and actual results could
differ materially from our current expectations. Factors that could cause or comntribute to such differences or risks
associated with our business are discussed in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31,
2004 filed on June 21, 2004 with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), and in other reports filed from time
to time with the SEC. These risks include, but are not limited to, the slower than anticipated emergence of the digital
television market, our ability to specify, develop or acquire, complete, introduce, market and transition to volume
production new products and technologies in a timely manner, and the extent and duration of the current economic and
business environment.
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PART 1

Item 1. Business

[EANT

When used in this Report, the words “expects,” “anticipates,” “estimates,” “believes,” “plans,” and similar
expressions are intended to identifv forward-looking statements. These are statements that relate to future periods
and include statements as to the benefits of our China subsidiary, the market for digital televisions, use of silicon
in the digital television market, benefits of the Federal Communications Commission’s mandates, market share of
different technologies, price of raw materials, growth of the advanced television market, the Company’s anticipated
revenues, expenses, gross profit and loss; the features, performance, advantages and anticipated benefits of our
produicts, the importance of customer support, the expertise, industry knowledge and capabilities of our sales and
marketing staff, our design support, the importance of design support, continued expenditures on research and
development, our ability 1o migrate to smaller process geometries, the key competitive factors in our target markets,
our ability to compete, increasing competition in our markets, sources of competition, our intellectual properr,
strategy, our ability to protect our intellectual properry, our backlog as an indicator of future revenues, the status
of our relations with our emplovees, the adequacy of our existing facilities, our dividend policy and our planned
retention of our future earnings. Forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause
actual results to differ materially from those projected. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited
to, those risks discussed below, as well as risks related to slower than anticipated emergence of the interactive
television market; general economic conditions and specific conditions in the markets we address; the timing,
rescheduling or cancellation of significant customer orders; the loss of a key customer,; our ability 1o specify, develop
or acquire, complete, introduce, market and transition to volume production new products and technologies in a
timely manner; the volume of our product sales and pricing concessions on volume sales; the qualification,
availability and pricing of compering products and technologies and the resulting effects on sales and pricing of
our products; the availability and pricing of foundry and assembly capacity and raw materials; insufficient customer
support, fluctuations in the manufacturing vields of our third party semiconductor foundries and other problems
or delavs in the fabrication, assembly, testing or delivery of our products; problems or delavs that we may face
in shifiing our products to smaller geometry process technologies and in achieving higher levels of design
integration; the effects of new and emerging technologies; the risks and uncertainties associated with our
international operations; changes in our products or customer mix; the risk that excess inventory may result in
write-offs, price erosion and decreased demand; the level of orders received that can be shipped in a fiscal quarter;
and the risks set forth below under Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations — Factors That May Affect Results.” These forward-looking statements speak only as of the
date hereof. The Company expressiy disclaims any obligation or undertaking to release publicly any updates or
revisions to any forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect any change in the Company's expectations
with regard thereto or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such starement is based.

29 4s 1w

This report contains statistical data that we obiained from industry publications and reports generated by
DisplaySearch in April 2004. These industry publications generally indicate that they have obtained their
information sources believed to be reliable, but do not guarantee the accuracy and completeness of their
information. Although we believe that the publications are reliable, we have not independently verified their data.

All references to “Tvia,” “we,” “us,” “our" or the “Company’ mean Tvia, Inc. and its subsidiary, except
where it is made clear that the term means only the parent company.

We own various trademarks and trade names used in our business. These include CyberPro, FlexiBus, Tvia
and the Tvia logo. Other trademarks referenced herein are the property of their respective owners.

History

We were originally incorporated in California as Integraphics Systems, Inc. in March 1993. We changed our
name to IGS Technologies in August 1997. In March 2000, we changed our name to Tvia, Inc. In August 2000,
we reincorporated in Delaware. Tvia operates in one principal industry segment.

Our subsidiary in Hefei, People’s Republic of China, had 114 employees as of March 31, 2004, including 73
employees in research and development. This facility handles our operations and testing, and performs sales and
marketing, in addition to research and development activities. Our market focus is centered on the Asia Pacific



region, including China, Taiwan, Japan and Korea. We believe our Hefei subsidiary affords a cost effective means
for us to develop products and supports for our extensive hardware and software alliances. Our subsidiary also gives
us a presence in the China market.

Overview

We have historically designed, developed and marketed multi-media display processors for the advanced
television and emerging display markets. Our multi-media display processors accept video, graphics and audio
signals from terrestrial broadcast, narrow band telephone lines, cable, satellite and the Ethernet and blend them
together on one or more displays for a high quality, customized and interactive viewing experience.

We recently changed our focus to designing, developing and marketing our display processors for the
interactive-television market as well as a family of flexible, high-quality display processors tailored to the Asia
Pacific television manufacturers creating next-generation digital liquid crystal display, or LCD. high definition or
HD, and progressive-scan televisions.

We currently offer five product families: the TrueView 5700 family, introduced in calendar year 2004; the
CyberPro 5600 family, introduced in calendar year 2003; the CyberPro 5202 family, introduced in calendar year
2002; the CyberPro 5300 family, introduced in calendar year 1999; and the CyberPro 5000 family, introduced in
calendar year 1998. These product families currently generate most of our revenues. We sell our products through
two channels. First, we sell our products directly to original equipment manufacturers, or OEMs, and recognize
revenues at the time of shipment to these OEMs. Finally, we sell our products to a number of distributors. We defer
recognition of revenues for sales to our distributors until they have sold our products to end-users. We also generate
revenues from licensing software which we believe will continue to constitute a small percentage of total revenues
in the future.

Industry Background

There are more than 2 billion standard analog televisions in the world today. Over the next decade, we anticipate
that digital television, or DTV, penetration will increase from less than 5 percent in 2003 to more than 50 percent
by 2010. We believe this rare, mass-scale global technology expansion will produce unique opportunities for
superior silicon revenue growth.

In January 2003, the Federal Communications Commission, or FCC, issued a mandate that 50 percent of
televisions 36 inches and larger must have integrated digital capability by July 2004 and 100 percent a year later.
The mandate also requires that all new televisions 13 inches and larger sold after July 1. 2007 comply with this
mandate. Several technologies are competing for a share of the DTV market including cathode ray tube. or CRT.
digital light processing. or DLP, liquid crystal on silicon. or LCoS. plasma displays. or PDP, and LCD. Presently
CRT and DLP are the early price and performance leaders but, in the long term, many expect LCD to emerge as
the dominant technology in the 20”- 40" market which accounts for approximately 80 percent of the television

market.

According to the market-research firm DisplaySearch, DTV is expected to follow a similar path to that of digital
video disks, or DVD. DVD players have enjoyed rapid acceptance over the last few years. There are several factors
that have contributed to the success of the DVD player, including ubiquitous content, smaller form factor, improved
audio and visual quality and falling prices, a by-product of silicon integration. By comparison. the DTV market
is small, but rapidly increasing. Based on current market conditions, we believe DTV unit shipments will increase
over the next four years from 20 million in 2004 to 53 million in 2007.

DTV growth drivers will largely mirror those of DVD players. Importantly, two of the largest components
of DTV are glass and silicon, which we expect to drop materially in price over the next few years due to new capacity
and better integration.

Industry analysts define advanced television, or ATV, or digital displays, as displays that do not contain a digital
tuner and integrated MPEG-2 decoder. In the case of LCD televisions, they tune and receive analog video signals
and, through enhanced the use of silicon-based processes such as 3D digital comb filtering and de-interlacing,
significantly enhance the content so that it approaches the quality of DTV. At the higher price points, the LCD
televisions may include add-in board slots for DTV tuners and MPEG-2 decoders.
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According to DisplaySearch, ATVs, which include thin-film-transistor LCD, PDP, and most projection
televisions (LCoS and DLP), are expected to grow from 6 million units in 2003 to 47 million units in 2007. This
favorably compares to the CRT television market that is expected to decrease from 133 million units in 2003 to
116 million units in 2007.

Within the emerging ATV market, LCD television is the largest and fastest growing sub-segment. Moreover,
LCD televisions best illustrate the near-term silicon opportunity resulting from the transition to digital video through
the use of silicon. LCD televisions principally receive analog television broadcasts and employ analog interfaces,
yet they are incapable of scanning video in an interlaced manner. Interlaced video means that only half the image
1s scanned in or at any given frame or moment and as such, a viewer is only seeing half an image comprised of
either odd or evenly scanned lines. LCDs only scan video progressively, and are fed interlaced or nonprogressive
with poor quality analog video signals or are fed digital signals through analog interfaces. As a result, they require
silicon de-interlacers. A good de-interlacer either combines the odd and evenly scanned lines as one image or
intelligently doubles the alternating scan line, in an effort to clean up the progressively scanned image. Without
a good de-interlacing chip, the LCD monitor will robotically fill in missing lines by unintelligently doubling what
1s scanned. Non-intelligent line doubling or dumb de-interlacing, often results in a poor video image.

Our Solution

¢ We believe our display processors provide high quality, efficient silicon de-interlacing and scaling cores
that allow our customers to produce high-qualitv progressive scan CRT television and LCD television at
an attractive price,

e We believe our display processors, software and reference design and design support enable our OEM
customers to accelerate their time to market by reducing their systems engineering development. Our
engineers work closely with our customers’ engineers to facilitate systems design. These benefits enable
our OEM customers to bring products with rich features and differentiated systems to market quickly.

Products

Our products are based on advanced architecture integrated circuits and system designs that provide real time,
cost effective and high quality display processing. We currently offer five product families: the TrueView 5700
family, introduced in calendar year 2004; the CyberPro 5600 family, introduced in calendar year 2003, the CyberPro
5202 family. introduced in calendar year 2002 the CyberPro 5300 family, introduced in calendar year 1999; and
the CyberPro 5000 family, introduced in calendar year 1998. Our semiconductor solutions include different features,
which OEMs can select for inclusion in their products.

The TrueView 5700 is a low pin count, low-cost, highly integrated digital video 1image display processor
providing the key features necessary to design progressive scan CRT television.

The CyberPro3600 supports the evolution of the LCD monitor from a simple screen to an advanced display
with multiple and varied applications. Web-pads, in-flight entertainment system. and info-tainment system displays
that can process enhanced picture-in-picture and multiple source capabilities with the CyberPro 5600. Features that
are optimized specifically for LCD's include superior de-interlacing, advanced scaler performance and exceptional
alpha blending of up to three independent media streams.

The CyberPro 5202 incorporates all the features of our CyberPro 5000, 5003, 5050 and 3035 products. In
addition. a 24-bit digital interface directly supports liquid crystal displays, or LCD, and other digital interfaces.
Enhanced, flexible alpha-blending capabilities allow overlay of different windows with programmable levels of
opacity. Two advanced television encoders allow the user to configure the recording picture in personal video
recorder, or PVR, applications. The processor maintains crisp text presentation, even as the opacity of the window
is varied. The CyberPro 5202 is designed for displays to multiple devices such as traditional cathode ray tube
televisions, advanced televisions, panel displays, emerging interactive displays and LCD products.

The CyberPro 5300 is the first product in the CyberPro 5300 family designed for broadband set-top boxes
that require 3D animation, 3D effects or 3D graphics processing capability.

The CyberPro 5305, 5350 and 5355 are similar to our CyberPro 5005, 5050 and 5055 products, but also provide
3D animation, 3D effects or 3D graphics processing capability.
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The CyberPro 5000 is the first product of the CyberPro 5000 family designed for broadband digital set-top
boxes and advanced televisions. The CyberPro 5000 has enhanced text, graphics and video processing engines,
It also includes two video ports for two simultaneous video streams, high picture quality of broadband video on
television, hardware magnified view of web pages on television and a flexible transparency algorithm for blending
multiple video, text, graphics, pictures and animation on screen.

The CyberPro 5005 is designed for broadband set-top boxes and advanced televisions with Internet and DVD
capability. In addition to CyberPro 5000 features, the 5005 provides MacroVision encryption for copy protection.

The CyberPro 5050 is designed for broadband set-top boxes and advanced televisions that have integrated
audio capability. Additional features include an audio digital signal processor engine with audio synthesis, MID],
I2S, PCM and stereo audio.

The CyberPro 5055 combines all of the features of our CyberPro 5000, 5003 and 5050 products. The CyberPro
50535 provides a solution for broadband set-top boxes and advanced televisions that process multiple media streams
including DVD and full duplex audio.

Customers

We target customers in the advanced television and emerging interactive display markets. We began to focus
on the emerging interactive display market in 1997, and later expanded our focus to include the advanced television
markets. The majority of our sales in fiscal 2004 were to the broadband set-top box market portion of the emerging
interactive display market, primarily for video-on-demand applications. In prior years. the majority of our sales
were to the emerging interactive display market. Many of our customers manufacture or distribute products in more
than one of our target markets.

In fiscal 2004, sales to Kanematsu Devices Corporation, SMS Electronics, Ltd., Weikeng Industrial Co., and
Fujitsu-Stemens Computers Gmbh represented 15%, 12%, 12% and 10% of revenues. respectively. In fiscal 2003,
sales 1o Siemens Communications Ltd., Kanematsu Devices Corporation and Micro Network Korea Co., Ltd.
represented 24%., 17% and 10% of revenues, respectively. In fiscal 2002, sales to Prediwave Corporation and
Motorola Broadband accounted for 62% and 14% of revenues, respectively.

In fiscal 2004, sales to customers in the United States, Europe, Taiwan and Japan comprised of 24%, 24%,
18%, and 15% of revenues, respectively. In fiscal 2003, sales to customers in Europe. Taiwan, Japan, the United
States and Korea comprised of 35%. 25%. 16%, 14% and 10% of revenues, respectively. In fiscal 2002, sales to
customers in the United States and Taiwan comprised 68% and 22% of revenues. respectively.

Sales and Marketing

We sell and market our display processors through our direct sales force, sales representatives and distributors.
For our software products, we also use value added resellers and system integrators that package and use our
software products for resale as standard products or custom software development services.

Our products are marketed primarily through reference platforms and evaluation kits designed internally and
with industry leading microprocessors, real-time operating systems and other strategic partners directly or indirectly
through our partners’ channels to OEMs for evaluation and development. These reference platforms and evaluation
kits (hardware and software) have proven to be vital to our success in obtaining new design wins. We also promote
our products through our website, trade shows, articles, press releases and joint promotions with our strategic

partners.

Our personnel work closely with customers, sales representatives and authorized distributors to define product
features, performance, price and market timing of new products. We provide technical support and design assistance
directly to OEM customers, regardless of the sales channels used. We believe that a high level of customer support
is necessary to successfully develop and maintain long-term relationships with our customers. These relationships
begin at the design phase and develop, as customer needs change and evolve. We provide support through both
on site customer service and remote support from our facilities.

As of March 31, 2004, we employed a sales and marketing force of 11 people. We believe these personnel
have the technical expertise and industry knowledge necessary to support a lengthy and complex sales process.
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We also employed four field applications engineers to assist customers in designing, testing and qualifying system
designs that incorporate our integrated circuits and software products. We believe that the depth and quality of this
design support team are key to improving our customers’ time to market and maintaining a high level of customer
satisfaction. Our direct sales offices are located in Santa Clara, California, Shenzhen and Hefei, People’s Republic
of China. All of our sales offices provide hardware and software applications support.

Research and Development

Our research and development efforts are focused on four areas: device architecture and logic design, physical
layer design, software development and device testing. As of March 31, 2004, our research and development staff
consisted of 88 employees, (15 of whom were located in the United States and 73 of whom were located in the
People’s Republic of China). Our research and development efforts have centered on architecture design, streaming
media processing modes, high-speed digital and mixed signal design and software.

We conduct research and development at our design centers in Santa Clara. California and Hefei, People’s
Republic of China. Our People’s Republic of China facility is located in a seience park near Hefei University of
Technology, where employee costs are lower than in the San Francisco Bay Area.

Our research and development expenses for fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $6.8 million, $9.0 million
and $12.7 million, respectively. Research and development expenses consist mainly of personnel and other costs
associated with the development of product designs, process technology, software and programming hardware. We
anticipate that we will continue to commit substantial resources to research and development in the future.

Manufacturing

We have adopted a fabless semiconductor manufacturing model and therefore we outsource all of our
semiconductor manufacturing and assembly. This approach allows us to focus our resources on the design,
development, testing and marketing of our products and significantly reduces our capital requirements. We develop
our designs to be compatible with three foundries, United Manufacturing Corporation. or UMC, and Taiwan
Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation, or TSMC, both of which are located in Hsin Chu, Taiwan, and
HuaHong NEC located in the People’s Republic of China. This allows us to shift production from one facility to
the-other in the event of a capacity constraint at one foundry. We currently use 0.35 micron technology for production
of our CyberPro 5000, Cyberpro 5600 and Trueview 5700 families. We use 0.3 micron technology for production
of our CyberPro 5300 family and 0.18 micron technology for production of our CyperPro 5202 famuily.

We internally design and optimize digital and analog cells through our physical layer design group. We believe
this allows us to reduce the size of the semiconductor and therefore the cost. This also gives us greater control over
the quality and reliability of our multi-media display processors.

Assembly of our devices is performed by Advance Semiconductor Engineering. Inc. in Kaohsiung, Taiwan.
and Belling Corp., Ltd. in ShangHai, People's Republic of China. We may also use Siliconware Precision Industries
Lid., located in Hsin Chu, Taiwan. Final testing is primarily performed by us at our subsidiary in Hefei, People’s

Republic of China.

Competition

The semiconductor industry in general, and the market for integrated circuits for advanced televisions and
emerging interactive displays, in particular, is highly competitive. We believe we can compete favorably in each
of the key competitive factors in our target markets. These factors are:

¢ functionality;

¢ performance;

¢ time to market;
e price;

e conformity to industry standards;




¢ product road maps; and
¢ technical support.

Our current and primary competitors are ATI Technologies, Inc., Broadcom Corporation, Genesis Microchip,
Inc., Pixelworks, Inc., Trident Microsystems, Inc. and Silicon Image, Inc. In addition to these competitors, we expect
other major semiconductor manufacturers will enter the market as the advanced television and emerging interactive
display markets develop. A number of companies, including International Business Machines Corporation,
STMicroelectronics N.V., National Semiconductor, Equator Technologies, Inc., LSI Logic and Philips Electronics
N.V., have announced that they are developing or plan to introduce competing products in the advanced television
and emerging nteractive display markets which could result in significant competition. We expect competition to
intensify as current competitors expand their product offerings and new competitors enter the market.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, trademark and trade secret laws and contractual restrictions
to establish and protect our intellectual property and proprietary rights that we develop and license from others.

We have been granted two United States patents, containing claims covering various aspects of combining
digital streams of video and graphics for presentation on an output display and for changing the size of graphic
data for presentation on a television output display. We expect to file patent applications as we deem appropriate
to protect our technology and products. We cannot be sure that our patent applications will result in the issuance
of patents, or that any issued patents will provide commercially significant protection to our technology.

We also license from others certain audio, graphics and semiconductor technology that is incorporated in our
semiconductors and certain intellectual property rights. These licenses are perpetual and survive the termination
of the agreements under which we obtained such licenses. The protections we receive from others against
infringement under the terms of these licensing agreements are limited and we cannot be sure that alternative

technology exists.

In July 2000, we entered into an agreement with Hitachi, Ltd., which has developed proprietary technology
on system-on-a-chip SH-4 microprocessors . or SH-4. As a result of our agreement. Hitachi licensed to us the right
to use this SH-4 technology for system-on-a-chip integration in our products and to manufacture, distribute and
sublicense products using the SH-4 technology. In March 2002, we postponed the product related to this technology
indefinitely: accordingly, we wrote off $0.5 million of license technology related to this SH-4 technology.

In December 2000, we entered into an agreement with Oak Technology. Inc. or Oak, which has proprizstary
3D graphics technology that permits incorporation of the 3D graphics function onto our chips. As a result of our
agreement, we were granted the right to use this 3D graphics technology for 3D graphics integration in our products
and to manufacture, distribute and sublicense products using the 3D graphics technology.

In April 2001, we amended the agreement with Oak, in order to license Oak’s proprietary MPEG-2 technology
that permits the incorporation of MPEG-2 decoding functions onto our chips. As a result of our agreement, we were
granted the right to use this MPEG-2 technology for MPEG-2 integration in our products and to manufacture,
distribute and sublicense products using the MPEG-2 decoding technology. [n December 2003, we postponed the
product related to this technology indefinitely: accordingly, we wrote off S1.5 million of license technology related
to this MPEG-2 technology.

In July 2003, we sold our software business and software-related assets to MediaTek, Inc. The software assets
were developed internally to support our products, including Home IT, advanced digital video broadcasting, MPEG
4 software, SDK software and software drivers. In connection with this transaction, MediaTek granted to us a
royalty-free license to continue to use those software assets to support our existing products and fulfill our
maintenance obligations to our existing customers.

We attempt to avoid infringing known proprietary rights of third parties in our product development efforts.
It is difficult to proceed with certainty in a rapidly evolving technological environment in which there may be
numerous patent applications pending, many of which are confidential when filed, with regard to similar
technologies. If our products violate third party proprietary rights, we might not be able to obtain licenses to continue
offering these products without substantial reengineering. Efforts to undertake this reengineering might not be
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successful, licenses might be unavailable on commercially reasonable terms, if at all, and litigation might not be
avoided or settled without substantial expense and damage awards.

CyberPro and Tvia are registered trademarks, and the Tvia logo is a trademark of Tvia in the United States
and other jurisdictions.

Backlog

Our sales are made primarily pursuant to standard purchase orders for delivery of products. Due to industry
practice which allows customers to cancel or change orders with limited advance notice prior to shipment, we
believe that backlog is not a reliable indicator of future revenue levels.

Seasonality

The electronics industry has historically been subject to seasonal and cyclical fluctuations in demand for its
products, and this trend may continue in the future. These industry downturns have been, and may continue to be,
characterized by diminished product demand, excess manufacturing capacity and subsequent erosion of average
selling prices.

Employees

As of March 31, 2004, we had 141 full time employees including 88 engaged in research and development,
Il engaged in sales and marketing. 29 engaged in operations and 13 engaged in general management and
administration activities. Of these employees, 27 work in our Santa Clara facility and 114 work at our facility in
the People’s Republic of China. Our emplovees are not represented by any collective bargaining agreement and
we have never experienced a work stoppage. We believe our relations with our employees are good.

Available Information

Our internet address is www.tvia.com. We make available free of charge through a hyperlink on its website
our anaual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Forms 8-K, and amendments
1o those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable
after the material is furnished to the SEC. Our website and the information contained therein or connected thereto
is not intended to be incorporated into this Annual Report on From 10-K.

Item 2. Properties

Our headquarters, which also serves as our principal administrative, selling. marketing. customer support,
applications engineering and product development facility, is located in Santa Clara, California. and consists of
one building of approximately 16,500 square feet under a lease that expires in July 2005. We also lease a building
located in Hefei, People's Republic of China of approximately 15,000 square feet under a lease that expires in June
2005 for our research and development operations in China; and a butlding located in Shenzhen, People’s Republic
of China of approximately 2,500 square feet under a lease that expires in November 2004 for our marketing and
customer support in China.

We believe our existing facilities are adequate to meet our needs for the near future and that future growth
can be accomplished by leasing additional or alternative space on commercially reasonable terms.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time we may be involved in litigation relating to claims arising in the ordinary course of business.
As of the date of this filing, we do not believe that any of the legal proceedings pending against us or, to the best
of our knowledge, threatened against us, will have a significant adverse effect on our financial position or results

of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Not applicable.




Executive Officers
The executive officers of the Company are as follows:

Kenny Liu, 50, has served as our Chairman of the Board since January 1993, and as Chief Executive Officer
from January 1995 to November 2001. From January 1989 to March 1994, Mr. Liu served as Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of OPTi Inc., a manufacturer of core logic chip sets for the personal computer market. Mr. Liu
received a B.S. in Electrical Engineering from National Cheng-Kung University in Taiwan, an M.S. in Computer
Science from Santa Clara University and an M.S. in Electrical Engineering from Ohio State University.

Eli Porat, 58, has served as our Chief Executive Officer since November 2001and as President since February
2002. Mr. Porat has served as a director of our Company since March 2001. From January 1997 to November 2001,
Mr. Porat was Chief Executive Officer of OpenGrid, Inc., a mobile business solutions company. From 1991 1o 1996,
Mr. Porat was Chief Executive Officer of DSP Group, an audio digital signal processing company. From 1972 to
1983, Mr. Porat was with Intel Corporation. Mr. Porat earned a B.S. and M.S. degrees in Electrical Engineering
. and Computer Science from the University of California, Berkeley.

Arthur Nguyen, 52, has served as our Chief Financial Officer since March 2003. He joined us as Corporate
Controller in October 2000, serving in that position until February 2003. Prior to joining us, he served as Director
of Accounting at marchFIRST, an internet consulting company from November 1999 to September 2000. From
July 1996 to October 1999, Mr. Nguyen was Chief Financial Officer of Hayward Quartz Technology, Inc., a
semiconductor component manufacturer. Mr. Nguyen received a Master in Business Administration with a
concentration in Accounting from the California State University — San Bernardino and a B.S. in Business
Admuinistration from California State University — Sacramento. Mr. Nguyen is a Certified Public Accountant.

Jhi-Chung Kuo, 51, a cofounder of the Company, has served as our Vice President of Engineering since April
2002. From July 2000 to March 2002, he served as our Chief Technology Officer. From March 1993 to June 2000,
Mr. Kuo served as our Vice President of Engineering. Mr. Kuo received a B.S. in Physics from National Central
University in Taiwan and an M.S. in Electrical Engineering from Mississippi State University.

James Tao, 53, has served as Vice President of Sales and Marketing since March 2002. He joined us in June
1997 as Senior Director of Business Development, and served from November 1999 to March 2002 as Vice President
of Business Development. From March 1989 to May 1997, Mr. Tao served as Vice President of Sales and Marketing
at Focus Information Systems. a personal computer peripheral product company. Mr. Tao received an M.B.A. in
Telecommunication Management from Golden Gate University and an M.S. in Computer Science from the

University of Hawaii.



PART I

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

The Company’s common stock, par value $0.001 (“Common Stock™), is traded on the Nasdaq National Market
(“Nasdaq”) under the symbol “TVIA”, until December 4, 2002, when it began to trade on the Nasdaq SmallCap
Market under the same ticker symbol. The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the range of high
and low sales prices for the Common Stock on the Nasdaq National Market and SmallCap Market, applicable.

High Low

2002 Quarter Ended:
June 30 ... 1.90 0.88
September 30 ... 0.99 0.435
December 31.... .. 0.77 0.47

2003 Quarter Ended:
March 31... . 0.70 0.51
June 30 ..o e 1.08 0.65
September 30 ... 2.20 1.03
December 31.....o oo 3.25 1.57

2004 Quarter Ended:
March 31 . 3.30 1.97

As of May 28, 2004, the Common Stock was held by 181 stockholders of record (not including beneficial
holders of stock held in street name). The Company has never declared or paid dividends on its capital stock and
does not anticipate paying any dividends in the foreseeable future. The Company currently intends to retain future
earnings for the development of its business.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Compensation Plans

Information regarding securities authorized for issuance under our equity compensation plans can be found
under Ttem 12 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Purchase of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

During the year ended March 31. 2004, we did not purchase any of the equity securities of Tvia, although
we do have two repurchase programs in place.

On November 10, 2001, the Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase program to acquire outstanding
common stock in the open market. Under this program, the Board of Directors authorized the acquisition of up
to 200,000 of our common stock. This program does not have a stock repurchase maximum amount or an expiration
date. As of March 31, 2004, we had acquired 143,700 shares on the open market that we hold as treasury stock.
At the March 31, 2004 stock price. the proceeds to be used to acquire up to 56,300 shares of our common stock
will have a minimal impact on our current cash, cash equivalent and short-term investment balances.

On August 20, 2002, the Board of Directors authorized an additional stock repurchase program to acquire up
to 5 million shares of outstanding common stock in the open market for a maximum of $0.50. This program does
not have an expiration date. As of March 31, 2004, we had not repurchased any shares of common stock under

this program.

Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data

The selected consolidated financial data set forth below with respect to our consolidated statements of
operations data for the years ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, and with respect to our consolidated balance
sheets at March 31, 2004 and 2003, are derived from our Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes which
are included in this Form 10-K. The selected consolidated statements of operations data for the years ended
March 31, 2001 and 2000 and our consolidated balance sheet data at March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 are derived
from our audited consolidated financial statements not included in this Form 10-K. The data set forth below should
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be read in conjunction with Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations and the Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes included in this Form 10-K.

Year Ended March 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

(in thousands, except per share data)

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:

Revenues:
Productsales..................oiiiaL, $ 2042 & 1771 S 11,342 S$12.743  $6,528
Development contracts and other.................. 267 461 498 701 529
Total revenues .......ooieiiii 2,309 2.232 11,840 13,444 7,057
Cost of revenues:
Product sales..........coovreiiiiiiiiii it 1,235 1,460 8,522 7.630 3,622
Development contracts and other.................. 88 83 109 68 185
Total cost of revenues ..., 1.323 1.543 8.631 7.718 3.807
Gross profit. ... 986 689 3,209 5,726 3,250
Operating expenses:
Research and development........................ 6,823 8,983 12,664 6,774 3,390
Sales, general and administrative.................. 2,667 3,545 5,056 5.695 3,370
Amortization of deferred stock compensation .. ... — 595 1,572 2,701 1,499
Restructuring costs.............oooviiiiiiiioa — 950 — — —
Total operating expenses........................ 9.490 14.073 19.292 15.170 3.239
Operating 1oss. ......covv i (8,504)  (13.,384) (16,083) (9, 444)  (5,009)
Other income (expense), net
Interest income................oooiviiiiii . 401 703 1,818 2,105 49
Interest expense ... i, (1D (14) — (459)  (1,081)
Gain on sale of software business................. 9.075 — — — —
Other income (expense), net.................... 8.463 689 1.818 1,646 (1.032)
“=—-Net income (loss) before extraordinary item......... 961 (12,69%) (14,265 (7.798) (6,041)
Extraordinary item, net of income taxes ............. — — — 672 —
Income (loss) before taxes.............coovi ... 961 (12.693)  (14.265) (8.470)  (6.041)
Income taxes .. ... 25 — — — —
Net income (J0SS). ..o iviii e 936 (12.693)  (14,263) (8.470) 6,041
Dividend related to convertible preferred stock ... .. — — — 671 2,161
Net income (loss) attributable to common
stockholders. ..., S 936 S(12.6935) S$(14.265) S(9.141) $(8.202)

Basic and diluted net income (loss) attributable to
common stockholders before extraordinary item .. § 004 § (038 § (0.66) S (0.56) S (2.63)

Extraordinary item, net of income taxes ............. — — — 0.05 —
Basic and diluted net income (loss) attributable to

common stockholders ... i S 004 $ (058) $ (0.66) S (0.61) $ (2.63)
Shares used in computing basic net loss per share to

common stockholders ...l 22,323 21,952 21,631 15,052 3,118
Shares vsed in computing diluted net loss per share

to common stockholders ..ol 23,982 21,952 21,631 15,052 3,118
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Year Ended March 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

(in thousands, except per share data)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents and short-term

INVEStMENIS .. ....oviiii i $27,206 324,417  $35505 $46,682 $ 6,864
Working capital...........ooo 28,000 24,273 35,979 50,305 5,915
Total assels ....ovvrreneiiiii e 31,403 31,193 43,387 57,435 11,368
Long term liabilities .......................o — 486 — — 2,959
Redeemable convertible preferred stock ............. — — — -— 16,594
Stockholders’ equity (deficit) ... $30,059  $28,766  $40,925  $53.422  $(14,266)

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of the Company’s financial condition and results of operations should
be read in conjunction with “Selected Consolidated Financial Data™ and the Consolidated Financial Statements and

related Notes included elsewhere in this Report.

» »

When used in this discussion, the words “expects,” “anticipates,” “estimates,” and similar expressions are
intended 10 identlfy forward-looking statements. These statements relate to future periods and include statements
as to expected revenues and sources of revenues, future profitability, the reasonableness of our accounting
assumptions and estimates, factors that may affect our gross margin, the effect of certain accounting principles
on our consolidated financial statements, future sales to key customers, the level of export sales, the level of our
research and development expense, development of new products, research and development in China, uses and
adequacy of our current cash, cash equivalents and shorr-term investments, the impact of the adoption of accounting
pronouncements, reliance on a small number of original equipment manufacturers, future orders of our products,
our ability to compete, increasing competition in our markets and our competitors, sales 1o customers ottside of
the United States, effect of foreign currency exchange rates, and changes in interest rates, are subject to risks and
uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those projected. These risks and uncertainties
include, bur are not limited to, those risks discussed below, as well as risks relating to as slower than anticipated
emergence of the interactive television market; the effect of the terrorist attacks in the United Stares and any resulting
conflicts or similar events worldwide on our customers’ demand of our products; the impact of worldwide events
on our operations in China; general economic conditions and specific conditions in the markets we address;
dependence on a keyv customer or OEM, the loss of a key customer; decreases in sales 1o a kex OEM; our ability
to specify, develop or acquire, complete, introduce, marker and transition to volume production new products and
technologies in a timely manner; the volume of our produci sales and pricing concessions on volume sales; the
qualification, availability and pricing of competing products and rechnologies and the resulting effects on sales
and pricing of our products; fluctuations in the manufacturing vields of our third party semiconductor foundries
and other problems or delays in the fabrication, assembly, testing or delivery of our products: purchases of capital
assets; changes in our products or customer mix; the risk that excess inventory may result in write-offs, price erosion
and decreased demand, the level of orders received that can be shipped in a fiscal quarter; the inpact of foreign
currency exchange rates; and the matters discussed in “Factors that Mav Affect Results.” These forward-looking
statements speak only as of the date hereof. The Company expressly disclaims any obligation or undertaking to
release publicly any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect any change
in the Company’s expectations with regard thereto or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on vwhich
any statement is based.

Overview

We design, develop and market display processors for the interactive-television market as well as a family
of flexible, high-quality display processors tailored to the Asia Pacific television manufacturers creating next-

generation digital LCD, HD, and progressive-scan televisions.

We currently offer five product families: the TrueView 5700 family, introduced in calendar year 2004; the
CyberPro 5600 family, introduced in calendar year 2003; the CyberPro 5202 family, introduced in calendar year
2002; the CyberPro 5300 family, introduced in calendar year 1999; and the CyberPro 5000 family, introduced in
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calendar year 1998. These product families currently generate most of our revenues. We sell our products through
two channels. First, we sell our products directly to original equipment manufacturers, or OEMs, and recognize
revenues at the time of shipment to these OEMs. Second, we sell our products to a number of distributors. We defer
recognition of revenues for sales to our distributors until they have sold our products to end-users. We also generate
revenues from licensing software, which we believe will continue to constitute a small percentage of total revenues

in the future.

Historically, a relatively small number of customers and distributors have accounted for a significant portion
of our product sales. Our top four customers accounted for 15%, 12%, 12% and 10% of total revenues in the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2004. Our top three customers accounted for 24%, 17% and 10% of total revenues in the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2003. Our top two customers accounted for 62% and 14% of total revenues in the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2002.

Various factors have affected and may continue to affect our gross margin. These factors include, but are not
limited to, our product mix, the position of our products in their respective life cycles, yields and the mix of our
product sales and development contracts and other revenues. For example, newly introduced products generally
have higher average selling prices and generate higher gross margins. Both average selling prices and the related
gross margins typically decline over product life cycles due to competitive pressures and volume price agreements.
Our gross margin and operating results in the future may continue to fluctuate as a result of these and other factors.

The sales cycle for the test and evaluation of our products can range from three months to nine months or
more, with an additional three to nine months or more before an OEM customer commences volume production
of equipment incorporating our products, if ever. Due to these fengthy sales cycles, we may experience a delay
between incurring operating expenses and inventory costs and the generation of revenues from design wins.

We have sustained operating losses on a quarterly and annual basis since inception. As of March 31, 2004,
we had an accumulated deficit of approximately $62.0 mitlion. These losses resulted from significant costs incurred
in the planning and development of our technology and services and from significant marketing costs. We anticipate
lower revenues for at least the next several quarters as compared to the same period in the prior fiscal year. We
believe that this is due to a slowdown in the interactive television industry caused by a slower than anticipated
emergence of the interactive television market, a general industry inventory correction. delay in customer product
introductions in order to incorporate additional third-party features, and general economic uncertainty.

In connection with the grant of stock options to employees, we have recorded stock-based compensation charge
related to stock options granted below deemed fair market value cumulatively through March 31, 2003 of
approximately $6.4 million. This amount represents the difference between the exercise price of these stock option
grants and the deemed fair value of the common stock at the time of grant and it was fully amortized through
March 31, 2003. There was no stock-based compensation charge in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004,

We have a subsidiary in Hefei. People’s Republic of China, which performs final test, sales and research and
development, and an office in Shenzen. People’s Republic of China. to provide complete system support including
design and integration to our customers.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and the reported arnounts of net revenue and expenses during
the reporting period. We regularly evaluate our estimatés and assumptions related to allowances for doubtful
accounts, sales returns and allowances, inventory reserves, purchased intangible asset valuations, warranty reserves,
and other contingencies. We base our estimates and assumptions on historic experience and on various other factors
that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. To the extent
there are material differences between our estimates and the actual results, our future results of operations will

be affected.




We believe the following critical accounting policies, among others, affect the significant judgments and
estimates we use in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements:

® Revenues. We recognize revenues from product sales upon shipment to OEMs and end users provided that
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the price is fixed or determinable, title has transferred,
collection of resulting receivables is reasonably assured, there are no customer acceptance requirements,
and there are no remaining significant obligations. Reserves for sales returns and allowances are recorded
at the time of shipment. Our sales to distributors are made under agreements allowing for returns or credits
under certain circumstances. We defer recognition of revenue on sales to distributors until products are resold
by the distributor to the end user. As part of our revenue recognition policy, we analyze various factors,
including a review of specific transactions, historical experience and current market and economic
conditions. Changes in judgments on these factors could impact the timing and amount of revenue

recognized.

® Receivables. We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability
of customers to make required payments. If the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances could be required.

» Inventory. We write down our inventory for estimated obsolescence or unmarketable inventory equal to the
difference between the cost of inventory and the estimated realizable value based upon assumptions about
future demand and market conditions. If actual market conditions are less favorable than those projected
by managemeat, additional inventory write-downs could be required.

o Impairment of Long-Lived Assers. We evaluate long-lived assets used in operations, including purchased
intangible assets, when indicators of impairment, such as reductions in demand or significant economic
slowdowns in the semiconductor industry, are present. Reviews are performed to determine whether the
carrying value of assets is impaired based on comparison to the undiscounted expected future cash flows.
If the comparison indicates that there is impairment, the impaired asset is written down to fair value.
Impairment is based on the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value of those assets. Significant
management judgment is required in the forecast of future operating results that is used in the preparation
of expected discounted cash flows. It is reasonably possible that the estimates of anticipated future net
revenue, the remaining estimated economic life of the products and technologies. or both, could differ from
those used to assess the recoverability of these assets. In that event, additional impairment charges or
shortened useful lives of certain long-live assets could be required.
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Results of Operations

The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, certain consolidated statement of operations data
reflected as a percentage of revenues. Our results of operations are reported as a single business segment.

Year Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
Revenues:
Product sales............ooooiiin i 88% 79% 96%
Development contracts and other......................... 12 21 _ 4
Total revenues ................ _100 100 _100
Cost of revenues:
Productsales...............iii i 53 65 72
Development contracts and other......................... _ 4 _ 4 1
Total cost of revenues ...l _57 _69 73
Gross profit..........co 43 31 27
Operating expenses:
Research and development.......................... L, 265 402 107
Sales, general and adminstrative......................... 116 159 43
Amortization of deferred stock compensation............ — 27 13
Restructuring eXpenses .. ....oo.ovveieeriiiieieiiiiannin... - 43 —
Total operating expenses..................cooi. 41 631 _163
Operating 10ss . ... (368) (600) (136)
Other income (expense). net
Interest income. ... i 17 31 135
Interest exXpense . ... — —
Gain on sale of software business........................ 393 = o~
Other income (expense). et...........oooiiviiiiin.n. 410 3 _15
Net income (1oss) before taxes. ....... ... iiviiiiiiii.. 42 (569) (121
Income taxes ............. 1 i =
Netincome (10SS). ..o 41% (569)% (121N)%

Results of Operations for the Fiscal Years Ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Revenues. Revenues were $2.3 million, $2.2 million and $11.8 million for the fiscal years ended March 31.
2004. 2003 and 2002, respectively. Revenues were relatively flat in fiscal year 2004 compared to fiscal year 2003,
and decreased by $9.6 million from fiscal year 2002 to fiscal year 2003. These decreases in revenues in fiscal years
2004 and 2003 compared to fiscal 2002 were primarily due to a slower than anticipated emergence of the interactive
television market and general economic conditions in fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002. We generate most of our
revenues from design wins with new OEMSs that rely on third-party manufacturers or distributors to provide
inventory management and purchasing functions.

Export revenues, consisting primarily of product sales and development contracts to OEMs, sales
representatives and distributors in Asia, represented 76%, 86% and 32% of total revenues in fiscal years 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively. All export revenues are denominated in United States dollars. We believe export sales will
represent a majority of our revenues in the foreseeable future.

Gross margin, Gross margin increased to 43% in fiscal year 2004 compared to 31% in fiscal year 2003 primarily
due to lower overhead burden and sale of inventories previously reserved for in fiscal year 2002. The reduction
in overhead burden was due to lower headcount and facilities costs. Gross margin increased to 31% in fiscal year
2003 from 27% in fiscal year 2002 resulting from a write off of $2.1 million of slow moving inventory in fiscal
year 2002 and from higher margin non-product revenues such as consulting revenue and software.
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Research and development. Research and development expenses include personnel and other costs associated with
the development of product designs, process technology, software and programming hardware. Historically, our research
and development expenses reflect our continuing efforts to develop and bring to market innovative and cost effective
multi-media display processors that process the rich media content available on the broadband network. We are now
focusing our research and development efforts on display processors for the interactive television market.

Research and development expenses were $6.8 million, $9.0 million and $12.7 million for the fiscal years ended
March 31,2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The decrease in research and development expense in absolute dollars
and as a percentage of revenues from fiscal 2003 to fiscal 2004 resulted from the sale of our software business unit
to MediaTek, Inc. in July 2003, partially offset by a write-off in license technology. The decrease in research and
development expenses in absolute dollars from fiscal year 2002 to fiscal year 2003 resulted primarily from a
reduction of our research and development operations in Santa Clara, California. We now employ 88 employees
inresearch and development, of which 15 are located in the United States and 73 are located in the People’s Republic
of China, compared to 276 employees in fiscal year 2002. Our research and development activities in the People’s
Republic of China provide software and application specific integrated circuit development support to our domestic
operations. The costs of our research and development activities in China are substantially lower than the costs
of our activities in Santa Clara. In the foreseeable future, we expect research and development expenses in absolute
dollars to slightly increase compared to the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004 expenses on an annualized basis.

Sales, general and administrative. Sales, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of personnel
and other costs associated with the management of our business and with the sals and marketing of our products.
Sales, general and administrative expenses were $2.7 million, $3.5 million and $3.1 million for the fiscal vears ended
March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The decreases in sales, general and administrative expenses from
fiscal year 2002 to fiscal year 2003 and from fiscal year 2003 to fiscal year 2004 resulted from a reduction in
workforce and other cost cutting measures. In a foreseeable future, we expect sales, general and administrative
expenses 1 absolute dollars to be higher. This increase is expected to be primarily associated with the costs of
implementing the provisions as required by section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

Amortization of deferred stock compensation. We grant stock options to hire, motivate and retain employees.
We incurred stock compensation expense of $0.0 million, $0.6 million and $1.6 million for the fiscal years ended
March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Gain on Sale of Software Unir. The Company recorded a gain on a sale of its software business and software-
related assets to MediaTek, Inc. in exchange for $10 million in cash in the fiscal vear ended March 31, 2004.
Expenses related to this transaction amounted to $.9 million.

Restructuring Charges. During fiscal 2003, the Company recorded a restructuring charge of $950,000 relating to
a headcount reduction and an operating lease for an abandoned building. The restructuring was recorded to align the
cost structure with changing market conditions. The plan resulted in headcount reduction of approximately 49 employees,
which was made up of 55% of research and development staff, 23% of operations staff. 16% of general and administrative
staff and 6% of sales and marketing staff. The charge in relation to the operating lease of the abandoned building represents
the estimated difference between the total non-discounted future sublease income and the non-discounted lease
commitments relating to this buitding. The restructunng plan has been completed as of March 31, 2004,

The following table summarizes the activity associated with the restructuring liabilities (in thousands):

License Leased Severances
Technology Facilities and Benefits Total
Balance at March 31,2002 ............... S — S — S — S —
Additions . ... 69 162 719 950
Non-cash charges......................... (69) — — (69)
Cashcharges ...............cooiiieinn, e _(13% (19 _(858)
Balance at March 31,2003 ............... — 23 — 23
Cashcharges ...l - 23 - -
Balance at March 31,2004................ §___:_ $____: §___: i___;
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Other income (expense), net. Other income (expense), net consists primarily of interest income, interest
expense and the gain on sale of software unit. Other income, net was $9.5 million, $0.7 million and $1.8 million
for fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Other income, net, generated in the fiscal years ended March 31,
2004 primarily resulted from a gain of $9.1 million on sale of our software business and software related assets
to MediaTek, Inc. Other income, net, generated in the fiscal years ended March 31, 2003 and 2002, was primarily
a result of interest income earned from our investments. Other income, net was further offset in fiscal years 2003
and 2002 by a lower return on our investments and declining levels of amount of cash and short-term investments.

Provision for income taxes. We are taxed in our jurisdictions of operations based on the extent of taxable income
generated in each jurisdiction. For income tax purposes, revenues are attributed to the taxable jurisdiction where
the sales transactions generating the revenues were initiated. A provision for income tax for fiscal 2004 was recorded
despite of prior years’ net operating losses. This was attributable to the US federal alternative minimum tax applied
on the gain of the software business unit. We incurred operating losses for each of the fiscal years ended March 31,
2003 and 2002, and therefore made no provisicn for income tax in these fiscal years. As of March 31, 2004, we
had federal and state net cumulative operating losses of approximately $44 million and $16 million, respectively,
which are available to offset future taxable income. If not used, these net operating losses will expire through 2024

and 2014, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004, net cash used in operating activities was $5.4 million, primarily due
to operating loss of $8.5 million, a decrease in accrued expenses and accounts payable of $0.7 million, partially offset
by a gain on sale of software unit of $9.1 million and non-cash expenses of $3.0 million and a decrease of $0.5 million
in inventories. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003, net cash used in operating activities was $§10.5 million,
primarily due to net loss of $12.7 million, a decrease in accrued expenses and accounts payable of $0.9 million and an
increase in accounts receivable of $0.2 million, partially offset by non-cash expenses of $2.0 million and decreases of
$0.8 million and $0.5 million in prepaid expenses and other current assets, and inventories, respectively. Dunng the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2002, net cash used in operating activities was $8.0 million, primarily due to net loss of $14.3
million, a decrease in accrued expenses of S1.1 million, partially offset by non-cash expenses of $3.2 million and
decreases of $1.8 million and $2.8 mitlion in accounts receivable and inventories, respectively.

Cash flows used in investing activities were 52.4 million in the fiscal year 2004 compared to cash flows
provided by investing activities of $15.3 million in fiscal year 2003. This decrease was primarily due to the purchase
of investments offset by the proceeds from the sale of the software unit. Cash flows provided by investing activities
were $135.3 million in the fiscal year 2003 compared to cash flows used in investing activities of $7.2 million in
fiscal year 2002. This increase was primarily due to the sale of investments. As of March 31. 2004, we did not
have any significant capital purchase commitments.

Net cash flows used in financing activities were SO.1 million and $0.2 million, including repayment of capital
leases, for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2004 and 2003. respectively. They were attributable to payments of
capital leases, partially offset by the proceeds from the sale of common stock under our Incentive Stock and
Employee Stock Purchase Plans. Net cash flows provided by financing activities in fiscal 2002 resuited primarily
from the proceeds from the sale of common stock under our Incentive Stock and Employee Stock Purchase Plans.

As of March 31, 2004, our principal source of liquidity consisted of cash and cash equivalents and short-term
investments. Working capital at March 31, 2004 was $28.0 million.

The following represent our more significant working capital commitments:

We lease its facilities under non-cancelable operating leases expiring at various dates through July 2005. Under
the terms of the leases, the Company is responsible for a portion of the facilities” operating expenses, insurance and
property taxes. We lease certain fixed assets under capital leases expiring at various dates through February 2005. We
place purchase orders with wafer foundries throughout our normal course of business. As of March 31, 2004, we had
approximately $78,000 of outstanding purchase commitments with a supplier for the purchase of wafers and a packaging
subcontractor. We expect to receive and pay for the wafers, within the next six months, from our existing cash balances.
Future working capital commitments as of March 31, 2004 were as follows (in thousands):
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Capital Operating Purchase

Fiscal Year Leases Leases Commitments Total
2005, . 490 171 78 739
20060 = 47 p— 47
Total minimum lease payments........ 490 218 18 786

Based on our current expectations, we believe that our cash and cash equivalents and short-term investment,
which totaled $27.2 million at March 31, 2004, will be sufficient to meet our working capital and capital
requirements through at least the next twelve months. In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004, excluding the cash
received from the sale of our software business to MediaTek, we used $5.6 million of cash and cash equivalents
and short-term investments.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities” (*“FIN 46™), was issued in January 2003. FIN 46 requires that if an entity is the primary beneficiary of
a variable interest entity, the assets, liabilities, and results of operations of the variable interest entity should be
included in the consolidated financial statements of the entity. The provisions of FIN 46 are effective immediately
for all arrangements entered into after January 31, 2003. For those arrangements entered into prior to February 1,
2003, the provisions of FIN 46 were required to be adopted at the beginning of the first interim or annual period
beginning after June 15, 2003. However, in October 2003, the FASB deferred the effective date of FIN 46 to the
end of the first interim or annual period ending after December 31, 2003 for those arrangements entered into prior
to February 1. 2003. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In May 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS™) No. 150, "Accounting
for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity”. SFAS No. 150 establishes
standards for how an issuer classifies and measures certain financial instruments with characteristics of both
fiabilities and equity. SFAS No. 150 requires that an issuer classify a financial instrument that is within its scope
as a liability (or an asset in some circumstances). SFAS No. 150 is effective for financial instruments entered into
or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning
after June 13, 2003. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial position. resuits of operations or cash flows.

Interim Financial Information (unaudited)

The following table presents selected unaudited quarterly results of operations data for each of the eight
guarters in the period ended March 31, 2004, We believe that the historical quarterly information has been prepared
substantially on the same basis as the audited financial statements. and the necessary adjustments. consisting only
of normal recurring adjustments, have been included in the amounts below to present fairly unaudited quarterly
results of operation data (in thousands, except per share data):

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2004:
Total revenues .........oooiiiiiiiinann... S 380 S 620 S 628 S 481
Gross Margii. ....ovuveneeeiieieninnns 237 266 269 214
Net 105S. .ot (2,064) 7,442 (2,946) (1,496)
Basic and diluted net loss per share ...... S (0.09) S 034 $ (0.13) S (0.07)
Diluted net loss per share................. $ (0.09) $ 032 $ (0.13) $ (0.07)
Shares used in computing basic net loss
pershare ..., 22,145 22,198 22,374 22,500
Shares used in computing fully diluted -
net loss pershare ...................... 22,145 23,612 22,374 22,500
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First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

2003:
Total revenues..................coeiinn $ 706 $ 587 $ 438 $ 501
Gross margin.............ooceeieeiiainnns 250 110 134 195
Net 10SS. .o (3,712) (4,109) (2,818) (2,056)
Basic and diluted net loss per share ...... S (017 $ (0.19) $ (0.13) 3 (0.09)
Shares used in computing basic and fully

diluted net toss per share............... 21,983 21,969 21.948 22,012

FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT RESULTS

We expect continuing losses and may not achieve profitability which could affect our ability to expand
our business.

We have incurred significant operating losses in each year since our inception , except in fiscal year 2004,
The net income reported in fiscal year 2004 was primarily due to the sale of our software business. We expect to
continue to incur net losses for the foreseeable future, primarily as a result of expenses for research and development.
Our losses increased as we transitioned our focus away from the personal computer market toward the advanced
television and display markets in 1996. We have incurred net losses of approximately $62.0 million from our
inception in March 1993 through March 31. 2004. If we continue to incur net losses, we may not be able to expand
our business as quickly as we would like. We do not know when or if we will become profitable and if we do become
profitable. we may not be able to sustain or increase our profitability.

Because the emergence of the interactive television market has been slower than anticipated, we may not
be able to sell our products or sustain our business.

Our multi-media display processors are incorporated into products that allow interactive television. The
concept of interactive television and the market for products that facilitate it are new and developing. As a result,
our profit potential is unproven and may never materialize. Broad acceptance of advanced televisions and emerging
interactive displays will depend on the extent to which consumers use devices other than personal computers to
access the Internet. To date, the market for these products has not developed as quickly as our customers and we
had previously anticipated. Consequently, certain of our customers have significant inventory of our semiconductors
or products that incorporate our semiconductors, thereby limiting the opportunity to sell additional semiconductors
to these customers until their present inventories are depleted. Our success will also depend on the ability of OEMs
and service providers that work with our OEMs to create demand for and market the products incorporating our
semiconductors. Unless a sufficiently large market for advanced televisions and emerging interactive displays and
other products that are used for interactive television develops. demand for products incorporating our
semiconductor solutions may not be sufficient to sustain our business.

A significant amount of our revenues comes from a few customers and any decrease in revenues from these
customers could significantly impact our financial results.

Historically we have been, and we expect to continue 10 be. dependent on a relatively small number of
customers for a significant portion of our total revenues. Sales to Kanematsu Devices Corporation. SMS Electronics,
Lid., Weikeng Industrial Co., and Fujitsu-Siemens Computers Gmbh represented 13%, 12%, 12% and 0% of total
revenues for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004, respectively. Sales to Siemens Communications Ltd., Kanematsu
Devices Corporation and Micro Network Korea Co, Ltd. represented 24%, 17% and 10% of our total revenues for
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003, respectively. Sales to Prediwave Corporation and Motorola Broadband
accounted for approximately 62% and 14% of our total revenues for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002,
respectively. We may not be able to retain our largest customers or to obtain additional key accounts. Any reduction
or delay in sales of our products to any key customer or our inability to successfully develop relationships with
additional key customers could negatively impact our financial results.

Our operating expenses may increase as we build our business and these increased expenses may impact our
ability to become profitable.

We have made substantial expenditures on research and development and organizational infrastructure
consisting of an executive team, finance, sales, marketing and management information systems departments and
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—..._our design center located in the People’s Republic of China. For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002, research and development expenses represented 295%, 402% and 107% of our revenues, respectively. We
expect to continue to spend financial and other resources on developing and introducing new products and services,
and on our research and development activities in China. While we have implemented actions to reduce our
operating expenses, our operating expenses may increase as a percentage of revenues if our revenues decline. If
our revenues do not increase, our business and results of operations could suffer. We base our expense levels in
part on our expectations regarding future revenues. If our revenues for a particular quarter are lower than we expect,
we may be unable to proportionately reduce our operating expenses for that quarter.

Customers may cancel or defer significant purchase orders, or our distributors may return our products,
which would cause our inventory levels to increase and our revenues to decline.

We sell our products on a purchase order basis through our direct sales channel, sales representatives and
distributors, and our customers may cancel or defer purchase orders at any time with little or no penalty. We
recognize revenues from sales to our distributors when they have sold our products to their customers. We recognize
revenues on sales to our OEM customers when we ship our products to the OEM. We permit certain of our
distributors to return products to us. If our customers cancel or defer significant purchase orders or our distributors
return our products, our inventories would increase and our revenues would decrease, which would materially harm
our business as increases in inventory reserves could be required. Refusal of OEM customers to accept shipped
products or delays or difficulties in collecting accounts receivable could have an adverse effect on our business.

Because of our long product development process and sales cycle, we incur substantial expenses before we
generate revenues and may not recover our expenditures.

To develop market acceptance of our products. we must dedicate significant resources to research and
development. production and sales and marketing. We develop products based on forecasts of demand and we incur
substantial product development expenditures prior 10 generating associated revenues. Qur customers typically
perform numerous tests and extensively evaluate our products before incorporating them into their systems. The
time required for testing, evaluating and designing our products into a customer's equipment can take up to nine
months or more. with an additional three to nine months or more before an OEM customer commences volume
production of equipment incorporating our products, if ever. Because of this lengthy development cycle, we may
experience a delay between the time we accrue expenses for research and development and sales and marketing
efforts and the time when we generate revenues. if any.

Furthermore. achieving a design win with a customer does not necessarily mean that this customer will order
large volumes of our products. A design win is not a binding commitment by a customer to purchase our products.
Rather. itis adecision by a customer to use our products in the design process. In addition. our customers can choose
at any time to discontinue using our products in that customer’s designs or product development efforts. If our
products are chosen to be incorporated into a customer’s products, we may still not realize significant revenues
from that customer if that customer's products are not commercially successful. As a result, our profitability from
quarter to quarter and from year to year may be materially affected by the number and timing of our new product
introductions in any period and the level of acceptance gained by these products.

If we fail to successfully develop, introduce and self new products, we may be unable to effectively compete
in the future.

We operate in a highly competitive, quickly changing environment marked by new and emerging products
and technologies. Our success depends on our ability to develop, introduce and successfully market new products
and enhance our existing products in the advanced television and emerging interactive display markets. The
development of these new products is highly complex and, from time to time, we have experienced delays in
completing their development and introduction. Any one of the following factors could affect our ability to develop,
introduce and sell new products and could materially harm our business:

¢ our failure to complete new product designs in a timely manner;

» our inability to manufacture our new products according to design specifications;
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e our inability to deliver our products to our customers in a timely manner for any reason, including a
lack of manufacturing capacity or the failure of our contracted foundries to meet targeted manufacturing
yields; and

» our sales force’s and independent distributors’ inability to create adequate demand for our products.

Our future operating results are likely to fluctuate and may fail to meet expectations which could cause our
stock price to decline,

Our operating results have varied in the past and are likely to do so in the future as we attempt to meet consumer
demand in the markets for advanced televisions and emerging interactive displays. Our future operating results will
depend on many factors and may fail to meet our expectations for a number of reasons. Any failure to meet these
expectations or those of securities analysts and investors could cause our stock price to fluctuate or decline
significantly. A number of factors, including those listed below, may cause fluctuations in our operating résults and

stock price:
 the general condition of the semiconductor industry market;
¢ fluctuations in the volume of product sales, changes in product mix and pricing concessions on sales;
o the timing, rescheduling or cancellation of significant customer orders:
» the timing of investments in, and the results of, research and development;
» changes in industry standards;
» introduction of interactive television services by service providers;
+ availability of manufacturing capacity and raw materials, and inventory write-offs;
» product introductions and price changes by our competitors;

e our ability to specify, develop, introduce and market new products with smaller geometries, more features
and higher levels of design integration in accordance with design requirements and design cycles:

o the level of orders received that can be shipped in a given period;
* changes in earning estimates or investment recommendations by analysts;
¢ changes in investors perceptions; and

o the effect of the terrorist attacks in the United States and any related conflicts or similar events worldwide.

Our industry is highly competitive, and we cannot assure you that we will be able to effectively compete.

The market for advanced televisions and emerging interactive displays in particular, and the semiconductor
industry in general, are highly competitive. We compete with a number of domestic and international suppliers of
semiconductors in our targeted markets. We expect competition to intensify as current competitors expand their
product offerings and new competitors enter our targeted markets. We believe that we must compete on the basis

of a variety of factors, including:
o functionality;
o performance;
¢ time to market;
e price;

conformity to industry standards;

e product road maps; and

¢ technical support.
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We currently compete with ATI Technologies, Inc., Broadcom Corporation, Genesis Microchip, Inc.,
Pixelworks, Inc., Trident Microsystems, Inc. and Silicon Image, Inc. In addition to these competitors, we expect
other major semiconductor manufacturers will enter our targeted markets as the broadband set-top box, advanced
television and information access device markets become more established. A number of companies, including
International Business Machines Corporation, STMicroelectronics N.V.,, National Semiconductor Corporation,
Equator Technologies, Inc., LSI Logic and Philips Electronics N.V., have announced that they are developing or
plan to introduce competing products in the advanced television and emerging interactive display markets which
could result in significant competition.

Some of our current and potential competitors operate their own fabrication facilities or have a longer operating
history and significantly greater financial, sales and marketing resources. They may also have preexisting
relationships with our customers or potential customers. As a result, these competitors may be able to adapt more
quickly to new or emerging products, develop new technologies, or address changes in customer requirements or
devote greater resources to the development and promotion of strategic relationships among themselves or with
existing or potential customers. It is possible that new competitors or alliances among competitors could emerge
and rapidly acquire significant market share. Increased competition could harm our business, results of operations
and financial condition by, for example, increasing pressure on our profit margin or causing us to lose sales
opportunities.

We depend on three independent foundries to manufacture our products based on our forecasts, which could
result in an oversupply or undersupply of products.

We do not own or operate our own fabrication facility. We currently depend upon three outside foundries,
United Manufacturing Corporation. or UMC, Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation, or TSMC., both
are located in Taiwan and HuaHong NEC in the People’s Republic of China. We do not have long term supply
agreements with these foundries to manufacture our semiconductor products and each has limited manufacturing

capacity.

The foundries require us to provide forecasts of our anticipated manufacturing orders in advance of receiving
purchase orders from our customers. This may result in product shortages or excess product inventory. Obtaining
additional supply in the face of product shortages may be costly or not possible. especially in the short term. Our
failure to adequately forecast demand for our products would materially harm our business. For example, in fiscal
2002 we took an inventory charge related to slow moving inventory. The foundries may allocate capacity to the
production of other companies’ products while reducing delivery to us on short notice.

We may encounter periods of semiconductor oversupply, resulting in pricing pressure, as well as
undersupply, resulting in a risk that we could be unable to fulfill our customers’ requirements.

The semiconductor industry has historically been characterized by wide fluctuations in the demand for. and
supply of. its products. These fluctuations have resulted in circumstances when supply and demand for the industry’s
products have been widely out of balance. Our operating results may be materially harmed by industry wide
semiconductor oversupply, which could result in severe pricing pressure or inventory write-downs. For example,
in fiscal 2002 we took a charge for slow moving inventory, which negatively impacted our gross margin for fiscal
2002. On the other hand, in a market with undersupply. we would have to compete with larger companies for limited
manufacturing capacity. If material shortages occur, we may incur additional costs to procure the scarce componeats
or be unable to have our products manufactured in a timely manner or in quantities necessary to meet our
requirements. Since we outsource all of our manufacturing, we are particularly vulnerable to supply shortages. As
aresult, we may be unable to fill orders and may lose customers. Any future industry wide oversupply or undersupply
of semiconductors would materially harm our business and have a negative impact on our earnings.

If we have to qualify new independent foundries for any of our products and do not have sufficient supply
of our products on hand, we may lose revenues and damage our customer relationships.

Processes used to manufacture our products are complex, customized to our specifications and can only be
performed by a limited number of manufacturing facilities. The foundries we use have from time to time experienced
lower than anticipated manufacturing yields, particularly in connection with the introduction of new products and
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the installation and start up of new process technologies. In addition, the foundries we use are located in a seismically
active area, and earthquakes have caused these foundries to close for repairs, resulting in a delay in manufacturing
our products.

Although we primarily utilize two independent foundries, most of our components are not manufactured at
both foundries at any given time. The inability of one of the foundries to provide components could result in
significant delays and harm our business. In the event either foundry experienced manufacturing or financial
difficulties or suffered any damage or destruction to its facilities, or in the event of any other disruption of foundry
capacity, we may not be able to qualify alternative manufacturing sources for existing or new products in a timely
manner. For example, in September 1999, Taiwan experienced a major earthquake. The earthquake and its resulting
aftershocks caused power outages and significant damage to Taiwan’s infrastructure. Similarly, in September 2001,
a typhoon hit Taiwan causing businesses in Taipei and the financial markets to close for two days. In addition, as
a result of the rapid growth of the semiconductor industry based in the industrial park where both foundries are
located. severe constraints have been placed on the water and electricity supply in that region. Any shortages of
water or electricity or a natural disaster could adversely affect these foundries” ability to supply our products, which
could have a material adverse effect on our operating results.

Even our current outside foundries would need to have manufacturing processes qualified in the event of a
disruption at the other foundry, which we may not be able to accomplish in a timely manner sufficient to prevent
an interruption in the supply of the affected products. We cannot assure you that any existing or new foundries
would be able to produce integrated circuits with acceptable manufacturing vields in the future, or will continue
1o have sufficient capacity to meet our needs. If our manufacturing requirements are not satisfied, our business would

be materially harmed.

Our semiconductors are complex to manufacture and may have errors or defects which could be costly to
correct.

The manufacture of semiconductors is acomplex process. Foundries may not achieve acceptable product yields
from time to time due to the complexity of the integrated circuit design, inadequate manufacturing processes and
other reasons. We refer to the proportion of final acceptable integrated circuits that have been processed. assembled
and tested relative to the gross number of integrated circuits that could have been produced from the raw materials
as our product yields. Identifying defects and determining the reason for low yields may be discovered after
production has begun and at various stages of the production cycle. Our failure to discover defects early in the
production cycle will result in higher costs and may require a diversion of our technical personne! and resources
away from product development in order to correct the defect. In addition. defective products that have been released
into the market and distributed to our customers and end users may result in harm to our reputation. significant
warranty costs, diversion of our technical and managerial resources and potential product Hability claims that would

be costly to defend.

Our software is complex and may have bugs or defects which could be costly to correct.

Qur products depend on complex software that we develop internally and license from others. Complex
software often contains defects, particularly when first introduced or when new versions are released. Determining
whether our software has defects may occur after our products are released into the market and distributed to our
customers and end users, and may result in harm to our reputation, significant warranty costs, diversfon of our
technical resources and potential product liability claims that would be costly to defend and divert managerial

resources.

e face foreign business, political and economic risks because a majority of our sales are to customers outside
of the United States.

Sales of our products to our OEM customers and to distributors located outside the United States accounted
for 76%, 86% and 32% of our total revenues in fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002. We anticipate that sales to
customers located outside the United States will continue to represent a significant portion of our total sales in future
periods. In addition, many of our domestic customers sell their products outside of North America, thereby indirectly
exposing us to risks associated with foreign commerce. Asian economic instability impacts the sales of products
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manufactured by our customers, as does the Chinese New Year, during which time many manufacturers and
businesses close their operations. We may be negatively impacted by the terrorist attacks on the United States and
the resulting conflicts worldwide. We could also experience greater difficulties collecting accounts receivable from
customers outside of the United States. Accordingly, our operations and revenues are subject to a number of risks
associated with foreign commerce.

To date, we have denominated sales of our products in foreign countries exclusively in United States dollars.
As a result, any increase in the value of the United States dollar relative to the local currency of a foreign country
will increase the price of our products in that country so that our products become relatively more expensive to
customers in the local currency of that foreign country. As a result, sales of our products in that foreign country
may decline. To the extent any of these types of risks materialize, our business would be materially harmed.

If the industries into which we sell our products experience recession or other cyclical effects impacting our
customers’ budgets, our operating results could be negatively impacted.

The primary customers for our products are companies in the advanced television and emerging display device
markets. Any significant downturn in these particular markets or in general economic conditions which result in
the cutback of research and development budgets or capital expenditures would likely result in the reduction in
demand for our products and services and could harm our business. For example, the United States economy,
including the semiconductor industry, has experienced a recession, which has negatively impact our business and
operating results. A further decline in the United States economy could result from further terrorist attacks in the
United States. If the economy continues 1o decline as a result of the recent economic, political and social turmoil,
existing and perspective customers may continue to reduce their design budgets or delay implementation of our
products, which could further harm our business and operating results.

In addition, the markets of semiconductor products are cyclical. In recent years, some Asian countries have
experienced significant economic difficulties, including devaluation and instability business failures and a depressed
business environment, These difficulties triggered a significant downturn in the semiconductor market, resulting
in reduced budgets for chip design tools. In addition, the electronics industry has historically been subject to seasonal
and cyclical fluctuations in demand for its products, and this trend may continue in the future. These industry
downturns have been, and my continue to be, characterized by diminished product demand, excess manufacturing
capacity and subsequent erosion of average selling prices. As a result, our future operating results may reflect
substantial fluctuations from period to period as a consequence of these industry patterns, general economic
conditions affecting the timing of orders from customers and other factors. Any negative factors affecting the
semiconductor industry, including the downturns described here, could significantly harm our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

The rapid growth of sur business and operations has strained and may continue to strain our administrative,
operational and financial resources, and our failure to manage our future growth could affect our operations
and our future ability to expand.

We have in the past and may in the future experience rapid growth and expansion in our business and operations.
Our growth has placed. and may continue to place, a significant strain on our administrative, operational and
financial resources and increased demands on our systems and controis. Our future growth may require the
implementation of a variety of new and upgraded operational and financial systems, procedures and controls,
including improvement of our accounting and other internal management systems, all of which may require
substantial managerial effort. We cannot assure you that these efforts would be accomplished successfully. Our
growth has resulted in a continuing increase in the level of responsibility for both existing and new management
personnel, and may require that we recruit, hire and train a substantial number of new personnel. Our failure to
manage our past and future growth could prevent us from successfully achieving market acceptance for our products,
disrupt our operations, delay our expansion and harm our business.

We depend on key personnel, the loss of whom would impair or inhibit the growth of our business.

Our success depénds on the skills, experience and performance of our executive officers and other key
management and technical personnel, many of whom would be difficult to replace. We are particularly dependent
on Eli Porat, our Chief Executive Officer and President. The competition for employees with technical skills is
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intense, particularly in the San Francisco Bay Area, and we may not be able to attract and retain a sufficient number
of such qualified new personnel in the future. The loss of the service of one or more of our key employees, or our
failure to attract, retain and motivate qualified personnel would inhibit the growth of our business.

We rely on strategic relationships to commercialize our products, and these relationships may require that
we expend significant resources without guarantees that our endeavors will be profitable.

We rely on strategic relationships with some of our customers who we believe are the market leaders in our
target markets. These relationships often involve the proposed development by us of new products involving
significant technological challenges. Since the proposed products under development may offer potential
competitive advantages to our customers, considerable pressure is frequently placed on us to meet development
schedules. While an essential element of our strategy involves establishing such relationships, these projects require
substantial amounts of our limited resources, with no guarantee of revenues to us, and could materially detract from
or delay the completion of other important development projects. Delays in development could impair the
relationship between our customers and us and negatively impact sales of the products under development.
Moreover, our customers may develop their own solutions for products currently supplied by us, which could have
an adverse effect on our business.

We depend on third party subcontractors for assembly of our semiconductors which reduces our control
over the delivery, quantity, quality, or cost of our products.

Substantially all of our products are assembled by cne of three subcontractors, two of which are located in
Taiwan, and one in Shanghai, People’s Republic of China. Typically, we procure services from these subcontractors
on a purchase order basis. Their availability to assemble our products could be adversely affected if either
subcontractor experiences financial difficulties or suffers any damage or destruction to its facilities or any other
disruption of its assembly capacity. Because we rely on third party subcontractors for assembly of our products,
we cannot directly control product delivery schedules. We have experienced in the past, and may experience in
the future. product shortages or quality assurance problems that could increase the cost of manufacturing or testing
of our products. It is time consuming and difficult to find and qualify alternative assemblers. If we are forced to
find substitute subcontractors, shipments of our products could be delayed. Any problems associated with the
delivery, quantity or cost of our products could harm our business.

Political instability in the People’s Republic of China or Taiwan could harm our manufacturing and research
and development capabilities and negatively impact our product sales.

We operate our research and development facility in the People’s Republic of China. In addition, most all of
our products are manufactured and assembled outside of the United States at facilities operated by third parties
in Taiwan. The political and economic conditions in the region. including the People’s Republic of China's dispute
with Taiwan, may adversely impact our operations including manufacture and assembly of our products and research
and development efforts. We cannot assure vou that restrictive laws or policies on the part of either the People’s
Republic of China or the United States will not constrain our ability to operate in both countries. If we are required
to relocate our facilities, our business will be disrupted and our costs associated with research and development

will increase.

If our competitors use our intellectual property and proprietary rights, our ability to compete would be
impaired.

Our success depends in part upon our rights in proprietary technology and processes that we develop and license
from, and to, others. We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, trademark and trade secret laws, as well as
confidentiality agreements with our employees, consultants and strategic partners in order to protect proprietary
technologies that use our products. We cannot assure you that these measures will provide meaningful protection
for our proprietary technologies and processes, and they do not prevent independent third party development of
competitive products. In addition, it is difficult to monitor unauthorized use of technology, particularly in foreign
countries where laws may not protect our proprietary rights as fully as in the United States.

We currently have patent applications pending in the United States, and we may seek additional patents in
the future. Because the content of patent applications in the United States is not publicly disclosed until the patent
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is issued, applications may have been filed which relate to our products or processes. We cannot assure you that
our current patent applications or any future patent applications will result in a patent being issued with the scope
of the claims we seek, if at all, or whether any patents we have or may receive will be challenged or invalidated.
The failure of any patents to provide protection to our technology would make it easier for our competitors to offer
similar products.

We may face intellectual property infringement claims that could be costly and could resuit in the loss of
proprietary rights which are necessary to our business.

Other parties may assert patent infringement claims against us, including claims against technology that we
license from others, and our products or processes may infringe issued patents of others. Litigation is common in
the semiconductor industry and any litigation could result in significant expense to us. Litigation would also divert
the efforts of our technical and management personnel, whether or not the litigation is determined in our favor.
Litigation could also require us to develop non-infringing technology or enter into royalty or license agreements.
These royalty or license agreements may not be available on acceptable terms, including limitations on
representations and warranties regarding infringement and indemnification in the event of infringement claims. Cur
failure or inability to develop non-infringing technology, license the proprietary rights on a timely basis or receive
appropriate protection on licensed technology would harm our business.

Regulation of our customers’ products may slow the process of introducing new products and could impair
our ability to compete.

The Federal Communications Commission, or the FCC, has broad jurisdiction over our target markets. Various
international entities or organizations may also regulate aspects of our business or the business of our customers.
Although our products are not directly subject to regulation by any agency, the transmission pipes, as well as much
of the equipment into which our products are incorporated, are subject to direct government regulation. For example,
before they can be sold in the United States, advanced televisions and emerging interactive displays must be tested
and certified by Underwriters Laboratories and meet FCC regulations. Accordingly, the effects of regulation on our
customers or the industries in which our customers operate may, in turn, harm our business. FCC regulatory policies
affecting the ability of cable operators or telephone companies to ofter certain services and other terms on which
these companies conduct their business may impede sales of our products. In addition, our business may also be
adversely affected by the imposition of tariffs, duties and other import restrictions on systems of suppliers or by
the imposition of export restrictions on products that we sell internationally. Changes in current laws or regulations
or the imposition of new laws or regulations in the United States or elsewhere could harm our business.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Quantitative and Qualitative Discussion of Market Interest Rate Risk

Our cash equivalents and short-term investments are exposed to financial market risk due to fluctuation in
interest rates, which may affect our interest income and. in the future. the fair market value of our investments.
We manage the exposure to financial market risk by performing ongoing evaluations of our investment portfolio
and we presently invest entirely in short-term investment grade government and corporate securities. These
securities are highly liquid and generally mature within [2 months from the purchase date. Due to the short
maturities of our investments, the carrying value should approximate the fair value. In addition, we do not use our
investments for trading or other speculative purposes. We have performed an analysis to assess the potential effect
of reasonably possible near term changes in interest and foreign currency exchange rates. The effect of any change
in foreign currency exchange rates is not expected to be material to our results of operations, cash flows or financial
condition. Due to the short duration of our investment portfolio, an immediate 10% change in interest rates would
not have a material effect on the fair market value of our portfolio. Therefore, we would not expect our operating
results or cash flows to be affected to any significant degree by the effect of a sudden change in market interest
rates on our securities portfolio.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

We are an international company, selling our products globally and, in particular, in Japan, Korea, the People’s
Republic of China and Taiwan. Although we transact our business in United States dollars, we cannot assure you
that future fluctuations in the value of the United States dollar will not affect the competitiveness of our products,
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gross profits realized, and results of operations. Further, we incur expenses in the People’s Republic of China, Taiwan
and other countries that are denominated in currencies other than United States dollars. We cannot estimate the
effect that an immediate 10% change in foreign currency exchange rates would have on our future operating results
or cash flows as a direct result of changes in exchange rates. However, we do not believe that we currently have
any significant direct foreign currency exchange rate risk and have not hedged exposures denominated in foreign
currencies or any derivative financial instruments.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Tvia, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of
operations, of stockholders’ equity and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Tvia, Inc. and its subsidiary at March 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2004 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
June 14, 2004
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TVIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands)

March 31,
2004 2003
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ......................... e S 3259 $ 11,080
STt eIl IV S T IS . et ettt et e et et e e e e e 23,947 13,337
Accounts receivable, net .. ... 295 331
2SS (110 o (= S 602 1,055
Prepaid expenses and other current assets................ooieiiiiiinniins 1,241 411
TOal CUITENL ASSEUS .« .ottt e ettt et e e e e e 29,344 26,214
Property and equipment, net.........c.oooviiriiiii 1,947 3,209
(@ 11113 1111 V- FA O O 112 1,770
TOlal ASSEIS . .ttt e $ 31.403 $ 31,193
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable ... S 201 $ 351
Accrued BXPENSES .. e e 657 1,175
Short-term portion of capital leases ............... ... 486 415
Total current liabilities. ... .. .. . 1.344 1,941
Long-term portion of capital leases ............... ... — 486
Total Habilities. . ... oo 1.344 2.427
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)
Stockholders” Equity
Preferred stock, $0.00!1 par value; 5,000 shares authorized:
NONE OULSEARAING. . ..ottt e — —
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 125,000 shares authorized; 22,576 and
22,139 shares outstanding, respectively ... ... i 23 22
Additional paid-in-capital ... 02,798 92.444
Accumulated comprehensive INCOMe. ......ovviiiiiiiii i 8 6
Accumulated deflcit . ... . (62,020) (62,956)
Treasury STOCK ...ttt et e (730) (750)
Total stockholders’ equity...........co i 30,059 28.766
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ....................oo L S 31.403 $ 31,193

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TVIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Revenues:
Product sales. ... .
Development contracts and other......................ooooe

Total revenues ... ...

Cost of revenues:
Product sales (excluding amortization of deferred
compensation of $0, $9 and $19, respectively) .............
Development contracts and other.......................ne

Total cost of revenues ... ...t i

GroSS ProfIl. oottt e e

Operating expenses:

Research and development (excluding amortization of
deferred stock compensation of 30, $155 and $590,
TESPECHIVELY) oot

Sales, general and administrative (excluding amortization of
deferred stock compensation of 50, $431land $963,
respectively) ...

Amortization of deferred stock compensation .................

Restructuring charges «........ooiiiiiii i

Total operating eXpenses ... ....coviviiiiiiiieiii i,
Operating l0SS .ot

Other income (expense), net:
IRterest INCOME. ..o
IREeTeST @XPENSE .ottt e e
Sale of software business ............ ... ... i

Other income (€Xpense). Mel. ..ot iiiinii it

Income (loss) before 1ncome taxes. ...,
Provision for income taxes ........ ... ... ... ... i

Shares used in computing basic net income (loss)...............

Shares used in computing diluted net income (loss) .............

Year Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002
$ 2,042 s 1,771 $ 11,342
267 461 498
2.309 2.232 11.840
1.235 1,460 8,522
88 83 109
1.323 1,543 8,631
936 689 3.209
6.823 8,983 12.664
2.667 3,545 5,036
— 595 1,572

— 950 —
9.490 14.073 19.292
(8.504) (13.384) (16.083)
401 703 1,818
(11) (14) —
9.075 — _
9.463 639 1.818
961 (12.695) (14,265)
25 — —
S 936 $(12.695) $(14.265)
S 004 S (0.58) S (0.66)
22.323 21.952 21,631
23,982 21.952 21,631

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TVIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balance at March 31,2001........

Amortization of deferred stock
COMPENSation . .. ..o .ovuvt ..
Issuance of common stock under
ESPP and through exercises of
stock options
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale
investments
Net loss

Balance at March 31,2002........
Amortization of deferred stock
compensation . ................
Purchase of treasury stock
Repurchase of common stock......
Issuance of common stock under
ESPP and through exercises of
stock options
Unrealized toss on available-for-sale
investments
Net foss

Balance at March 31, 2003........
Issuance of common stock under
ESPP and through exercises of
stock options
Unrealized gain on available-for-
sale ipvestments. . ....... ... ..
Netincome.....................

Balance at March 31,

(In thousands, except share data)

Accumulated
Common Stock __ sqditional ~ Deferred Other
Par Paid-in Stock Comprehensive Accumnlated Treasury Stockholders’
Shares  Amount Capital Compensation Income Deficit Stock Equity
21,853833 822 $92,075 $(2.167) 3148 $(35.996)  $(660)  § 53422
— - —_ 1,572 — — — 1,572
307915 — 313 — — —_ — 313
— — — — nn — — (1
i — — — (14.265) — (14.265)
22,161,748 2 92,388 (595) 31 (50.261) (660) 40925
— — — 595 — — — 595
(1437000 — — — — — (90) (90}
(93.691y — (14) — — —_ — (14)
238.865 — 70 — — — — 70
—_ — — — (25 — — (25)
- = — — — (12.653) — (12.693)
22,163.222 n 92444 — 6 (62.956) (750) 28.766
412.767 1 354 — —_ — — 335
— — -— — 2 — — 2
e — — — 936 — 936
22575989 523 $92.798 S —~ S 8 $(62.020)  $(750; S 30,039

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TVIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income (108S) ... ovniiii
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization............................
Amortization of deferred stock compensation ............
Write-down of license technology........................
Gain on sale of software unit .................. ... ...
Changes in assets and Habilities:
Accounts receivable ............ L
Inventories. . ...o.ouie
Prepaid expenses and other current assets .............
Accounts payable.............a
Accrued eXPensSeS. ... ..oiiii e

Net cash used in operating activities ................

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Sale (purchase) of available-for-sale investments..............
Proceeds from sale of software unit...........................
Purchase of property and equipment ..........................
Purchase of intangible assets.......................

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities..

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Repayments of obligations under capital leases ...............
Proceeds from issuance of common stock.....................
Treasury stock repurchase............. ...

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities. .

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ............
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ...............

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period......................

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Interest paid. .. ..o

Acquisition of property and equipment under capital leases...

Year Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002
S 936 $(12,695) $(14.265)
1.559 1,312 1,091
— 595 1,572
1.449 69 500
(9.075) — —
36 (167) 1,777

433 455 2,833
(80) 851 90
(150) (340) (441)
(518) (596) (1.110)
(5.390) (10.516) (7.953)
(10.608) 15,698 (3.762)
8.373 — —
(92) (366) (2.062)
(44) 27) (1.358)
(2.371) 15.305 (7.182)
(415) (120) —
355 56 313
(90) —

(60) (154) 313
(7.821) 4,635 (14.822)
11.080 6.443 21.267

S 3.239 S 11.080 S 6.445
S 11 S 14 5 —
S — s 1.021 —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TVIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Business

Tvia, Inc. (“the Company™ or “Tvia”) was incorporated in California in March 1993 and reincorporated as
a Delaware corporation in August 2000. Tvia designs, develops and markets multi-media display processors for
the advanced television and emerging interactive display markets. The Company's products, which consist of
integrated circuits and proprietary software, process video, graphics and audio signals from terrestrial broadcast,
narrow band telephone lines, cable, satellite and Ethernet and blend them together on one or more displays for a
high quality, customized and interactive viewing experience. The Company sells its multi-media display processors
to manufacturers of advanced television and emerging interactive displays. The Company has a subsidiary in the
People’s Republic of China that supports the Company’s research and development activities and performs product
testing and sales and marketing functions.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

.. The preparation of fitancial statements in.accordance with generally accepted accounting principles accepted
in the United States of America requirés management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and linbilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates, and such differences could be material and affect the results of operations reported in

future periods.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements herein presented include the results and financial position of Tvia and
its wholly-owned subsidiary in China. The functional currency of the Chinese subsidiary is the U.S. dollar;
accordingly, all gains and losses arising from foreign currency transactions in currencies other than the U.S. dollar
are included in the consolidated statements of operations. All intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments

The Company considers all highly liquid investment securities with original maturities of three months or less
from the date of purchase to be cash and cash equivalents. Management determines the appropriate classification
of short-term investments at the time of purchase and evaluates such designations as of each balance sheet date.
To date. all short-term investments have been classified as available-for-sale and are carried at fair value with
unrealized gains and losses, if any. included as a component of accumulated comprehensive loss in stockholders’
equity. net of any related tax effects. Interest, dividends and realized gains and losses are included in other expense
(income) in the consolidated statements of operations.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market and include materials, labor and
overhead. Allowances when required are made to reduce excess inventories to their estimated net realizable values.
Due to competitive pressures and technological innovation, it is possible that estimates of net realizable value would

change in the near term.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method over the assets’
estimated useful life of two to five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the asset life
or the remaining lease term. Management has determined asset lives based on their historical experience of technical
obsolescence of equipment and the short life of tooling that is specific to certain product families.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles for impairment. The Company
reviews assets to be held and used whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of a long-lived asset may not be recoverable. The Company measures recoverability of assets by comparing their
carrying amount to the future undiscounted cash flows that they are expected to generate. If an asset is considered
to be impaired, the impairment reflects the amount by which the carrying value of the asset exceeds its fair market
value. The Company wrote off $1.5 million of licensed technology in the third quarter of fiscal year 2004,

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from product sales upon shipment to the original equipment manufacturers,
or OEMs, and end users provided that persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the price is fixed or
determinable, title has transferred, collection of resulting receivables is reasonably assured, there are no customer

* acceptance requirements, and there are no remaining significant obligations. Reserves for sales returns and

allowances are recorded at the time of shipment. Our sales to distributors are made under agreements allowing for
returns or credits under certain circumstances. The Company defers recognition of revenue on sales to distributors
until products are resold by the distributor to the end user. The Company warrants its preducts; warranty claims
historically have been insignificant.

The Company also sells software development kits and application modules to OEMs. The Company
recognizes sales of software development kits and application modules when an agreement has been executed or
a definitive purchase order has been received and the product has been delivered, no significant obligations with
regard to implementation remain, the fee is fixed and determinable and collectibility is probable. The maintenance
portion of the arrangements is recognized over the maintenance period on a straight-line basis.

Software Development Costs

The Company accounts for software development costs in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS") No. 86, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software to be Sold, Leased or Otherwise
Marketed.” The Company has expensed all software development costs to date as substantially all of such
development costs have been incurred prior to the Company's products attaining technological feasibility.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses consist primarily of salaries and related costs of employees engaged in
research, design and development activities. The Company expenses all research and development related expenses
in the period in which such expenses are incurred.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for on the asset and liability method. Under this method. deferred income taxes
are recognized based on the estimated future tax effects of differences between the financial and tax basis of assets
and liabilities under the provision of enacted tax laws. The effects of deferred taxes of a change in tax rate is
recognized in the period that includes the enactment date. Valuation allowances are established when necessary
to reduce deferred taxes to the amounts expected to be realized.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the change in equity during a period from transactions and events
from non-owner sources. The primary component of comprehensive income (loss) for the Company includes
unrealized gains and losses are disclosed in the Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ equity. A summary of
comprehensive gain (loss) is as follows (in thousands):

For the Year Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002
Net 1ncome (1058). v ot $936 $(12,695) $(14,265)
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale investments. ... 2 25 (117
Comprehensive income (108s). ..., _S_i_.}_% $(12,720) $(14,382)

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based employee compensation arrangements using the intrinsic value method
as prescribed in Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 23, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees™ (“APB
No. 25"} and Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 44 “Accounting for Certain Transactions
Involving Stock Compensation™ (FIN 44). Accordingly, compensation cost for stock options is measured as the
excess, if any, of the fair value of the Company’s stock at the date of grant over the stock option exercise price.
Expense associated with stock-based compensation is amortized on an accelerated basis over the vesting period
of the individual award consistent with the method described in Financial Accounting Standards Board
Interpretation No. 28 (“FIN 28"). The Company accounts for stock issued to non-employees in accordance with
the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation™ (“SFAS No. 123") and Emerging Issues Task Force Consensus No. 96-18, “*Accounting for Equity
Instruments that are offered to other than employees for acquiring or in conjunction with selling goods or services”
("EITF 96-18"). Under SFAS No. 123 and EITF 96-18, stock option awards issued to non-employees are accounted
for at their fair value, determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing method. The fair value of each non-
employee stock option or award is remeasured at each period end until a commitment date is reached. which is
generally the vesting date. The following table illustrates the effect on net income (loss) and earnings per share
if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, to the stock-based employee
compensation.

For the Year Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands, except per share data)
Net income (loss) as reported. . ..o S 936 $(12,693) $(14,2653)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense
included in reported net income (loss) ................... _— 393 1.572
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under fair value based method for all
awards, net of related tax effects................. ... {1,315) (2.185) (3.765)
Pro forma net income (108S) ... .o iiiireiiii e S (379) 3(14,293) 5(16.458)
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share: .............
AS TEPOITEd ... oot $ 0.04 $ (0.58) § (0.66)
Pro forma. ..ot $ (0.02) $ (0.65) $ (0.76)

Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Historical net income (loss) per share has been calculated in accordance with the Financial Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 128, “Earnings Per Share.” Basic net income (loss) per share is computed using
the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding. Diluted income (loss) per share information
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

is the same as basic net income (loss) per share since common shares issuable upon conversion of stock options
and warrants are antidilutive.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities” (“FIN 46™), was issued in January 2003. FIN 46 requires that if an entity is the primary beneficiary of
a variable interest entity, the assets, liabilities, and results of operations of the variable interest entity should be
included in the consolidated financial statements of the entity. The provisions of FIN 46 are effective immediately
for all arrangements entered into after January 31, 2003. For those arrangements entered into prior to February |,
2003, the provisions of FIN 46 were required to be adopted at the beginning of the first interim or annual period
beginning after June 15, 2003. However, in October 2003, the FASB deferred the effective date of FIN 46 to the
end of the first interim or annual period ending after December 31, 2003 for those arrangements entered into prior
to February 1, 2003. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In May 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 150, “Accounting
for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity”. SFAS No. {50 establishes
standards for how an issuer classifies and measures certain financial instruments with characteristics of both
liabilities and equity. SFAS No. 130 requires that an issuer classify a financial instrument that is within its scope
as a liability (or an asset in some circumstances). SFAS No. 150 is effective for financial instruments entered into
or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning
after June 15, 2003. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

3. Balance Sheet Components (in thousands)
March 31, March 31,

2004 2003
Accounts receivable, net: ’
Accounts recelvable . . § 298 S 381
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts........ ... ... ... .. ... .. ... .. ... (3) (50)

S 295 § 331

Allowance for doubful accounts:

Balance at beginning of the year........... ... i S 5 S 112
Addition o 15 8
Utlized .. oo (62) (70)
Balance atend of the year ... i S 3 0§ 50
Short-term investments.
U.S. government and agency SeCUrities...........oooviiiiiiiiieaniinn... § 6000 5 2810
U.S. corporate and bank debt ... 17.947 10,527
$23.947  $13.337
Inventories:
Raw materials. .. . .oooviii i i e $ 165 § 446
WWOTK-IM-PrOCESS . . o c ittt ettt 42 3
Finished g00ds . .....oooiiiiiiii i 395 606

§ 602 31055
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Balance Sheet Components (in thousands) (Continued)
March 31, March 31,

2004 2003
Property and equipment, net:
Furniture and fixtures (Useful life of two years) ........................... S 39 S 85
Machinery and equipment (Useful life of two to five years) ............... 2,775 3,158
Software (Useful life of two to five years) ............oooiiiiiii ... 2.851 3.713
5,665 6,956
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization ................ovnn.... (3,718) (3,747)

S 1.947 $ 3.209

Other assets:

License technology (Amortized over five years)............................ S 81 $ 1,969
Less: AMOrTIZation . ... i (1) (231)
License technology, net ... i 80 1.738
PO, ittt 32 32

S 112 $ 1770

As a result of a recent change in the Company’s product focus, the Company wrote off a licensed technology
which had a cost of $1.9 million and accumulated amortization of $0.4 million.

Accrued expenses.

Accrued COMPENSAtION COSIS ..ttt etie et S 421 S 593
Accrued software MaiNIENance ... ...t 13 99
ORI, o 223 483

S 657 $1.175

4. Short-term Investments

The value of the Company’s investments by major security type is as follows:

As of March 31, 2004

Amortized Apgregate Unrealized
Cost Fair Value Gain

{In thousands)

U.S. government and agency securities ............ $ 6,000 $ 6,000 §—
U.S. corporate and bank debt................... ... 17,939 17.947 _ 8
Total. .o $23,939 $23.947 $8
As of March 31, 2003
Amortized Aggregate Unrealized
Cost Fair Value Gain
(In thousands)
U.S. government and agency securities............ $ 2,806 $ 2,810 $4
U.S. corporate and bank debt...................... 10,525 10,527 2
Total. . oo $13,331 $13,337 36
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5. Sale of Software Business and Software-Related Assets

On July 3, 2003, the Company sold its software business and software-related assets to MediaTek, Inc for $10.0
million. The software assets were developed internally to support the Company’s products, including Home IT,
advanced digital video broadcasting, MPEG 4 software, SDK software and software drivers. The development costs
related to the software assets were expensed as incurred. Under the agreement, MediaTek granted to the Company
a royalty-free license to continue to use those software assets to support its existing products and fulfill its
maintenance obligations to its existing customers. The Company reported a gain of $9.1 million from this transaction
in the results of operations in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004. At March 31, 2004, $750.000 was in an escrow
account and was received in Aprii 2004,

6. Restructuring Charges

During fiscal 2003, the Company recorded a restructuring charge of $950,000 relating to a headcount reduction
and an operating lease for an abandoned building. The restructuring was recorded to align the cost structure with
changing market conditions. The plan resuited in headcount reduction of approximately 49 employees, which was
made up of 55% of research and development staff, 23% of operations staff, 16% of general and administrative
staff and 6% of sales and marketing staff. The charge in relation to the operating lease of the abandoned building
represents the estimated difference between the total non-discounted future sublease income and the non-discounted

lease commitments relating to this building.

The following table summarizes the activity associated with the restructuring liabilities (in thousands):

License Leased Severances

Technology Facilities and Benefits Total
Balance at March 31, 2002 ......... $ — S — S — S —
Additions ... 69 162 719 930
Non-cash charges................... (69) — — (69)
Cashcharges .................... ... - (3% a9 _(858)
Balance at March 31, 2003 ......... —_ 23 — 23
Cashcharges ....................... = (23) - -
Balance at March 31,2004 .......... §;:_ §: §__=__: §____:

7. Income Taxes

The Company recorded a provision of $25,000 for Federal alternative minimum tax and none for state and
foreign income taxes in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004. There were no provisions for income taxes in the
fiscal years ended March 31, 2003 and 2002.

The components of the net deferred income tax asset were as follows:

March 31,
2004 2003
(in thousands)
Net operating 0SS5 . ... v it iit $ 16,073 § 16,052
Reserves and accruals not deductible for tax purposes........................ 977 1,208
Available tax credit carryforwards ... 2,784 2,512
1,870 1,775

Other timing differences. .. ... . i i

21,704 21,547

Valuation alloWance ........ooniiii e (21,704)  (21,547)

Net deferred taX asSet. .. ..t iin ittt ittt $ — 3 —
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7. Income Taxes (Continued)

At March 31, 2004, the Company had net cumulative operating loss carryforwards for federal and state income
tax reporting purposes of approximately $44 million and $16 million, respectively. The federal net operating loss
carryforwards expire on various dates through 2024. The state net operating loss carryforwards expire on various
dates through 2014. As of March 31, 2004, the Company had federal and state research and development tax credit
carryforwards of approximately $1.5 million and $1.6 million, respectively, available to offset future taxes.
Utilization of net operating losses may be subject to annual limitations due to ownership change limitations imposed
by the Internal Revenue Service and similar state provisions. A valuation allowance has been recorded for the entire
deferred tax asset as aresult of uncertainty regarding the realization of the asset balance due to the net losses incurred
and lack of taxable income.

The China subsidiary of the Company has been granted a full exemption from Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT"")
in accordance with the China Law of Enterprise Income Tax, for the first two years and a 50% reduction in EIT
for the next three years, commencing from the first profitable year after offsetting all tax losses carried forward
{available for carry forward for a maximum of five years). As of March 31, 2004, no EIT was payable.

The difference between the actual tax provision (benefit) and the amount obtained by applying the U.S. Federal
statutory rate to income (loss) before provision for income taxes (benefit) is as follows:

March 31,

2004 2003
Tax provision (benefit) at SIAULOTY Tate. ... ..ooiv e 34.0% (34.0%)
Net operating losses not currently benefited ............................... 0.0% 33.8%
Valuation allowWante . ... e 25.4% (1.5%)
DT L o 3.6% 1.7%
Utilization of net operating 10SSeS ... ... oot (60.2%) 0.0%

2.8% 0.0%

8. Earnings per Share

The foltowing table presents the calculation of basic and diluted net loss per share (in thousands. except per
share data):

Year Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002

Net income (J0S5) oo $ 936 $(12.695)  $(14.263)
Basic and diluted:

Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding .... 22,340 22.053 21,925

Less: Weighted average shares of common stock subject to

TEPULCRASE L. ittt e e (17) {101) (294)

Weighted average shares used in computing basic net income

(foss) pershare .........oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 22,323 21,952 21,631
Diluted effect of common share equivalents .................. 1,659 — —
Weighted average shares used in computing diluted net

income (loss) pershare ........ ..ol 23,982 21,952 21,631
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share.................. $ 004 $ (0.58) § (0.66)
Options and warrants excluded from the computation Of

diluted net income (loss) per share ......................... 1,364 4,710 4,162
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9. Stockholders’ Equity and Employee Compensation Plans
Stock Option Plans
2000 Stock Incentive Plan and 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (the 2000 Plan™) provides for the issuance of shares of the Company’s common
stock to directors, employees and consultants. The 2000 Plan provides for the issuance of incentive stock options
or non-qualified stock options. The 2000 Plan provides for the issuance of up to 2,333,333 shares of common stock,
plus, commencing on January 1, 2001, annual increases equal to the lesser of 73,000 shares (amended on August 21,
2001 to 730,000 shares), 3% of the fully diluted outstanding common stock on January 1 of each year, or a lesser
amount determined by the Board of Directors. Pursuant to the 2000 Plan, the exercise price for incentive stock
options is at least 100% of the fair market value on the date of grant or for employees owning in excess of 10%
of the voting power of all classes of stock, 110% of the fair market value on the date of grant. For non-qualified
stock options, the exercise price is no less than 85% of the fair market value on the date of grant. Options generally
expire in 10 years. Options generally vest ratably over four years beginning the date of grant. As of March 31, 2004,
2,194,844 options were available for grant under the 2000 Plan.

In March 2000, the Board of Directors adopted an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP™). A total of
333,333 shares {(amended in May 2004 to 833,333 shares) of the Company’s common stock were reserved for
issuance under the ESPP. plus, commencing on April 1. 2001, annual increases equal to the lesser of 83,333 shares,
3% of the outstanding common stock on such date, or a lesser amount determined by the Board of Directors. Each
participant may purchase up to 4,000 shares on any purchase date. The ESPP permits eligible employees to
contribute up to 15% of cash compensation toward the semi-annual purchase of the Company’'s common stock.
The purchase price is 85% of the fair market value on the day prior to the beginning of the six-month period at
which an eligible employee is enrolled, or the end of each six-month offering period. whichever is lower. Employees
purchased 117,745, 39,851 and 251.289 in fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. As of March 31. 2004, 589,047
shares were available for purchase under the ESPP.

1999 Stock Incentive Plan

The Stock Incentive Plan (the 1999 Plan™) provides for the issuance of up to 5,166,667 shares of the
Company’s common stock to directors, employees and consultants. The [999 Plan provides for the issuance of
restricted stock bonuses, restricted stock purchase rights. incentive stock options or non-qualified stock options.
Pursuant to the 1999 Plan, the exercise price for incentive stock options is at least 100% of the fair market value
on the date of grant or for employees owning in excess of 0% of the voting power of alf classes of stock, 110%
of the fair market value on the date of grant. For non-qualified stock options, the exercise price is no less than 85%
of the fair market value on the date of grant.

Options generally expire in 10 years. Vesting periods are determined by the Board of Directors: however,
options generally vest ratably over four years beginning one year after the date of grant. Options may be exercised
prior to full vesting. Any unvested shares so exercised are subject to a repurchase right in favor of the Company
with the repurchase price to be equal to the original purchase price of the stock. The right to repurchase at the original
price lapses at a minimum rate of 20% per year over five years from the date the options granted. The 2000 Plan
is the successor to the 1999 Plan. Since the 2000 Plan became effective, no further grants were made under the
1999 Plan.

1994 Stock Option Plan

The Stock Option Plan (the 1994 Plan™) provides for the issuance of options to acquire the Company’s
common stock to directors, employees and consultants. The 1994 Plan provides for the issuance of incentive stock
options or non-qualified stock options. Pursuant to the 1994 Plan, the exercise price for incentive stock options
is at least 100% of the fair market value on the date of grant or for employees owning in excess of 10% of the
voting power of all classes of stock, 110% of the fair market value on the date of grant. For non-qualified stock

40




TVIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. Stockholders’ Equity and Employee Compensation Plans (Continued)

options, the exercise price is no less than 85% of the fair market value on the date of grant. Options generally expire
in 10 years. Options generally vest ratably over five years beginning the date of grant. In June 1999, all options
outstanding under the 1994 Plan were cancelled and reissued under the 1999 Plan with the same terms and conditions
as the previous options.

Out of Plan Options

In November 2001, the Company issued two out of plan non-qualified options to acquire the Company’s
common stock. One grant was for 800,000 shares, vesting over a 4 year period. The second grant was for 200,000
shares, vesting over a 6 year period but with a provision for earlier vesting one year after the grant date provided
that certain criteria are achieved. Both grants had an exercise price of $1.27 per share, the fair market value on
the date of grant, and expire in |0 years.

The following table summarizes activity under all of the Company’s stock option plans and out-of-plan options:

Outstanding Weighted Average
QOptions Exercise Price
Balance at March 31, 2001 ... .. i 2,761,057 $4.97
Granted ... 2,530,324 1.66
Exercised.. . ... . (56,623) 0.26
Cancellations . . ..o (1.073.103)(1) 6.51
Balance at March 31,2002 .. ... oo 4,161,653 2.62
(€] 1110« S 2,233,401 0.86
Exercised. .. ..o (199,014) 0.26
Cancellations . o ov it e (1,746.232) 2.81
Balance at March 31, 2003 ... ... . i 4,449,808 1.79
Granted .. .. 1,347,333 1.43
Exercised. ... ... . (295,022) 0.64
Cancellations. ... . (607.736) 1.88
Balance at March 31, 2004 .. ... .o 4,894,383 S1.74

(1) Includes 624,028 options cancelled pursuant to the Company’s agreements with certain officers and employees.

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Number \Weighted Average Number
Outstanding at Remaining Weighted Average Exercisable at Weighted Average
March 31, 2004 _Contractual Life _ Exercise Price _ March 31, 2004 Exercise Price
242,378 5.56 $0.27 242,378 S 0.27
844,824 8.56 0.50 430,117 0.50
500,333 8.91 0.66 115,603 0.58
1,000,000 7.67 1.27 1,000,000 1.27
54,081 7.09 1.50 52,104 1.50
1,015,000 9.50 1.57 — —
592,681 7.73 1.88 448,545 1.87
498,754 6.46 4.60 472,476 4.70
111,665 6.01 8.86 111,039 8.86
34,667 6.33 11.00 31.775 11.00
4,894,383 8.06 $ 1.74 2,904,034 5210

41



TVIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. Stockholders’ Equity and Employee Compensation Plans (Continued)

The weighted average fair values of options granted in fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $1.43, $0.86
and $1.66, respectively. The fair value of each option grant and stock purchase right is estimated on the date of
the grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions:

Stock Incentive Plans

March 31,
2004 2003 2002
Risk-free Interest Rate...............oooo i, 2.65% 1.25% 4.12%
Expected Life of Options from Grant Date .................... 4 years 4 years 4 years
Expected Dividend Yield .................oo it 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected Stock Volatility .................. .o 92.0% 90.0% 115.0%
Employee Stock Purchase Plans
March 31,
2004 2003 2002
Risk-free Interest Rate...............ooo i, 0.94% 1.25% 2.71%
Expected Life of Options from Grant Date .................... 0.5 years 0.5 years 0.5 years
Expected Dividend Yield .....................oo 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected Stock Volatility ... 85.0% 90.0% 54.0%

The weighted average fair values of the purchase rights granted in fiscal years 2004. 2003 and 2002 were $0.48,
$0.18 and $1.59, respectively.

Deferred Stock Compensation

Deferred stock compensation represents the aggregate difference, at the grant date, between the respective
exercise price of stock options and the fair value of the underlying stock. The deferred stock compensation expense
is amortized on an accelerated basis over the vesting period of the individual award. generally four years. This
method is in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 28. The Company had not
recorded any unearned stock-based compensation in the fiscal years ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, and
has amortized deferred stock compensation of $0.0 million, $0.6 million and $1.6 million. in these periods.

respectively.
Stack Repurchase Agreements

In connection with the exercise of options pursuant to the 1999 Plan, employees entered into restricted stock
purchase agreements with the Company. Under the terms of these agreements, the Company has a right to repurchase
any shares at the original exercise price of the shares upon termination of employment. The repurchase right lapses
ratably over the vesting term of the original grant. As of March 31, 2004, no shares were subject to repurchase
by the Company.

401(k) Plan

The Company maintains a retirement and deferred savings plan for its employees in the United States of
America (the "401(k) Plan"), who meet certain age and service requirements. The 401¢(k) Plan provided that each
participant may defer up to 15% of their annual compensation on a pre-tax basis, not to exceed the dollar limit
that is set by law, with the Company contributing a matching 25 percent of their contribution, up to 3 percent of
their annual compensation. Substantially all of the Company’s employees are eligible to participate in the Tvia
401(k) Plan. The Company contributed $59,000, $98,000 and $37,000 to the 401(k) Plan for the fiscal years ended
March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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TVIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. Concentration of Certain Risks

The Company is subject to the risks associated with similar technology companies. These risks include, but
are not limited to: history of operating losses, dependence on a small number of key individuals, customers and
suppliers, competition from larger, more established companies, the impact of rapid technological changes and
changes in customer demand/requirements.

Revenues to significant customers, those representing approximately 10% or more of total revenues for the
respective pericds, are summarized as follows:

For the Year
Ended March 31,

O {0) 1<) o < N 15% 17% *
CUStOmEr B 12% 24% *
CUstomer €. e 12% * *
Customer .. . e 10% * *
Customer B o * 10% *
Customer F oo e * * 62%
CUStomEr Gt * * 14%

(* = less than 10%)
Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally
of bank deposits and accounts receivable. The Company places its cash and cash equivalents in checking and money
market accounts in financial institutions. The Company’s accounts receivable are derived primarily from sales to
OEMs and distributors. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and maintains an
allowance for potential doubtful accounts.

As of March 31, 2004 and 2003, accounts receivable were concentrated with customers as follows:

March 31,
Accounts Receivable:
CUS OMIET Aottt e e 20% ¥
CUSIOMET B 15% *
CUStOMET oot e * 48%
CUStOMIET D 17% 22%
CUSIOMICT o e * 21%

(* = less than 10%)
The Company recorded bad debt expense of $15,000 and $8,000 for fiscal years 2004 and 2003, respectively.
Vendor Concentration

The Company does not own or operate a fabrication facility, and accordingly relies substantially on three
outside foundries, United Manufacturing Corporation (“UMC”) and Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing
Corporation (“TSMC”), both are located in Taiwan and HuaHong NEC in the People’s Republic of China, to supply
all of the Company’s semiconductor manufacturing requirements. There are significant risks associated with the
Company’s reliance on outside foundries, including the lack of ensured wafer supply, limited control over delivery
schedules, quality assurance and control, manufacturing yields and production costs and the unavailability of or
delays in obtaining access to key process technologies. Any inability of one of the foundries to provide the necessary
components could result in significant delays and could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business,
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TVIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. Concentration of Certain Risks (Continued)

financial condition and results of operations. In the event either foundry suffers financial difficulties or suffers
any damage or destruction to its respective facilities, or in the event of any other disruption of foundry capacity,
the Company may not be able to qualify alternative manufacturing sources for existing or new products in a
timely manner.

Substantially all of the Company's products are assembled and tested by one of three third-party subcontractors,
Siliconware Precision Industries Ltd., and Advance Semiconductor Engineering. Inc., both located in Taiwan, and
Belling Corp., Ltd. in the People’s Republic of China. The availability of assembly and testing services from these
subcontractors could be adversely affected in the event any subcontractor experiences financial difficulties or suffers
any damage or destruction to its respective facilities, or in the event of any other distuption of assembly and testing
capacity. As a result of this reliance on third-party subcontractors for assembly and testing of its products, the
Company cannot directly controf product delivery schedules, which has in the past, and could in the future, result
in product shortages or quality assurance problems that could increase the cost of manufacture, assembly or testing
of the Company’s products.

11. Segment and Geographic Information

The Company is organized and operates in one reportable segment, which is the development, manufacture
and sale of streaming media integrated circuits for the advanced television and emerging interactive display markets.

The Company has operations in the United States and China. The operating expenses of the China subsidiary
for the years ended March 31, 2004. 2003 and 2002, and the total assets as of the respective dates in China were

not material to the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
The following table summarizes revenues by geographic area as a percentage of total revenues:

For the Year
Ended March 31,

United States ... 24% 14% 68%
EUTOPE. e 245 35% *
TaIWaN. 18% 25% 22%
Japan 15% 16% #
Korea. . o * 10% *

(* Less than 10%)

12. Commitments and Contingencies
Stock Repurchase

On November 10, 2001, the Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase program to acquire outstanding
common stock in the open market. Under this program, the Board of Directors authorized the acquisition of up
to 200,000 of the Company’s common stock. As of March 31, 2004, the Company acquired 143,700 shares on the
open market that it holds as treasury stock.

On August 20, 2002, the Board of Directors authorized an additional stock repurchase program to acquire
outstanding common stock in the open market. Under this program, the Board of Directors authorized the acquisition
up to 5 million shares of common stock. As of March 31, 2004, we had not repurchased any shares of common
stock under this program.

Litigation

The Company is subject to various claims which arise in the normal course of business. In the opinion of
management, the Company is unaware of any claims which would have a material adverse effect on the financial
position, liquidity or results of operations of the Company.
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TVIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)
Leases Commitments

The Company leases its facilities under non-cancelable operating leases expiring at various dates through July
2005. Under the terms of the leases, the Company is responsible for a portion of the facilities’ operating expenses,
insurance and property taxes. Rent expense under operating leases for the years ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002, were approximately $0.2 million, $0.6 million and $0.6 million, respectively.

The Company leases certain fixed assets under capital leases expiring at various dates through February 2003.

Future payments due under leases as of March 31, 2004 are as follows (in thousands):

. Capital Operating
Fiscal Year Leases Leases
200 e $ 490 37t
2000 . = ¥
Total minimum lease payments..............oovviiiiiinniiiniiieraiaii..n. 490 $218
Less: Amount representing IRterest ........ovviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniaeaaiaas, NG
Present value of minimum payments ... 486
Less: CUITENt POTTION ...ttt ettt e e ettt _(486)
Long-1erm POTHION . ... oot e $ —
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Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures. We maintain “disclosure controls and procedures,” as
such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”), that are
designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in Securities and
Exchange Commussion rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating our disclosure controls and procedures,
management recognized that disclosure controls and procedures, no matter how well conceived and operated, can
provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the disclosure controls and procedures are
met. Our disclosure controls and procedures have been designed to meet, and management believes that they meet,
reasonable assurance standards. Additionally, in designing disclosure controls and procedures, our management
necessarily was required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible disclosure
controls and procedures. The design of any disclosure controls and procedures also is based in part upon certain
assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in
achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions.

Based on their evaluation as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K. our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, subject to the limitations noted above, our

disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that material information relating to us, including our

consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to them by others within those entities. particularly during the period in
which this Annual Report on Form 10-K was being prepared.

(b) Changes in internal controls. There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined
in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act) identified in connection with the evaluation described in Item 8A(a)
above that occurred during our last fiscal quarter that has materially affected. or is reasonably likely to materially
affect. our internal control over financial reporting.

PART Il

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by this item (with respect to Directors) is incorporated by reference from the
information under the caption “Election of Directors™ contained in the Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission in connection with the solicitation of proxies for the Company’s 2004
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on August 4, 2004 (the “Proxy Statement”). Certain information required
by this item concerning executive officers is set forth in Part [ of this Report under the caption “Executive Officers

of the Registrant.”

Item 4035 of Regulation S-B calls for disclosure of any known late filing or failure by an insider to file a report
required by Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act. This disclosure is contained in the section entitled “Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

The Company has a separately designated standing Audit Committee established in accordance with Section
3(a)(38)(A) of the Exchange Act. The members of the Audit Committee are James Bunker (Chairperson), R. David
Dicciocio and Mark Mangiola, all of whom meet the independence standards established by The Nasdag Stock
Market for serving on an audit committee. The Board of Directors has determined that R. David Dicciocio and
Mark Mangiola are each an “audit committee financial expert” as defined SEC regulations.

The Company’s Board of Directors adopted a Code of Ethics for all of its directors and officers on March 22,
2004. The Company’s Code of Ethics is available on the Company’s website at http://www.tvia.com. To date, there
have been no waivers under the Company’s Code of Ethics. The Company will post any waivers, if and when
granted, under its Code of Ethics on the Company’s website at http://www.tvia.com.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the information under the captions
“Election of Directors — Director Compensation,” “Executive Compensation,” and “Election of Directors —
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” contained in the Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholders
Matters

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the information under the caption
“Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management™ and "Equity Compensation Plan Information”
contained in the Proxy Statement.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Set forth in the table below is certain information regarding the number of shares of Common Stock that were
subject to outstanding stock options or other compensation plan grants and awards as of March 31, 2004.

Number of Securities

Number of Remaining Available
Securities to be for Future Issuance
Issued Upon Under Equity
Exercise of Weighted-Average Compensation
Outstanding Exercise Price of Plans (Excluding
Options, Warrants QOutstanding Options, Securities Reflected
Plan Category and Rights Warrants and Rights In Column (a))
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders ..................... 3.894.383(1) S1.64 2.850.891
Equity compensation plans not approved
by security holders.................... 1.214.997(2)(3X4) $1.68 —
Totals. oo 5,109,380 S1.96 2.850,891(5)

(1) Includes shares to be issued upon exercise of outstanding options and warrants granted under the 1999 Plan
and the 2000 Plan. Options or warrants to purchase shares of the Company's Common Stock are no longer
granted under the 1999 Plan.

(2) In November 2001, the Company issued two out-of-plan non-qualified options. The first grant ts for 800,000
shares of Common Stock, with an exercise price of $1.27, the fair market value on the date of grant. The option
vests over a four year period. The second grant is for 200,000 shares of Common Stock, with an exercise price
of $1.27, the fair market value on the date of graat. If certain performance objectives are met. the second option
will vest ratably over 48 months beginning on the last day of the first month following the first anniversary
of the vesting commencement date. If the performance objectives are not met, the option will vest in full on
the sixth anniversary of the vesting commencement date.

(3) Includes warrants to purchase 26,666 and 166.665 shares of Common Stock at exercise prices of $3.00 and
$3.75 per share, respectively. The warrants were issued between December 1997 and January 2000 to related
party guarantors of loans previously incurred by the Company. The loans were repaid. Each of the warrants
has a term of five years and terminates between April 2004 and January 2005.

(4) Includes warrants to purchase 13,333 and 8,333 shares of Common Stock at exercise prices of $3.00 and $3.75
per share, respectively. The warrants were issued to a bank in June 1999 and in December 1999 in connection
with loans previously incurred by the Company. The loans were repaid. The warrants have a term of five years
and terminate in June 2004 and December 2004.

(5) Includes 589,047 shares reserved for issuance under the Company’s 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the
“ESPP"). The number of shares reserved for issuance under the ESPP increases on April 1, of every year, by
the lesser of: 83,333 shares; 3% of the outstanding Common Stock on such date; or a lesser amount determined
by the Board of Directors. Each participant may purchase up to 4,000 shares on any purchase date. The ESPP
permits eligible employees to contribute up to 15% of cash compensation toward the semi-annual purchase
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of the Company’s Common Stock. The purchase price is 85% of the fair market value on the day prior to the
beginning of the six-month period at which an eligible employee is enrolled, or the end of each six-month
offering period, whichever is lower.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the information contained under the
captions “Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions” contained in the Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the information under the caption
“Ratification of Independent Auditors — Principal Accountant Fees and Services” and “*Pre-Approval Policies and
Procedures” contained in the Proxy Statement.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K
(a) Documents filed as part of this report:
(1) Financial Statements

Reference is made to the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements of Tvia, Inc., under Item 8 of
Part I hereof.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules
The following financial statement schedule of Tvia, Inc. is filed as part of this Form 10-K.
Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other financial statement schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable or not required or
because the information is included elsewhere in the Consolidated Financial Statements or the Notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits

See Item [5(c) below. Each management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed
has been identified.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K.

On February 3, 2004, the Company furnished a current report on Form 8-K furnishing under Item 12 the
Company's press release relating to its financial results for the quarter ended December 31, 2003.

(c) Exhibits

Exhibit

Number Description of Document

3(i).1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to
Amendment No. 8 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

3(). 1 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to
Amendment No. 3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Amendment No.
2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

4.2 Form of Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement dated as of April 3, 2000

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File
No. 333-34024)).
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Exhibit
Number
43

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

10.1#

10.5

10.6

10.7#

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12#

Description of Document

Warrant to Purchase Stock issued April 30, 1999 to James Mah (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.4 to Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Warrant to Purchase Stock issued June 21, 1999 to Far East National Bank (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.5 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Warrant to Purchase Stock issued July 8, 1998 to C. Y. Lee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.6 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Warrant to Purchase Stock issued December 30, 1999 to Far East National Bank (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.7 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024))

Warrant to Purchase Stock issued January 25,2000 te C.Y. Lee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.8 to Amendment No. 2 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-
34024)).

Warrant to Purchase Stock issued January 25, 2000 to James Mah (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.9 to Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No.
333-34024)).

Amended and Restated 1999 Stock Incentive Plan of Tvia, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to Amendment No. | to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-

34024)).

Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Incentive Plan of Tvia. Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002).

Amended and Restated 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan of Tvia, Inc.

Form of Directors and Officers’ Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.4 to Amendment No. 3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-

34024)).
TSMC Terms and Conditions dated November 13, 1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5
to Amendment No. 1 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

UMC Wafer Foundry Standard Terms and Conditions (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to
Amendment No. | to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Form of Executive Severance Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Amendment
No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Multi-Tenant Single-Building Modified-Net Lease dated October 27, 1995 between Koll/Intereal
Bay Area and Integraphics System, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

First Amendment to Lease Agreement dated January 15, 1999 between Koll/Intereal Bay Area and
IGS Technologies. Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Second Amendment to Lease Agreement dated May 6, 1999 between Koll/Intereal Bay Area and
IGS Technologies, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Promissory Note entered by and between the Company and Jack Guedj dated April 11, 2001
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended June 30, 2001).

49



Exhibit

Number

10.13#

10.14#

10.157

10.167

10.17#

23.1
24.1
3L
312
32.1%*

32.2%*

Description of Document

Option Agreement between the Company and Eli Porat dated November 30, 2001 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
December 31, 2001).

Option agreement between the Company and Eli Porat dated November 30, 2001{incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
December 31, 2001).

Technology License Agreement by and between the Company and Oak Technology, Inc. dated
December 29, 2000 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002).

Addendum to Technology License Agreement by and between the Company and Oak Technology,
Inc. dated April 25, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002).

Agreement and Release of Claims by and between the Company and Jack Guedj dated January 31,
2002(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002).

Subsidiaries of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003).

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
Power of Attorney (see page 53 of this Form [0-K).

Rule 13a-14(a) certification of Chief Executive Officer

Rule 13a-14(a) certification of Chief Financial Officer

Statement of Chief Executive Officer under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18
U.S.C.s5.1350).

Statement of Chief Financial Officer under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18
U.S.C.ss.1350).

** In accordance with Item 601(b)(32)(ii) of Regulation S-K and SEC Release Nos. 33-8238 and 34-47986, Final
Rule: Management’s Reports on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and Certification of Disclosure in
Exchange Act Periodic Reports. the certifications furnished in Exhibits 32.1 and 32.2 hereto are deemed to
accompany this Form 10-K and will not be deemed "filed” for purpose of Section 18 of the Exchange Act.
Such certifications will not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act
or the Exchange Act. except to the extent that the registrant specifically incorporates it by reference.

# Indicates management contact or compensatory plan or arrangement.

+ Confidential treatment has been requested or granted with respect to certain portions of these agreements.

(d) Financial Statement Schedules.

See Item 15(a)(1) and (a)(2) above.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Financial Statement Schedule

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Tvia, Inc.:

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements referred to in our report dated June 14, 2004 appearing
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Tvia, Inc. also included an audit of the financial statement schedule listed
in Item 15(a)(2) of this Form 10-K. In our opinion, this financial statement schedule presents fairly, in all material
respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial

statements.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
June 14, 2004
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TVIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE II — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(in thousands)

Balance at Charged to Balance at
Beginning Costs and End of
Description of Period Expenses Deductions Period
Year Ended March 31, 2004
Allowance for doubtful accounts............ $ 50 315 $ 62 $ 3
Year Ended March 31, 2003
Allowance for doubtful accounts............ S112 $ 8 $ 70 $ 350
Year Ended March 31, 2002
Allowance for doubtful accounts............ $439 $100 $427 Si12
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Company
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

TVIA, INC.

Date: June 21, 2004
- @/
By L

Eli Porat
Chief Executive Officer and President

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and
appoints Eli Porat and Arthur Nguyen, and each of them, his true and lawful attorneys-in-fact, each with full power
of substitution, for him or her in any and all capacities, to sign any amendments to this report on Form 10-K and
1o file the same, with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that each of said attorneys-in-fact or their substitute or substitutes
may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

) Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Tidke Date
/s/ ELI PORAT Chief Executive Officer and President June 21, 2004
Eli Porat (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ ARTHUR NGUYEN - Chief Financial Officer June 21. 2004
Arthur Nguyen (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/st KENNY LIU Chairman of the Board June 21, 2004
Kenny Liu
/s/ STEVEN CHENG Director June 21, 2004

Steven Cheng

/s/ JAMES BUNKER Director June 21, 2004
James Bunker

/st MARK MANGIOLA Director June 21, 2004
Mark Mangiola

/s/ R. DAVID DICIOCCIO Director June 21, 2004
R. David Dicioccio

53



Exhibit
Number
3(i).1
3(ii). 1

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.6

4.7

4.8

10.14

10.3#

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7#

10.9

Exhibit Index

Description of Document

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to
Amendment No. 8 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to
Amendment No. 3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Amendment No.
2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Form of Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement dated as of April 3. 2000
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File
No. 333-34024)).

Warrant to Purchase Stock issued April 30, 1999 to James Mah (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.4 10 Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Warrant to Purchase Stock issued June 21, 1999 to Far East National Bank (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.5 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Warrant to Purchase Stock issued July 8, 1998 to C. Y. Lee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.6 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Warrant to Purchase Stock i1ssued December 30, 1999 to Far East National Bank (incerporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.7 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024))

Warrant to Purchase Stock issued January 23,2000 to C.Y. Lee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.8 to Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-
34024)).

Warrant to Purchase Stock issued January 235, 2000 to James Mah (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.9 to Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No.
333-34024)).

Amended and Restated 1999 Stock Incentive Plan of Tvia. Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to Amendment No. | to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-
34024)).

Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Incentive Plan of Tvia. Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002).

Amended and Restated 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan of Tvia, Inc.

Form of Directors and Officers’ Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.4 to Amendment No. 3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-

34024)).
TSMC Terms and Conditions dated November 13, 1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5
to Amendment No. | to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

UMC Wafer Foundry Standard Terms and Conditions (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to
Amendment No. 1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Form of Executive Severance Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Amendment
No. 2 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Multi-Tenant Single-Building Modified-Net Lease dated October 27, 1995 between Koll/Intereal
Bay Area and Integraphics System, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).
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Description of Document

First Amendment to Lease Agreement dated January 15, 1999 between Koll/Intereal Bay Area and
IGS Technologies, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Second Amendment to Lease Agreement dated May 6, 1999 between Koll/Intereal Bay Area and
IGS Technologies, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 18.15 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-34024)).

Promissory Note entered by and between the Company and Jack Guedj dated April 11, 2001
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended June 30, 2001).

Option Agreement between the Company and Eli Porat dated November 30, 2001 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
December 31, 2001).

Option agreement between the Company and Eli Porat dated November 30, 2001 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Company s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
December 31, 2001).

Technology License Agreement by and between the Company and Oak Technology, Inc. dated
December 29, 2000 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002).

Addendum to Technology License Agreement by and between the Company and Oak Technology,
Inc. dated April 25, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Company's Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31. 2002).

Agreement and Release of Claims by and between the Company and Jack Guedj dated January 31,
2002(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002).

Subsidiaries of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003).

Consent of PricewaterhauseCoopers LLP. Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
Power of Attorney (see page 53 of this Form 10-K).

Rule 13a-14(a) certification of Chief Executive Officer

Rule 13a-14(a) certification of Chief Financial Officer

Statement of Chief Executive Officer under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18
U.S.C.s5.1350).

Statement of Chief Financial Officer under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18
U.S.C.s5.1350).

** In accordance with Item 601(b)(32)(ii) of Regulation S-K and SEC Release Nos. 33-8238 and 34-47986, Final
Rule: Management's Reports on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and Certification of Disclosure in
Exchange Act Periodic Reports, the certifications furnished in Exhibits 32.1 and 32.2 hereto are deemed to
accompany this Form 10-K and will not be deemed “filed” for purpose of Section 18 of the Exchange Act.
Such certifications will not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act
or the Exchange Act, except to the extent that the registrant specifically incorporates it by reference.

# Indicates management contact or compensatory plan or arrangement.

+ Confidential treatment has been requested or granted with respect to certain portions of these agreements.
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Exhibit 10.3
TVIA, INC.
2000 EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

(Amended and restated by the Board on May 13, 2004)
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TVIA, INC.

2000 EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN
(As amended and restated by the Board on April 29, 2002)

SECTION 1. Purpose Of The Plan.

The Plan was adopted by the Board on March 20, 2000, effective as of the date of the IPO. This document
amends and restates the Plan effective as of April 29, 2002, subject to the approval of the Company’s stockholders.
The purpose of the Plan is to provide Eligible Employees with an opportunity to increase their proprietary interest
in the success of the Company by purchasing Stock from the Company on favorable terms and to pay for such
purchases through payroll deductions. The Plan is intended to qualify under section 423 of the Code.

SECTION 2. Definitions.

(a) “Accumulation Period” means a six-month period during which contributions may be made toward the
purchase of Stock under the Plan, as determined pursuant to Section 4(b).

(b) “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company, as constituted from time to time.
(¢) “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

(d) “Committee” means a committee of the Board, as described in Section 3.

{(e) "Company” means Tvia, Inc., a Delaware corporation.

(f) “Compensation” means (i) the total compensation paid in cash to a Participant by a Participating Company,
including salaries, wages, bonuses, incentive compensation, commissions, overtime pay and shift premiums, plus
(i1) any pre-tax contributions made by the Participant under section 401(k) or section 125 of the Code.
“Compensation” shall exclude all non-cash items, moving or relocation allowances, cost-of-living equalization
payments. car allowances, tuition reimbursements, imputed income attributable to cars or life insurance, severance
pay, fringe benefits, contributions or benefits received under employee benefit plans, income attributable to the
exercise of stock options, and similar items. The Commuittee shall determine whether a particular item is included
in Compensation.

(g) “Corporate Reorganization maans:
(1) The consummation of a merger or consolidation of the Company with or into another entity, or any
other corporate reorganization; or

(11) The sale, transfer or other disposition of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets or the complete
liquidation or dissolution of the Company.

(h) “Eligible Employee” means any employee of a Participating Company whose customary employment is
for more than five months per calendar year and for more than 20 hours per week.



The foregoing notwithstanding, an individual shall not be considered an Eligible Employee if his or her
participation in the Plan is prohibited by the law of any country which has jurisdiction over him or her or if he
or she is subject to a collective bargaining agreement that does not provide for participation in the Plan.

(i) “Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
(j) “Fair Market Value” means the market price of Stock, determined by the Committee as follows:

(i) If Stock was traded on The Nasdag National Market on the date in question, then the Fair Market
Value shall be equal to the last-transaction price quoted for such date by The Nasdaq National Market; or

(i1) If Stock was traded on a stock exchange on the date in question, then the Fair Market Value shall
be equal to the closing price reported by the applicable composite transactions report for such date; or

(iii) If none of the foregoing provisions is applicable, then the Fair Market Value shall be determined
by the Committee in good faith on such basis as it deems appropriate.

Whenever possible, the determination of Fair Market Vatue by the Committee shall be based on the prices
reported in the Wall Street Journal or as reported directly to the Company by Nasdaq or a stock exchange. Such
determination shall be conclusive and binding on all persons.

(k) “IPO” means the initial offering of Stock to the public pursuant to a registration statement filed by the
Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

(1) “Offering Period” means a 24-month period with respect to which the right to purchase Stock may be
granted under the Plan, as determined pursuant to Section 4(a).

(m) “Participant” means an Eligible Employee who elects to participate in the Plan, as provided in Section
4(c).

(n) “Participating Company™ means (i) the Company and (ii) each present or future Subsidiary designated
by the Committee as a Participating Company.

{0) “Plan” means this Tvia, Inc. 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as it may be amended from time to
time.

(p) “Plan Account” means the account established for each Participant pursuant to Section 8(a).

(q) “‘Purchase Price”” means the price at which Participants may purchase Stock under the Plan, as determined
pursuant to Section 8(b).

(r) “Stock” means the Common Stock of the Company.




(s) “Subsidiary” means any corporation (other than the Company) in an unbroken chain of corporations
beginning with the Company, if each of the corporations other than the last corporation in the unbroken chain owns
stock possessing 50% or more of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock in one of the other
corporations in such chain.

SECTION 3. Administration of the Plan.

(a) Committee Composition. The Plan shall be administered by the Committee. The Committee shall consist
exclusively of one or more directors of the Company, who shall be appointed by the Board.

(b) Committee Responsibilities. The Committee shall interpret the Plan and make all other policy decisions
relating to the operation of the Plan. The Committee may adopt such rules, guidelines and forms as it deems
appropriate to implement the Plan. The Committee’s determinations under the Plan shall be final and binding on
all persons.

SECTION 4. Enrollment and Participation.

(a) Offering Periods. While the Plan is in effect, two Offering Periods shall commence in each calendar year.
The Offering Periods shall consist of the 24-month periods commencing on each April 1 and October I, except
that the first Offering Period shall commence on the date of the [PO and end on March 31, 2001.

(b) Accumulation Periods. While the Plan is in effect, two Accumulation Periods shall commence in each
calendar year. The Accumulation Periods shall consist of the six-month periods commencing on April 1 and October
{, except that the first Accumufation Period shall commence on the date of the [PO and end on September 30, 2000.

(¢) Enroliment. Any individual who, on the day preceding the first day of an Offering Period, qualifies as an
Eligible Employee may elect to become a Participant in the Plan for such Offering Period by executing the
enrollment form prescribed for this purpose by the Committee. The enrollment form shall be filed with the Company
at the prescribed location not later than 15 days prior to the commencement of such Offering Period.

(d) Duration of Participation. Once enrolled in the Plan, a Participant shall continue to participate in the Plan
until he or she ceases to be an Eligible Employee, withdraws from the Plan under Section 6(a) or reaches the end
of the Offering Period in which his or her employee contributions were discontinued under Section 5(d). A
Participant who discontinued employee contributions under Section 5(d) or 9(b) or withdrew from the Plan under
Section 6(a) may again become a Participant, if he or she then is an Eligible Employee, by following the procedure
described in Subsection (c) above. A Participant whose employee contributions were discontinued automatically
under Section 9(b) shall automatically resume participation at the beginning of the earliest Offering Period ending
in the next calendar year, if he or she then is an Eligible Employee.

{(e) Applicable Offering Period. For purposes of calculating the purchase price under Section 8(b), the
applicable Offering Period shall be determined as follows:




SECTION 6. Withdrawal From The Plan.

(a) Withdrawal. A Participant may elect to withdraw from the Plan by filing the prescribed form with the
Company at the prescribed location at any time before the last day of an Accumulation Period. As soon as reasonably
practicable thereafter, payroll deductions shall cease and the entire amount credited to the Participant’s Plan Account
shall be refunded to him or her in cash, without interest. No partial withdrawals shall be permitted.

(b) Re-enrollment After Withdrawal. A former Participant who has withdrawn from the Plan shall not be a
Participant until he or she re-enrolls in the Plan under Section 4(c). Re-enrollment may be effective only at the
commencement of an Offering Period.

SECTION 7. Change in Employment Status.

(a) Termination of Employment. Termination of employment as an Eligible Employee for any reason,
including death, shall be treated as an automatic withdrawal from the Plan under Section 6(a). (A transfer from
one Participating Company to another shall not be treated as a termination of employment.)

(b) Leave of Absence. For purposes of the Plan, employment shall not be deemed to terminate when the
Participant goes on a military [eave, a sick leave or another bona fide leave of absence, if the leave was approved
by the Company in writing. Employment, however, shall be deemed to terminate ninety (90) days after the
Participant goes on a leave, unless a contract or statute guarantees his or her right to return to work. Employment
shall be deemed to terminate in any event when the approved leave ends, unless the Participant immediately returns
to work.

(¢) Death. In the event of the Participant’s death, the amount credited to his or her Plan Account shall be paid
to a beneficiary designated by him or her for this purpose on the prescribed form or, if none, to the Participant’s
estate. Such form shall be valid only if it was filed with the Company at the prescribed location before the
Participant’s death.

SECTION 8. Plan Accounts and Purchase of Shares.

(a2) Plan Accounts. The Company shall maintain a Plan Account on its books in the name of each Participant.
Whenever an amount is deducted from the Participant’s Compensation under the Plan, such amount shall be credited
to-the Participant’s Plan Account. Amounts credited to Plan Accounts shall not be trust funds and may be
commingled with the Company's general assets and applied to general corporate purposes. No interest shall be
credited to Plan Accounts.

(b) Purchase Price. The Purchase Price for each share of Stock purchased on the last trading day of the month
in which the Accumulation Period expired shall be the fower of:

(i) 85% of the Fair Market Value of such share on the last trading day of the meonth in which the
Accumulation Period expired: or

(i1) 85% of the Fair Market Value of such share on the last trading day before the commencement of
the applicable Offering Period {as determined under Section 4(e)) or, in




the case of the first Offering Period under the Plan, 85% of the price at which one share of Stock is offered to the
public in the IPO.

(c) Number of Shares Purchased. As of the last trading day of each month in which the Accumulation Period
expired, each Participant shall be deemed to have elected to purchase the number of shares of Stock calculated
in accordance with this Subsection (c), unless the Participant has previously elected to withdraw from the Plan in
accordance with Section 6(a). The amount then in the Participant’s Plan Account shall be divided by the Purchase
Price, and the number of shares that results shall be purchased from the Company with the funds in the Participant’s
Plan Account. The foregoing notwithstanding, no Participant shall purchase more than 4,000 shares of Stock with
respect to any Accumulation Period nor more than the amounts of Stock set forth in Sections 9(b) and 14(a). The
Committee may determine with respect to all Participants that any fractional share, as calculated under this
Subsection (c), shall be (i) rounded down to the next lower whole share or (ii) credited as a fractional share.

(d) Available Shares Insufficient. In the event that the aggregate number of shares that all Participants elect
to purchase during an Accumulation Period exceeds the maximum number of shares remaining available for
issuance under Section {4(a), then the number of shares to which each Participant is entitled shall be determined
by multiplying the number of shares available for issuance by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number
of shares that such Participant has elected to purchase and the denominator of which is the number of shares that
all Participants have elected to purchase.

(e) Issuance of Stock. Certificates representing the shares of Stock purchased by a Participant under the Plan
shall be issued to him or her as soon as reasonably practicable after the close of the applicable Accumulation Period,
except that the Committee may determine that such shares shall be held for each Participant’s benefit by a broker
designated by the Committee (unless the Participant has elected that certificates be issued to him or her). Shares
may be registered in the name of the Participant or jointly in the name of the Participant and his or her spouse as
joint tenants with right of survivorship or as community property.

(f) Unused Cash Balances. An amount remaining in the Participant’s Plan Account that represents the Purchase
Price for any fractional share shall be carried over in the Participant’s Plan Account to the next Accumulation Period.
Any amount remaining in the Participant’s Plan Account that represents the Purchase Price for whole shares that
could not be purchased by reason of Subsection (c) above, Section 9(b) or Section 14(a) shall be refunded to the
Participant in cash, without interest. ’

g) Stockholder Approval. Any other provision of the Plan notwithstanding, no shares of Stock shall be
purchased under the Plan unless and until the Company’s stockholders have approved the adoption of the Plan.




SECTION 9. Limitations on Stock Ownership.’

(a) Five Percent Limit. Any other provision of the Plan notwithstanding, no Participant shall be granted a right
to purchase Stock under the Plan if such Participant, immediately after his or her election to purchase such Stock,
would own stock possessing more than 5% of the total combined voting power or value of all classes of stock of
the Company or any parent or Subsidiary of the Company. For purposes of this Subsection (a), the following rules
shall apply:

(i) Ownership of stock shall be determined after applying the attribution rules of section 424(d) of the
Code; :

(i1} Each Participant shall be deemed to own any stock that he or she has a right or option to purchase
under this Plan or any other; and

(ii1) Each Participant shall be deemed to have the right to purchase 4,000 shares of Stock under this Plan
with respect to each Accumulation Period.

(b) Dollar Limit. Any other provision of the Plan notwithstanding, no Participant shall purchase Stock with
a Fair Market Value in excess of $25,000 per calendar year (under this Plan and all other employee stock purchase
plans of the Company or any parent or Subsidiary of the Company).

For purposes of this Subsection (b), the Fair Market Value of Stock shall be determined in each case as of
the beginning of the Offering Period in which such Stock is purchased. Employee stock purchase plans not described
in section 423 of the Code shall be disregarded. If a Participant is precluded by this Subsection (b) from purchasing
additional Stock under the Plan, then his or her employee contributions shall automatically be discontinued and
shall resume at the beginning of the earliest Accumulation Period ending in the next calendar year (if he or she
then is an Eligible Employee).

SECTION 10. Rights Not Transferable.

The rights of any Participant under the Plan, or any Participant’s interest in any Stock or moneys to which
he or she may be entitled under the Plan, shall not be transferable by voluntary or involuntary assignment or by
operation of law, or in any manner other than by beneficiary designation or the laws of descent and distribution.
If a Participant in any manner attempts to transfer, assign or otherwise encumber his or her rights or interest under
the Plan, other than by beneficiary designation or the laws of descent and distribution, then such act shall be treated
as an election by the Participant to withdraw from the Plan under Section 6(a).

SECTION 1. No Rights as an Employee.

Nothing in the Plan or in any right granted under the Plan shall confer upon the Participant any right to continue
in the employ of a Participating Company for any period of specific duration or interfere with or otherwise restrict
in any way the rights of the Participating Companies or of the Participant, which rights are hereby expressly reserved
by each, to terminate his or her employment at any time and for any reason, with or without cause.




SECTION 12. No Rights as a Stockholder.

A Participant shall have no rights as a stockholder with respect to any shares of Stock that he or she may have
a right to purchase under the Plan until such shares have been purchased on the last day of the applicable Offering
Period.

SECTION 13. Securities Law Requirements.

Shares of Stock shall not be issued under the Plan unless the issuance and delivery of such shares comply
with (or are exempt from) all applicable requirements of law, including (without limitation) the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, state securities laws and regulations, and the
regulations of any stock exchange or other securities market on which the Company’s securities may then be traded.

SECTION 14. Stock Offered Under The Plan.

(a) Authorized Shares. The maximum aggregate number of shares of Stock available for purchase under the
Plan is eight hundred thirty-three thousand three hundred thirty-three (833,333) shares, plus an annual increase to
be added on the first day of each of the Company’s fiscal year beginning in years 2000 through 2009, equal to such
amount as may be determined by the Board or, if less, the lesser of (i) eighty three thousand three hundred thirty
three (83,333) shares or (ii) three percent (3%) of the outstanding shares on such date. The aggregate number of
Shares available for purchase under the Plan shall at all times be subject to adjustment pursuant to Section 14.

{b) Antidilution Adjustments. The aggregate number of shares of Stock offered under the Plan, the 333 share
limitation described in Section 8(c) and the price of shares that any Participant has elected to purchase shall be
adjusted proportionately by the Committee for any increase or decrease in the number of outstanding shares of Stock
resulting from a subdivision or consolidation of shares or the payment of a stock dividend, any other increase or
decrease 1n such shares effected without receipt or payment of consideration by the Company, the distribution of
the shares of a Subsidiary to the Company’s stockholders or a similar event.

(c) Reorganizations. Any other provision of the Plan notwithstanding, immediately prior to the effective time
of a Corporate Reorganization, the Offering Period then in progress shall terminate and shares shall be purchased
pursuant to Section 8, unless the Plan is assumed by the surviving corporation or its parent corporation pursuant
to the plan of merger or consolidation. The Plan shall in no event be construed to restrict in any way the Company’s
right to undertake a dissolution, liquidation, merger, consolidation or other reorganization.

SECTION 15. Amendment or Discontinuance.

The Board shall have the right to amend, suspend or terminate the Plan at any time and without notice. Except
as provided in Section 14, any increase in the aggregate number of shares of Stock to be issued under the Plan
shall be subject to approval by a vote of the stockholders of the Company. In addition. any other amendment of
the Plan shall be subject to approval by a vote of the stockholders of the Company to the extent required by an
applicable law or regulation.



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-110549,
333-110547, 333-56646, 333-53648 and 333-48572) of Tvia, Inc. of our reports dated June 14, 2004, relating to the
financial statements and financial statement schedule, which appear in this Form 10-K.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
June 21, 2004




Exhibit 31.1

TVIA, INC.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
for the Period Ended March 31, 2004

I, Eli Porat, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Tvia, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant
as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including
its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

¢) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of
an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting: and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and [ have disclosed. based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors
{or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record. process,
summarize and report financial information: and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: June 21, 2003

By: 5 ?0%

Eli Porat
Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)
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Exhibit 31.2
TVIA, INC.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
for the Period Ended March 31, 2004

I, Arthur Nguyen, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this anaual report on Form 10-K of Tvia, Inc;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant
as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including
its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal contro! over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of
an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting: and

5. The registrant’s other certifving officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors
(or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record. process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b} Any fraud, whether or not material. that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: June 21, 2004

By: /s/ Arthur Nguyen
Arthur Nguyen
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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Exhibit 32.1

STATEMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER UNDER 18 U.S.C. § 1350

I, Eli Porat, the chief executive officer and president of Tvia, Inc. (the “Company™), certify for the purposes
of section 1350 of chapter 63 of title 18 of the United States Code that, to the best of my knowledge,

(1) the Annual Report of the Company on Form 10-K for the period ended March 31, 2004 (the “Report™),
fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and

(it) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and

(ESU“S Ct CFEXEIU‘C“S Cf the :OXHFaHY'

Eli Porat
June 21, 2004
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Exhibit 32.2

STATEMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER UNDER 18 U.S.C. § 1350

1, Arthur Nguyen, the chief financial officer of Tvia, Inc. (the “Company”), certify for the purposes of section
1350 of chapter 63 of title 18 of the United States Code that, to the best of my knowledge,

(i) the Annual Report of the Company on Form 10-K for the period ended March 31, 2004 (the “Report”),
fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and

(i) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

By /s/ Arthur Nguven
Arthur Nguyen

June 21, 2004
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